
 
September 23, 2021 
1:00 pm – 4:00 pm 
Google Hangouts 

Join with Google Meet: meet.google.com/qzu-oqah-cqp 
Or by phone: 347-318-9795, PIN: 735 177 417# 

Meeting materials: http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/eclc-meeting-information 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

Meeting Objectives:  

• Approve the August 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

• Learn about Developing Solutions with Parents and Providers through Human Centered Design 

• Discuss Department of Early Childhood Transition Plan and Universal Preschool Recommendations 

• Hear comments from the early childhood community 

 
1:00-1:05pm  Welcome and Approve Minutes (Tom Massey) 

• ACTION: Approve the August 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes 
 
1:05-1:15pm  Commissioner Introductions (Tom Massey) 

 
1:15-2:00pm Developing Solutions with Parents and Providers through Human Centered Design 

(Hailey Dunnington, Senior Consultant – Slalom; Steffanie Clothier, Director of School 

Readiness - Gary Community Ventures; Nicole Riehl, President and CEO – Executives 

Partnering to Invest in Children) 

 

2:00-2:15pm  Public Comment (Pamela Harris)  
 
2:15-2:25pm Break  

 
2:25-3:55pm Department of Early Childhood Transition Plan and Universal Preschool 

Recommendations (Co-Chairs) 

 
3:55-4:00pm  Co-Chairs’ Next Steps, Final Thoughts and Adjourn (Susan Steele) 
 
 
ECLC 2021 Meeting Schedule: 

• October 28, 2021 

• November 10, 2021* 

• December 16, 2021 

• January 11, 2022*

*Please note, ECLC meetings have been added for November 10 and January 11 
 

 

https://meet.google.com/qzu-oqah-cqp?authuser=0
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/eclc-meeting-information


 

 

Note: Any presentation requested by the ECLC does not constitute or imply an endorsement of the product, 
process, service or organization by the ECLC.    

 
The next ECLC Meeting will be held on October 28, 2021 from 9:30 am to 12:30 pm,  

virtual meeting only. 
 
For information about future meeting dates, times and locations, visit www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org. 
 

http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/


 
 

Early Childhood Leadership Commission 
August 26, 2021 ~ 9:30 am - 12:30 pm 

 
MINUTES 

Meeting Objectives: 
• Approve the June 24, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

• Welcome New Commissioners 

• Evaluate and Consider Early Childhood Council of Larimer County Waiver Updates 

• Discuss Department of Early Childhood Transition Plan and the Universal Preschool Recommendations 
Next Steps 

• Consider ECLC Subcommittee Structure, Updates to Charters and ECLC Bylaws 

• Approve the Early Childhood Workforce Development Subcommittee Higher Education Co-Chair 
Nominee 

• Review recent findings on Engaging Colorado’s Family, Friend and Neighbor Child Care Providers in 
Early Childhood Systems 

• Hear from the Early Childhood Community during Public Comment 
 
Attendees: Pamela Harris, Susan Steele, Tom Massey, Adeeb Khan, Heather Craiglow, Ida Rhodes, Ryan 
Beiser, Sue Renner, Happy Haynes, Heather O’Hayre, Jasmin Ramirez, Melissa Colsman, Leslie Nichols, 
Lucinda Burns, Jake Williams, Jeanne McQueeney, Anne-Marie Braga, Mary Alice Cohen, Katy Palmer, 
Kristina Heyl 
 
Welcome, Introductions & Approve Minutes   
Susan Steele called the meeting to order at 9:30 am. Sue Renner motioned to approve the June 24, 2021 
meeting minutes as drafted, Ida Rhodes seconded the motion, and the minutes were approved unanimously.  
 
Welcome New Commissioners 
Susan welcomed back Commissioner Jeanne McQueeney and asked the five new commissioners to introduce 
themselves. New members include Heather O’Hayre, Director of Larimer County Department of Human 
Services; Jake Williams, Executive Director of Healthier Colorado; Jasmin Ramirez, Parent Representative 
and School Board Member with the Roaring Fork School District; Dr. Leslie Nichols, Superintendent of the 
Gunnison Watershed School District; and Lucinda Burns, Executive Director of Early Childhood Options. Each 
new commissioner discussed the perspectives they bring and what they look forward to most. 
 
Business Meeting - Early Childhood Council of Larimer County Waiver Updates 
Susan discussed the Commission’s legislative authority to review and approve waivers on behalf of early 
childhood councils. The ECLC provides waivers for rules or regulations that might hinder a council’s ability 
to meet their goals or implement new projects. The Early Childhood Council of Larimer County currently has 
a Provisional Early Childhood Teacher (P-ECT) waiver in place to bring in additional teachers. They are 
requesting an amendment to help bring in additional support for classrooms. Christina Taylor, CEO of the 
Early Childhood Council of Larimer County, shared that the amendment would increase the amount of P-
ECTs from a max of two to up to four P-ECTs per program depending on program size and capacity. A max of 
50% of classrooms per age group would be allowed to have P-ECTs of any kind. The current waiver has been 
a wonderful option for centers with extreme teacher shortages. It is almost impossible to hire and retain 
early childhood teachers right now, and this waiver and amendment are crucial to allowing centers to 
remain open. The group discussed how programs are made aware of the waiver option and how the council 
ensures equitable promotion and access to the waiver. Heather Craiglow, a co-chair of the ECLC Waiver 
Review Subcommittee, explained that the state licensing team and the subcommittee both reviewed the 
amendment and agreed to recommend it for approval. Heather Craiglow motioned to approve the waiver 
amendment. Heather O’Hayre seconded the motion, and the waiver amendment was approved unanimously. 
 
 
 



 
   
 
  
Department of Early Childhood Transition Plan and Universal Preschool Recommendations 
Susan reviewed the Commission’s role in developing a transition plan for the new Department of Early 
Childhood and creating recommendations for the new universal preschool program. The discussion began 
with a review of House Bill 21-1304. The new department must provide high-quality, voluntary, affordable 
early childhood opportunities; coordinate the availability of early childhood services to meet the needs of 
families; establish state and community partnerships to provide mixed delivery of services; prioritize family 
and community input; maximize efficient use of resources to reduce the administrative burden on providers; 
prioritize equitable delivery of supports; and unify and streamline programs for parents and providers. 
Universal preschool will become available in 2023. The legislation calls for aligned funding to create a 
single, state-level preschool program in alignment with other relevant early childhood programs to achieve a 
streamlined preschool experience. 
 
Next, the group reviewed a timeline of the transition planning process. The ECLC will receive the plan for 
the new department on November 1 and must approve the final plan by November 15, 2021, at which time it 
will be sent to legislative committees. The ECLC will receive universal preschool recommendations on 
January 1 and must approve the recommendations by January 15, 2022. The new Department of Early 
Childhood will launch on July 1, 2022. The new universal preschool program will launch in July 2023. 
 
Susan explained the flow of the process, beginning with Transition Advisory Subgroups. Subgroup meetings 
are open to the public for stakeholders to offer their insights and experiences to inform the creation of the 
new department and universal preschool. The Special Education Subgroup has seated members and directly 
informs the Transition Advisory Group and the Transition Working Group. Information from Subgroup 
meetings is given to the Transition Advisory Group (TAG), which is comprised of approximately 60 seated 
members from across the early childhood sector. The TAG is responsible for developing recommendations to 
inform the Transition Working Group (TWG). The TWG, made up of leadership from the Governor’s office, 
select state departments, and the ECLC co-chairs, is responsible for developing the plan and 
recommendations with the assistance of the Watershed Advisors consultants. The plan will then be sent to 
the ECLC for final approval before moving on to the Governor and Legislature. The group reviewed the 
Transition Advisory Group, Transition Working Group, and ECLC duties. The plan must include the 
governance structure, mission and vision, fiscal structure, alignment and combining of funding, a transition 
timeline, technology requirements, and data system strategies. 
 
Next, Susan shared the many stakeholder engagement opportunities provided to the public to ensure 
everyone who wants to share their perspective can. The ECLC is hosting interactive, user-focused listening 
sessions for program providers, parents and families, and members of the early childhood workforce. The 
ECLC is also hosting monthly informational town halls to provide the public with updates about the 
transition planning process and next steps. A transition newsletter is sent to stakeholders each month with 
transition updates. There is a stakeholder feedback form available on the ECLC website and people are 
encouraged to submit their input using this form. Stakeholder feedback responses are posted on the ECLC 
website and shared with the Transition Advisory Group, Transition Working Group, and the ECLC. Members 
of the team will also be traveling the state in October to share a draft of the plan and collect feedback. 
Pamela explained that as part of each TAG and Town Hall meeting, a parent or program provider is invited 
to speak about their experience navigating the current early childhood system and to share their suggestions 
for how we can continue to build and improve early childhood systems as we move forward. The ECLC 
Guiding Principles are centered around children and families and include innovation, equity, mixed delivery 
and more. 
 
Then, members reviewed select pre reading materials shared with the commissioners prior to the meeting, 
including a list of programs and their descriptions housed within the Office of Early Childhood in the 
Department of Human Services. The entire Office of Early Childhood is being considered for movement to 
the new department. They also explored the possibility of moving the Early Childhood Workforce 
Development Team currently in the Department of Education; the Colorado Preschool Program(CPP); 
Women, Infants and Children(WIC); and the Child and Adult Care Food Program(CACFP). 

https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/documents/2021A/bills/2021a_1304_enr.pdf
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/subgroups
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/transition-advisory-group
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/engagement-opportunities
https://earlychildhoodcolorado.us19.list-manage.com/subscribe?id=aa29e61ec7&u=03c1149aadcd1cf70f5af9023
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/transition-plan-feedback-form
https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1XLtlGBEkxD8YIK_k5MlAyeM9DJ8hF_wia41eWnhc7Xk/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1gPbu_evaomZGCIMzD8ifgMJwDp7FN2KQ9zJMRKXwTcs/edit?usp=sharing
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5679be9605f8e24bd8be467a/t/61255d56c4ac414174acaf90/1629838678860/Early+Childhood+Workforce+Development+Team+Description.pdf
https://static1.squarespace.com/static/5679be9605f8e24bd8be467a/t/61255d56c4ac414174acaf90/1629838678860/Early+Childhood+Workforce+Development+Team+Description.pdf
https://www.cde.state.co.us/cpp
https://www.coloradowic.gov/homepage
https://cdphe.colorado.gov/CACFP


 
   
 
  
There was discussion around what opportunities commissioners would have to weigh in on the final plan. The 
ECLC will move to monthly meetings to ensure members are well-informed as decisions for the transition are 
being made. Then, they will have two weeks, from November 1 to November 15 to vote on final approval. 
 
Pamela also walked the group through notes from Transition Advisory Subgroup meetings thus far and from 
program provider and family listening sessions. The discussions have been rich and will greatly help to 
inform the transition process. 
 
Susan opened the group up to discussion on program movement to the new department. She shared recent 
considerations of the Transition Advisory Group including the need for strong interagency collaboration, 
concerns over funding and supports, the importance of family choice, equity, and the need to include all 3 
aspects of the Early Childhood Colorado Framework. The group reviewed the programs that might be 
affected by the new department as well as the departments where each program currently sits, including 
programs in the Department of Education, Department of Human Services, and the Department of Public 
Health and Environment. The preliminary recommendation is to move the Colorado Preschool Program, all 
of the Office of Early Childhood, and the Early Childhood Workforce Development Team. Preschool Special 
Education is still being discussed by the Special Education Subgroup. In order to streamline and unify 
services, rules and regulations for programs may need to be amended. For all programs that move, the 
intent is for the new department to acquire authority of their funding sources. 
 
The group discussed why certain programs will move immediately and why some may be phased in over the 
next three years, such as WIC. Members suggested including some programs, like WIC and CACFP in the 
recommendation for movement, even if that happens at a later time, to ensure planning for those programs 
begins soon after the new department opens. Phasing programs over will be important to ensure a smooth 
transition with minimal disruptions. They also discussed the importance of creating strong relationships with 
programs that likely will not move, such as Child Welfare Prevention, and minimizing the amount of 
disruption or unintended consequences as much as possible. Some programs serve populations beyond 0-5 
years of age. It is important to consider any gaps that may be created for those populations if a program 
moves to the new department. 
 
A question was asked about how to implement universal preschool in the new department if early childhood 
special education remains with the Department of Education (CDE). State Education Agencies and Local 
Education Agencies have the full responsibility of implementing the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (IDEA). CDE is used to working with local education agencies and local providers as necessary to support 
students with disabilities where they are served. It is important to make sure those services are 
administered seamlessly with the new universal preschool program. 
 
The group also discussed the need to consider local and regional contexts and the programs reaching those 
areas. The new department will need to be responsive to local communities and various cultures throughout 
the state. The Early Childhood Colorado Framework should be considered throughout the transition process. 
There will need to be a good system to continually evaluate progress and make thoughtful changes when 
necessary to continue to enhance coordination and collaboration between departments.  
 
Public Comment 
Eileen Auer Bennett, Executive Director of Assuring Better Child Health and Development spoke on behalf of 
the Colorado Early Childhood Screen and Referral Policy Council. The Council submitted a letter 
recommending universal developmental screening and referral be included in the universal preschool 
program. In Colorado, less than 50% of children eligible for developmental screening are accessing those 
services. Screening and referral are critical to ensure young children receive early intervention. 
 
Kristie Kauerz noted the importance of better aligning the credentialling process with the teacher licensure 
process. Additionally, she highlighted higher education as an important partner in early childhood work, 
noting that in addition to degree attainment, higher education partners are also focused on increasing 



 
   
 
  
affordability and accessibility of degrees and working with communities to ensure teachers and providers 
can build towards degrees through credit for prior learning and prior experience. 
 
Mike Keglovits shared on CollegeInvest's First Step Program. Families with a child born or adopted starting 
January 1, 2020 are eligible to open a CollegeInvest account and receive a free $100.00 towards college. 
Any family who signs up for the First Step Program is automatically eligible for the Matching Grant Program. 
The application period for the Matching Grant Program begins October 5 and runs through December 31. 
Families that are not in the First Step Program but that meet income requirements and have a child under 
the age of 9 can also apply. Contact Mike at mkeglovits@collegeinvest.org to learn more. 
 
Nicole Riehl, President and CEO of Executives Partnering to Invest in Children (EPIC), discussed the idea that 
although a department may have authority over a funding stream, there may be opportunities to partner 
with other agencies to disperse funds in a manner that works best for providers and communities.  
 
Additionally, EPIC, in partnership with the Office of Early Childhood, will start recruiting for a new 
Employer-Based Child Care Design Lab as part of the new Employer-Based Child Care Facility Grant Program. 
The program will help employers develop a plan to create on-sight or near-sight child care for their 
organizations.  
 
Finally, she shared the CO Community Revitalization Grant is available now and includes opportunities for 
child care projects. Anyone interested can visit the website at https://oedit.colorado.gov/colorado-
community-revitalization-grant 
 
ECLC Subcommittee Structure, Charter Updates and ECLC Bylaws 
Each year, subcommittee structure and charters are reviewed and reauthorized. Each subcommittee’s 
members had the opportunity to review their charter and provide comments and suggestions for updates. 
ECLC members reviewed the Commission’s bylaws, and no edits were suggested at this time. Pamela asked 
for a motion to approve the ECLC bylaws and subcommittee charters. Happy Haynes motioned to approve 
the documents as drafted. Melissa Colsman seconded the motion, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 
Early Childhood Workforce Development Subcommittee Co-Chair 
Diana Schaack, Ph.D, Assistant Professor at the University of Colorado Denver, was nominated to serve as 
the fourth Early Childhood Workforce Development (ECWD) Subcommittee co-chair as a representative of 
higher education. Diana brings expertise in early childhood education policy, early childhood workforce, 
teacher-child attachment relationships, and family child care. Diana was instrumental in creating the Early 
Childhood Workforce Survey in 2016 which led to the creation of the Workforce 2020 Plan. She is a 
nationally recognized early childhood workforce researcher. Diana stated she is honored to be nominated 
and represent higher education in this work. Heather Craiglow motioned to approve Diana as the new co-
chair. Susan Steele seconded the motion, and Diana’s nomination was approved unanimously.  
 
Governor’s Office Updates 
Scott Groginsky from the Governor’s Office thanked the Commission for leading and organizing the plans for 
the new Department of Early Childhood and universal preschool and for engaging the community in those 
discussions. He congratulated the newly appointed and reappointed commissioners and acknowledged their 
extensive backgrounds and valuable expertise. He thanked the outgoing members for their impactful 
contributions. Scott discussed Colorado’s opportunity to become a national leader in state early childhood 
delivery. Colorado will be one of only a handful of states with an early childhood department and universal 
preschool for all four-year-olds. The Governor is excited about the progress in this field and thankful to 
those who are devoting their time to these initiatives. The Transition Advisory Group and Subgroups have 
had powerful, in-depth discussions to inform the transition plan. Scott asked that these groups and the ECLC 
continue to explore how the Department of Education and the new Department of Early Childhood 
can develop innovative coordination strategies for preschool special education. Soon, discussions will turn to 
implementation of universal preschool including support for low income and at-risk children, effective 

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__drive.google.com_file_d_1gZcUBniM9QQHd2tsypej2aT-5F-2Dm-5F0Nl4w_view-3Fusp-3Dsharing&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=7tXCcnJ3_Jn_za7i8UhjSTF4nHDEbIpjau_rw9fd5j8&m=NjVBAkyTLUSIiTFQsu79RQR3mbO5r9LDLiOjLVHbaOo&s=5IjPz5dt7i6h41lDEDqsXfwduDVjstKECEBL7WW1cxg&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__drive.google.com_file_d_17q5Aa-2DXsIMVFw0qT-5FcNMjrJqlTsXhUQ-5F_view-3Fusp-3Dsharing&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=7tXCcnJ3_Jn_za7i8UhjSTF4nHDEbIpjau_rw9fd5j8&m=NjVBAkyTLUSIiTFQsu79RQR3mbO5r9LDLiOjLVHbaOo&s=iza63FDMiGFcsndSKIRe_PKpDddQRaIydPV6jeALCjQ&e=
mailto:mkeglovits@collegeinvest.org
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__oedit.colorado.gov_colorado-2Dcommunity-2Drevitalization-2Dgrant&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=7tXCcnJ3_Jn_za7i8UhjSTF4nHDEbIpjau_rw9fd5j8&m=NjVBAkyTLUSIiTFQsu79RQR3mbO5r9LDLiOjLVHbaOo&s=_IwVba2iwJnEEOTjtBp2mzPxRhTWoo2PKLCbKB9qx-s&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__oedit.colorado.gov_colorado-2Dcommunity-2Drevitalization-2Dgrant&d=DwMFaQ&c=sdnEM9SRGFuMt5z5w3AhsPNahmNicq64TgF1JwNR0cs&r=7tXCcnJ3_Jn_za7i8UhjSTF4nHDEbIpjau_rw9fd5j8&m=NjVBAkyTLUSIiTFQsu79RQR3mbO5r9LDLiOjLVHbaOo&s=_IwVba2iwJnEEOTjtBp2mzPxRhTWoo2PKLCbKB9qx-s&e=


 
   
 
  
preschool special education, and ensuring quality care and education for children birth through three. Other 
important upcoming issues include preschool funding allocation and distribution, quality standards, eligible 
providers, and data interoperability. The Governor’s Office is reviewing state agency spending requests for 
FY 2023. The budget package will be released in two months. Budget requests are being considered in 
conjunction with federal stimulus from both the Coronavirus Relief and Rescue Supplemental Appropriations 
Act (CRRSAA) and the American Recovery Plan Act (ARPA). In closing, Scott reiterated Governor Polis’ 
appreciation. There were a few follow up questions on federal stimulus funding.  
 
Engaging Colorado’s Family, Friend and Neighbor Child Care Providers in Early Childhood Systems 
Katie Poston, Project Manager at Early Milestones Colorado, shared information about Family, Friend and 
Neighbor (FFN) child care providers in Colorado. In January 2021, with funding from the Colorado Health 
Foundation, Early Milestones began a project to elevate the voices and lived experiences of FFN providers. 
They conducted 20 interviews with FFN providers and 20 interviews with professionals who support FFN 
providers across the state. FFN care is child care provided by family members, friends, or neighbors, 
typically within home settings. This type of care offers families more flexibility, convenience, cultural and 
language preference, and affordability. 
 
FFN providers described difficulty locating information and resources. Many were not aware of their local 
early childhood council, and none were aware of the state’s Professional Development Information System 
(PDIS). Now that documentation status is no longer a barrier for obtaining a child care license, there will 
likely be an increase of culturally and linguistically diverse individuals seeking a license to provide child 
care. It will be important to provide support to these new providers and ensure all documents and 
information is available in multiple languages. Recommendations include creating a position in the Office of 
Early Childhood to serve as a liaison for FFN support organizations; reducing financial barriers for FFN 
providers to complete trainings; raising awareness of supports such as PDIS, Councils, EQIT trainings and 
others; and providing those supports in more languages. 
 
Many providers experience discrimination which negatively impacts their well-being and desire to engage in 
early childhood systems. Recommendations include ongoing diversity, equity and inclusion training for 
professionals in non-profits and government agencies; creating career pathways for people of color and 
multilingual individuals; creating additional training modules in PDIS to describe lived experiences of 
historically excluded and marginalized groups; and ensuring FFN providers have access to low or no-cost 
health care. 
 
FFNs indicated they strongly consider a family’s financial situation when setting their rates, although many 
FFNs expressed financial challenges. Most were not aware of the qualified exempt process to accept CCCAP. 
Recommendations include extending Child and Adult Care Food Program eligibility to FFN providers; 
developing partnerships with organizations to provide fresh, healthy food; evaluating the costs of providing 
care in homes; increasing CCCAP reimbursement rates for qualified exempt providers; studying FFN 
providers’ experiences; and removing barriers to participating in the CCCAP qualified exempt program. 
 
Colorado faces challenges to recruit and retain the workforce necessary to implement universal preschool. 
Many FFN providers have existing credentials, education and training, and may be interested in becoming 
early childhood teachers with career navigation support and some additional coursework. Early Milestones’ 
report will be released in the coming week with a more comprehensive webinar scheduled for September. 
 
Next Steps, Final Thoughts and Adjourn 
Additional ECLC meetings have been scheduled for September 23, November 10, and January 11. The 
meeting was adjourned at 12:30 pm. 

 

Note: Any presentation requested by the ECLC does not constitute or imply an endorsement of the product, 

process, service, or organization by the ECLC. 



This document provides an overview of all OEC programs, including ages served and funding streams. OEC has approximately 200

staff and 250 vendors that support this work. This is a living document and OEC staff will continue to update with links to rules

and legislation.

A handshake symbol in the first column means that we need to convene a workgroup with counties, agency staff, and other

stakeholders to create a transition plan to ensure seamless delivery of services, including MOUs and interagency agreements.

These workgroups will address plans for the Background Investigation Unit, Early Childhood Workforce and Professional

Development, Colorado Child Care Assistance Program (CCCAP), Family Support and Child Maltreatment Prevention Programs, and

Finance and Contracts.

Program Description Funding

Stream(s)

Required to

Move Program to

new Dept (state

legislation; EO;

rule change; fed.

approval; etc)

Division of Early Learning Licensing and Administration (DELLA)

Child Care

Licensing

Child Care Licensing ensures child care programs, including

preschools, child care centers, and family child care homes, as

well as children’s resident camps and school-age programs, meet

health and safety standards and the developmental needs of

children in care. This division’s responsible for inspecting,

licensing, and monitoring child care facilities throughout the

State. The licensing program is responsible for the enforcement of

applicable federal and State rules and regulations for child care

facilities. The Division provides technical assistance to child care

providers and establishes educational and experience

GF, Cash

Funds from

child care

licensing fees,

CCDF federal

funds

Legislation; rule

change

1



requirements for child care providers in all facilities. The licensing

program is federally required to conduct annual licensing

inspections for all facilities.

Ages Served: Mostly 0-5, with some older children served at camps

and before/after school programs

Background

Investigation

Unit

The Background Investigation Unit processes Colorado child abuse

and neglect check requests and reviews the results of required

state and federal criminal background checks for individuals

working with children or in unsupervised contact with children.

Ages Served: n/a

Cash Funds

from

background

check fees

Legislation

Division of Early Learning Access and Quality (DELAQ)

Colorado

Shines

Quality

Rating and

Improvement

System

(QRIS)

Colorado Shines is the statewide quality rating and improvement

system for Colorado’s licensed early care and learning programs.

Colorado Shines rates early learning programs and connects

families with quality child care and preschool programs. It

measures quality based on how a program supports its children,

families, and professionals.

Quality Improvement. The federal government currently requires

that 9 percent of expenditures for the Child Care and

Development Fund (CCDF) be used to improve the quality of child

care. The 9 percent calculation is based on total CCDF

expenditures, including state expenditures required to match a

portion of the federal CCDF grant and expenditures of county

transfers of Temporary Assistance for Needy Families funds to

CCDF. Funding for quality activities supports Colorado’s Early

GF and CCDF

federal funds

Legislation

2 of 24



Childhood Councils (ECCs) and the School-Readiness Quality

Improvement Program pursuant to Section 26-6.5-106, C.R.S.

(2021).

Targeted Funds. Beginning in FFY 2016-17, federal law required 3

percent of the total CCDF expenditures to be targeted for

infant/toddler care to provide specialized training, technical

assistance, or expansion of the supply of child care programs

serving infants and toddlers. This funding includes, but is not

limited to, the Infant and Toddler Quality and Availability (ITQA)

program, codified in Section 26-6.7-101 through 105, C.R.S.

(2021).

Ages served: birth to age 8

Early

Childhood

Workforce

and

Professional

Development

The Colorado Shines Professional Development Information System

(PDIS) is a web-based system providing free and easy access to

professional development courses and credentialing to the early

childhood workforce. This system tracks training and education,

provides high-quality online professional development, and helps

individuals select a professional development path according to

their competency level, professional development goals, job or

role, and geographic location.

Continuation of Child Care Quality Initiatives was funded through a

budget request in FY 2016-17, which authorized federal Child Care

and Development Fund (CCDF) spending authority to support the

ongoing sustainability of child care quality initiatives. These

initiatives include the Quality Rating and Improvement System

(QRIS), Colorado Shines, which the Department launched in 2014.

Colorado Shines is embedded in the state child care licensing

regulatory system, requiring the assignment of a quality rating

level for all licensed child care programs enrolling children prior

to kindergarten to inform parents about the quality of early

learning programs and drive improvements to the quality of those

programs. The initiatives also include the Colorado Shines

CCDF federal

funds

3 of 24



Professional Development Information System (PDIS), which is the

statewide workforce registry and learning management system

supporting professional development for Colorado’s early

childhood workforce.

Effective December 2021, all staff in licensed programs are

required to be registered in the PDIS. Additionally, required annual

training is offered to all child care professionals for free through

the learning management system in English and Spanish, ensuring

access to required health and safety training as well as ongoing

professional development for all professionals in the state.

The funds support the costs of the FTE and resources for the

ongoing oversight and development of the Colorado Shines

framework, including coaching, rating administration, inter-rater

reliability for assessor staff, ongoing training, and professional

development opportunities for early childhood educators, and

operating and maintenance costs for the technology systems

(Colorado Shines Technology System and PDIS).

Ages served: birth to age 8

Expanding

Quality in

Infant and

Toddler Care

(EQ)

Initiative

 The Expanding Quality in Infant and Toddler Care (EQ) Initiative is

a relationship-based professional development initiative designed

to improve the quality of and access to the responsive, nurturing

relationships that define quality in infant and toddler child care.

This initiative delivers strengths-based and evidence-informed

training and coaching through a distributed and annually certified

Infant Toddler Specialist Network. Through professional

development, the EQ Initiative increases infant-toddler early care

educators' responsive caregiving skills, reflective capacity,

knowledge about infant and toddler development, and knowledge

100% funded

by the CCDF

infant toddler

3% set aside

(does NOT use

all of the

current set

aside)

4 of 24



about good practice in infant and toddler child care. EQ serves 80

coaches across the state and serve 1000 educators per year.

Ages served: Birth to age 3

Colorado

Child Care

Assistance

Program

(CCCAP)

The Colorado Child Care Assistance Program (CCCAP) provides

subsidized child care benefits to low-income families that are

working, searching for work, in school or training, or homeless.

Families enrolled in the Colorado Works Program (TANF) can also

access CCCAP.  In 2020, CCCAP supported 16,196 families with

26,026 families.

The Colorado Child Care Assistance Program is codified at 26-2-801

et seq., C.R.S. (2021). The Colorado Child Care Assistance Program

(CCCAP) provides financial assistance to low-income families who

are working, searching for employment, pursuing training or

higher education, or are enrolled in the Colorado Works Program

and need child care services to support their efforts toward

self-sufficiency. The Division of Early Care and Learning is the lead

agency for CCCAP, as established in S.B. 97-120 in 26-2-801

through 809, C.R.S. (2021). The Department supervises CCCAP

services administered by county departments of human or social

services.

The State allocates CCCAP monies to counties annually based on

an allocation formula. Funding for the program consists of General

Fund, local funds, and federal funding from the Child Care and

Development Fund, and a small amount of Title XX funds. CCCAP

monies are used for both county administration of the program

and to reimburse child care providers for child care services

provided for CCCAP children. Overall, CCCAP expenditures are

tied to the number of families receiving care, the amount of care

provided, and the provider reimbursement rates.

The Colorado Child Care Assistance Program Rate Setting Study

GF, Cash

Funds from

county share,

federal funds

from CCDF

and Title XX

Legislation

5 of 24



was created by H.B. 14-1317 and is funded by federal funds from

the Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) grant. This

rate-setting study is used to help establish reimbursement rates

for child care providers within Colorado's Child Care Assistance

Program (CCCAP) that provide equal access to children and

families. In Colorado, the State sets provider rates for each county

and each child care market. Per S.B. 21-217, the State will

complete the rate-setting study once every three years.

During the FY 2017-18 budget cycle, JBC Staff initiated a transfer

of $1,200,000 from the Colorado Child Care Assistance Program

(CCCAP) line item to a new line item, Child Care Assistance

Program Support. Codified in Section 26-2-801 et. seq., C.R.S.

(2021), this program is funded by the Child Care and Development

Fund (CCDF) grant for costs associated with software licenses and

contracted maintenance and support for the Child Care Automated

Tracking System (CHATS).

Ages Served: Infant up to age 13

Stimulus

Funding

CHILD CARE SUSTAINABILITY GRANT PROGRAM

The Child Care Sustainability Grant Program was established by

H.B. 20b-1002 and revised by S.B. 21-236. The program is codified

at Section 26-6-802, C.R.S. (2021). For FY 2021-22, this line item

is funded by federal funds from the Child Care and Development

Fund (CCDF) grant for costs associated with issuing sustainability

grants to eligible child care providers. Line item funding supports

grant payments to providers, contractual costs related to the

distribution of funds, and state staff charged with managing the

grant program, associated contracts, and budgets.

EMERGING AND EXPANDING CHILD CARE GRANT PROGRAM

The Emerging and Expanding Child Care Grant Program was

6 of 24



established by H.B. 20b-1002 and revised by S.B. 21-236. The

program is codified at Section 26-6-803, C.R.S. (2021). For FY

2020-21 and FY 2021-22, this line item is funded by General Fund

to expand access and availability of licensed child care throughout

the state. Grants may be used for costs associated with expanding

an open and operating child care center or family child care home

or to assist an eligible entity with the start-up of a new child care

center or family child care home. Funding also supports local Early

Childhood Councils (ECCs) and community education and outreach.

EMPLOYER-BASED CHILD CARE FACILITY GRANT PROGRAM

The Employer-Based Child Care Facility Grant Program was

established by S.B. 21-236. Funded by General Fund for FY

2020-21 and FY 2021-22, the program is codified at Section

26-6-804, C.R.S. (2021) to provide eligible entities with money to

construct, remodel, renovate, or retrofit a child care center on

the site or near to the site of the eligible entity’s property to

provide licensed child care services. Line item funding also

supports contractual costs related to the distribution of funds, and

state staff charged with managing the grant program, associated

contracts, and budgets.

EARLY CARE AND EDUCATION RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION

GRANT PROGRAM

The Early Care and Education Recruitment and Retention Grant

Program was established by S.B. 21-236. Funded by the Child Care

and Development Fund (CCDF) grant for FY 2021-22, the program

is codified at Section 26-6-805, C.R.S. (2021) to increase the

number of qualified early childhood educators in the State and

retain the early childhood educator workforce. Line item funding

supports contracts with eligible entities to implement the various

scholarship and grant programs, as well as the state staff charged

with managing the grant program, associated contracts, and

7 of 24



budgets.

CHILD CARE TEACHER SALARY GRANT PROGRAM

The Child Care Teacher Salary Grant Program was established by

S.B. 21-236. Funded by the Child Care and Development Fund

(CCDF) grant for FY 2021-22, the program is codified at Section

26-6-806, C.R.S. (2021) with the purpose of allowing eligible

entities to apply for a grant to increase the salaries of its early

childhood educators. Line item funding also supports contractual

costs related to the distribution of funds, and state staff charged

with managing the grant program, associated contracts, and

budgets.

COMMUNITY INNOVATION AND RESILIENCE FOR CARE AND LEARNING

EQUITY GRANT PROGRAM

The Community Innovation and Resilience for Care and Learning

Equity (CIRCLE) Grant Program was established by S.B. 21-236.

Funded by the Child Care and Development Fund (CCDF) grant for

FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23, the program is codified at Section

26-6-807, C.R.S. (2021) with the purpose of systemic challenges

for early care and learning providers that have worsened as a

result of the economic, social, and health impacts of the COVID-19

public health emergency and to promote innovation to improve

outcomes for children and families. Line item funding also

supports contractual costs related to the distribution of funds, and

state staff charged with managing the grant program, associated

contracts, and budgets.

Ages served: birth to age 8

8 of 24



Early

Childhood

Councils

(ECCs)

The Early Childhood Council system covers 63 of 64 Colorado

counties and is charged with building the foundations of a locally

based early childhood system so that more high quality services

are available to more children and families. Funding in this line

item is from federal Child Care Development Fund grant funding

that is distributed to Early Childhood Councils through a grant

process on a three-year cycle by the Department. Funding is also

used by the Department for staff to administer the grant process,

and to provide program oversight, contract and budget

management, and technical assistance and support to the

Councils.

The passage of H.B. 07-1062, codified at 26-6.5-101 et. seq.,

C.R.S. (2021), renamed, improved, and expanded the

Consolidated Child Care Pilot program. Effective FY 2008-09, this

line item was renamed to “Early Childhood Councils” to match the

program name.

Ages Served: Families with young children

GF and CCDF

federal funds

Division of Community and Family Support

Early

Intervention

The Early Intervention program provides services for at-risk

children from birth to their third birthdays. EI services assist

young children with atypical physical, cognitive, communication,

adaptive and social or emotional development. The goal of early

intervention is to enable young children to be active and

successful participants during the early childhood years and in the

future in a variety of settings, in their homes, with their families,

in child care, preschool or school programs and in the community.

The Early Intervention Services program is codified at 27-10.5-701

through 710, C.R.S. (2021) and the Individuals with Disabilities

Education Act (2004), 34 C.F.R. Section 303.101 (a)(1). Early

Intervention services provide services and supports to children

GF, Cash

Funds from

Early

Intervention

Trust, and

federal funds

from IDEA

Part C grant

Coordination with

the federal

Office of Special

Education

Programs (OSEP);

Governor’s

Executive Order

to move the

program from

CDHS; legislation;

rule change

9 of 24



from birth through age two and their families who are determined

eligible based on a developmental delay or disability. These

services and supports enhance child development in the areas of

adaptive skills, cognitive skills, communication, motor

development including vision and hearing, and social and

emotional development. The Early Intervention program also

includes early identification, screening, and assessment services,

and procedural safeguards. The program is funded by a

combination of General Fund, local funds, Medicaid, the Early

Intervention Services Trust (EIST), and federal funding from Part C

of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA).

In 2019-20, EI served 8,439 children and 7,265 children in FY

2020-2021

Line item funding supports contracts with community agencies to

provide service coordination and direct services to eligible

children and families, and other costs necessary to implement the

Early Intervention program, including public awareness, training,

information technology, and the state staff responsible for

oversight and implementation of the program.

EARLY INTERVENTION EVALUATIONS

The Early Intervention Evaluations line was created during the FY

2018-19 figure setting process with an appropriation of General

Fund and federal funding from Part C of the Individuals with

Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). The funding assists the State

with the administration and completion of Early Intervention

Evaluations for children from birth through age two. With the

passage of S.B. 21-275, the full authority for conducting all Early

Intervention evaluations was transferred from the Colorado

Department of Education (CDE) to the Colorado Department of

Human Services (CDHS) to align with CDHS’ responsibility as the

state lead agency for purposes of federal Part C funding and law.

10 of 24



Line item funding supports costs associated with conducting

evaluations and implementing the evaluation program, including

public awareness, training, information technology, and the state

staff responsible for oversight and implementation of the

program.

Ages served: birth to age 3

Head Start

Collaboration

Office

(HSCO)

Head Start Collaboration Offices facilitate partnerships between

Head Start agencies and other state entities that provide services

to benefit low-income children and their families.

HSCO provides a structure and a process for the Office of Head

Start (OHS) to work and partner with state agencies and local

entities. Together, these partners work to leverage their common

interests around young children and their families to formulate,

implement, and improve state and local policy and practices.

Federal funds

from Head

Start

Collaboration

Grant (Collab

Director

only),

Head Start

Sites receive

funding

directly from

Feds

Early

Childhood

Mental

Health

The Early Childhood Mental Health (ECMH) Specialists program

provides ECMH consultation in early care and learning settings for

children ages 0-6. The consultation builds the knowledge and skills

of early care and learning providers, parents, and caregivers about

the importance of relationships and interactions in the support of

children’s social-emotional and developmental needs.

The Early Childhood Mental Health Consultation program is

codified at 26-6.5-401 through 407, C.R.S. (2021). The purpose of

the Early Childhood Mental Health Consultation (ECMHC) program

is to increase the availability of mental health consultation

services to young children, birth through age five, and provide

coaching and training to families and early care and learning

environments that will help adults support children’s

GF and

federal CCDF

funds

11 of 24



social-emotional development and to identify early in a child’s life

any concerns that could lead to greater challenges in the future.

Benefits of the ECMHC program include fewer incidents of

challenging behaviors, reduced stress for parents, increased

resiliency for children, stronger relationships between children

and parents, and improved school readiness meaning that children

are ready for school, families are ready to support their children's

learning, and early care and learning programs are ready for

children.

In  FY  2015-16,  the  Department submitted a  supplemental

budget request to use  CCDF  to implement new federal program

requirements. Specifically, the funding addresses the requirement

to provide enhanced resources to address the social and emotional

needs of young children in Colorado that will reduce suspensions

and expulsions. The Legislature approved the request, and the

State was able to expand the number of FTE community-based

ECMH Consultants. The line supports costs associated with state

staff responsible for administering the program, and managing the

associated contracts and budgets.

Incredible

Years

Incredible Years encompases three programs that work to reduce

risk factors and increase protective factors by leveraging positive

parent-child and teacher-child relationships to promote

preschool-aged children’s social-emotional skills and prevent

behavior issues that can lead to expulsion and suspension from

early childhood programs.

Incredible Years is an evidence-based, two-generation program

that fosters social and emotional well-being in young children and

works to prevent behavior issues that could lead to suspension or

expulsion from preschool. The program consists of three

components: classroom management support for teachers, a

curriculum delivered in Pre-K and kindergarten classrooms, and a

Marijuana

cash funds

12 of 24



parenting program. The program is funded through Marijuana Tax

Cash Funds. Funding also supports the cost of state staff

responsible for oversight and administration of the federal grant

program.

Ages served: Families with children 3-5 years old

Home

Visiting

Programs

Home Visiting programs include Nurse Family Partnership, Safe

Care, HealthySteps, Home Instruction for the Parents of Preschool

Youngsters, Child First, Family Connects, and Parents as Teachers.

These programs, while each unique, all provide services to

families in their homes. These programs are supported in part by

the Federal formula funding for home visiting.

NURSE HOME VISITOR PROGRAM (NHVP)

The program is funded by the Nurse Home Visitor Program (NHVP)

Fund created in 26-6.4-107 (2) (b), C.R.S. (2021), federal funding

from the Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting

(MIECHV) grant, and Medicaid reimbursements. The program

receives an annual distribution of funding from the Tobacco Master

Settlement Agreement, which is deposited into the NHVP fund.

95% of the funding must go to contracts with community agencies

to implement the direct services, and the remaining 5% supports

the cost of oversight and implementation of the program.

This program is based on the proven national Nurse Family

Partnership program (NFP), which has more than 40 years’ worth

of clinical trials demonstrating long-term outcomes such as

reduced childhood injuries. Compared with a similar reference

group of low-income women nationally, NFP participants had 18

percent fewer preterm births, 21 percent more mothers were

breastfeeding, and 19 percent more infants were immunized at six

months. The state program provides funding for home visiting

nurse services to low-income (up to 200 percent of the Federal

NHVP (NFP):

Cash funds

from Tobacco

MSA & federal

funds from

MIECHV

SafeCare: GF

Healthy

Steps: GF

HIPPY:

Federal funds

from MIECHV

Parents as

Teachers:

Federal funds

from MIECHV

Child First:

Federal funds

from MIECHV

Family

Connects:

Federal funds

from CBCAP

13 of 24



Poverty Level), first-time mothers during their pregnancies, and

through their children's second birthday. This is a voluntary

program designed to provide trained visiting nurses to help

educate mothers on the importance of nutrition, healthy

decision-making, and to assist and educate mothers in providing

general infant care to improve outcomes for their children. Each

year the program sees over 4,000 first-time mothers with services

in all 64 Colorado counties through its 22 sites across the state.

Ages served: first time mothers with children birth to age 2

SAFECARE COLORADO

SafeCare Colorado is a voluntary in-home prevention service for

parents to assist them with the challenges of parenting and

inter-family relationships. Services offered include child behavior

management, planned activities training, home safety training,

and child health care skills, all designed to stabilize families and

prevent child maltreatment. Program resources include home

visits, family coaches, and access to other services that may be of

need to a family, including but not limited to food assistance,

work assistance, and child care assistance. SafeCare is used in

other communities across the country and has demonstrated

strong success in eliminating child maltreatment. Funding is used

to support sites across the State that provide services under the

SafeCare Colorado model. The program commenced in FY 2013-14

with the establishment of 6 sites, followed by 3 more. Currently,

there are 13 sites and one tribe that provide SafeCare services in

39 counties. Evaluation activities are administered by the

Colorado State University School of Social Work.

Ages served: Families with children five and under

HEALTHY STEPS

HealthySteps is a voluntary, evidence-based two-generation

program that is delivered through the pediatric care system to

14 of 24



provide parent support and education, developmental screening,

instruction in safe sleep practices, family protective and risk

factor screening, and connections to needed services.

Ages served: Families with young children

HOME INSTRUCTION FOR THE PARENTS OF PRESCHOOL

YOUNGSTERS (HIPPY)

HIPPY is a free, voluntary school readiness program that helps you

prepare your 3- to 5-year-old children for success.

HIPPY is a peer-delivered program where trained home visitors

provide weekly home visits, working with you one-on-one. The

program also provides monthly group meetings, where you and

your children can socialize and meet other families in your

community, and a resource network to connect your family with

resources that meet your specific needs. 

Families typically enroll in HIPPY for at least one school year.

Many families continue enrollment for two or three school years.

Ages served: families with children aged 3-5

PARENTS AS TEACHERS (PAT)

PAT is a free, voluntary parent education and family support

program serving families like yours, from pregnancy until your

child enters kindergarten.

PAT pairs trained Parent Educators with families to ensure school

readiness and healthy child development. PAT delivers services

once or twice per month in the home or a place of the caregiver’s

choosing. Families typically enroll in PAT for at least one year.

Many families continue enrollment for multiple years and some

families are enrolled from pregnancy until kindergarten entry.

15 of 24



Ages served: pregnancy to kindergarten entry

CHILD FIRST

Child First is an evidence-based, two generation, home-based

mental health intervention that serves young children and their

families most impacted by systemic and structural inequities.

Goals of Child First:

(1) Promote child and parent emotional health,

(2) Promote child development and learning,

(3) Enhance parent and child executive capacity, and

(4) Prevent child abuse and neglect.

The initial implementation of this intensive model started in the

Spring of 2021 in four sites covering 13 counties: Adams,

Arapahoe, Adams, El Paso, Broomfield, Jefferson, Boulder,

Alamosa, Saguache, Costilla, Mineral, Conejos, and Rio Grande.

Invest in Kids serves as the state model intermediary supporting

this effort.

Ages served: Families during pregnancy and with children five and

under.

FAMILY CONNECTS

The Family Connects model is an evidence-based approach to

supporting all newborns and their families. By reaching all families

in a community, Family Connects improves health outcomes at the

population level. Every family needs support after bringing home a

baby. The needs are different in each family – from help with

feeding and safe sleep to getting information about child care and

parenting groups. Family Connects links parents to the individual

community resources they need. Initial implementation of this

program is under way in Denver, Jefferson, and Boulder counties.

16 of 24



Randomized controlled trials of Family Connects published in

Pediatrics, the American Journal of Public Health, and JAMA

Network Open have shown positive effects for families in a

number of key areas. Of particular note, the program has

demonstrated reductions in maternal behavioral health

experiences (postpartum anxiety and depressions), emergency

department visits, child welfare involvement while also

demonstrating increased parental responsiveness, positive

parenting behaviors, and community connections. This program is

transformational in the Colorado Home Visiting Continuum

because it's universal and voluntary--which normalizes that all
families could use some extra support around the birth of a child
and ensures that program participation isn't stigmatized. It is not just
another home visiting program because it is designed to
complement the existing service array (not compete) by building the
bridge to community linkages with other services. For families with
lower acuity needs (who might not otherwise interact with a formal
support other than healthcare), Family Connects may be able to
address the family's needs as part of their 1-3 home visits. For
families with more complex needs, Family Connects can offer
community linkages (like with NFP, Parents as Teachers, Child First,
etc.) and/or urgent intervention to ensure the family has what they
need for their well-being.

Family Connects International reports that the model promotes
equity through universal outreach and connection to resources and
decreases racial disparities in the child welfare system. The
COVID-19 pandemic highlights existing health and social inequities,
a tattered social support network that could not respond to meet
rising needs, and a perpetually underfunded and understaffed
public health system. The Family Connects model provides
infrastructure that supports a population reach for all families with
newborns within a community. Such an approach can build in other
universal touchpoints for families with young children to create a
coordinated system of care throughout the lifespan.

17 of 24



Ages served: Families with a newborn

Family

Support and

Child

Maltreatmen

t Prevention

Programs

FAMILY RESOURCE CENTERS (FRC)

Family Resource Centers provide family support services to

vulnerable families with children of all ages, including building

protective factors to keep families strong, coordinated case

management, resource referrals, and system navigation with the

ultimate objective of increasing that family’s well-being and

economic stability.

The Family Support Services line item was created through

legislative action in FY 2015-16 to support and make grants to

Family Resource Centers (FRCs) to create stronger Colorado

families by providing support to vulnerable families. By visiting an

FRC, families participate in voluntary comprehensive coordinated

case management services to navigate the pathways to economic,

educational, social, and health success for all generations, thus

moving families from crisis to self-reliance. For many families,

FRCs are the gateway to accessing the early childhood system,

including home visitation programs and early intervention

supports. These brick-and-mortar Centers provide a single point of

entry for families to receive comprehensive, integrated services in

their community. FRCs provide families with a broad range of

supports, which may include early child care and education, adult

education, wellness programming, Medicaid enrollment,

connections to local food banks and housing supports, utility

assistance, and other services. Established in 1993, the FRC

system is one of the longest-standing family supports in the state.

The family resource center network, through the Family Resource

Center Association, has grown to 33 FRCs across Colorado, and

together they served more than 13,000 families in 2018-19,

although residents in 16 counties still do not have access to a

center. FRCs are supported by a mix of local, state, and federal

FRC: GF from

Family

Support

Services line

plus many

other sources

of funding

CCR: GF

CFP: Federal

funds from

FIRE grant

PSSF: Federal

PSSF funds

CAPTF: State

cash funds

and future

Federal funds

from

reimbursemen

t on Title IV-E

claiming

CBCAP:

Federal

CBCAP funds

18 of 24



funding; foundations; faith-based organizations; individual

donations; special events; earned income; and program fees. This

line item is funded with General Fund and supports costs of state

staff charged with managing the program, contracts with program

sites, and other contractual costs necessary for the

implementation and evaluation of the program.

Ages served: all families

COLORADO COMMUNITY RESPONSE (CCR)

CCR is a voluntary prevention program serving families who have

been screened out from child welfare as the allegations did not

meet the statutory definition of abuse or neglect. The program

serves priority populations that include families with children

under the age of five, expecting parents, caregivers, and families

facing multiple challenges that increase the risk for child neglect

occurring. Sites can choose to serve other families if capacity

allows.

The Colorado Community Response Program draws on public,

private, and community supports to keep children safe by

increasing a family’s protective capacities to prevent child neglect

among low-income families. The Colorado Community Response

Program is a voluntary program serving families that have been

reported to a county child protective agency for alleged child

abuse or neglect but are screened out without an offer of

services. The family receives needed referrals, financial literacy

coaching, and access to flex funding in order to increase economic

self-reliance. The program is organizationally located and

managed by the Office of Early Childhood. Similar to SafeCare

Colorado, funding for the Colorado Community Response Program

established sites across Colorado that were selected through a

competitive application process. As of FY 2019-20, CCR services

are being delivered at 24 sites in 34 counties. A randomized

control trial study of the promising practice is being completed by

19 of 24



the Colorado Evaluation and Action Lab at the University of

Denver.

Ages served: families with children under 18

COLORADO FATHERHOOD PROGRAM (CFP)

CFP does additional specialized outreach to priority populations

that include male caregivers who are receiving government aid,

living in rural areas, non-custodial and custodial single fathers,

veterans, fathers without a high school diploma, unemployed

fathers, and fathers re-entering after incarceration. There are

three pillars of focus: healthy relationships, responsible parenting,

and economic stability. Federal grant supports seven local sites

(most family resource centers) that offer a suite of services to

fathers engaged in the program.

Ages served: Fathers over the age of 18 years old that have

children aged 24 years or under.

PROMOTING SAFE AND STABLE FAMILIES (PSSF)

The purpose of the Promoting Safe and Stable Families program is

to enable States to develop and establish, or expand, and to

operate a continuum of coordinated community-based family

support services, family preservation services, time-limited family

reunification services, and adoption promotion and support

services. These Federal formula funds are awarded to counties to

support community-based services to families based on their

needs, regardless of their status with child welfare so families can

be helped as early as possible. There are ten funding priorities,

which include many of the other family support programs already

listed: Intensive family case management, family engagement

Meetings, Incredible Years Program, parenting education classes,

fatherhood programs, respite care, Colorado Community Response

20 of 24



(CCR), supports for families post-adoption or permanency, parent

peer support programs, and kinship navigation.

Promoting Safe and Stable Families was originally authorized in

1993 under Subpart 2 of Title IV-B of the federal Social Security

Act, and was established in name by the 1997 federal Adoption

and Safe Families Act. The program is codified at Section 26-5-101

et. seq., C.R.S. (2021). The line supports costs associated with

state staff responsible for administering the program, and

managing the associated contracts and budgets.

The Promoting Safe and Stable Families (PSSF) program provides

funding and technical assistance to selected counties in Colorado

to create, enhance, and coordinate four service areas including

family support programs to increase family well-being, family

preservation services for families with children at risk of

maltreatment or those with disabilities, reunification services for

families with children in out-of-home placement, and adoption

promotion and support services.

PSSF is funded by a formula grant and requires a 25 percent

non-federal match to draw down the federal funds. The General

Fund appropriation provides the match for the portion of the

funds that are used to support state-level staff and data collection

activities, and the cash funds represent the in-kind and

non-federal funds that the local counties provide as a match for

the funds they receive.

Ages served: Families with children under 18

COLORADO CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION TRUST FUND (CAPTF)

The Fund focuses on efforts to strengthen families before the first

occurrence of child maltreatment. It is currently supporting child

sexual abuse prevention training to advance child sexual abuse

21 of 24



prevention across the state through training, technical assistance,

coalition building, and public awareness. Starting in 2022 the Trust

Fund is statutorily designated to pool reimbursement from federal

Title IV-E funds for Family First Prevention Services. These funds

will be granted to increase capacity across the state to offer

family support services listed on the family First Clearinghouse.

The Governor’s Colorado Child Abuse Prevention Trust Fund Board

will advise the program on the best use for the pooled funds.

Funds derived from the Colorado Child Abuse Prevention Trust

Fund created in 19-3.5-106(1), C.R.S. (2021) are allocated with

advisement from the Governor-appointed seventeen-member

Colorado Child Abuse Prevention Trust Fund Board to local

organizations to prevent the abuse and neglect of Colorado's

children. Line item funding also supports the costs of state staff

responsible for oversight and administration of the trust fund.

Cash funds from divorce docket fees will be expended toward

primary child abuse prevention strategies with two priorities

identified in the statute: child sexual abuse prevention and the

prevention of drug-exposed newborns. H.B. 18-1064 added a

requirement to utilize additional state funds for a training

program to prevent child sexual abuse. Due to the COVID-19

pandemic, General Fund for this purpose was removed starting in

FY 2020-21 though the mandate to provide the training remains in

statute.

H.B. 21-1248 added a new sub-account to the Trust Fund starting

FY 2021-22 that will receive and pool federal Title IV-E claiming

reimbursement for state investment in prevention services named

on the Family First Prevention Services Act Clearinghouse. The

Colorado Child Abuse Prevention Trust Fund Board will establish

priorities to build capacity for more prevention services across the

state that will guide the Department in releasing solicitations to

22 of 24



local organizations implmenting programs on the same

Clearinghouse.

FEDERAL COMMUNITY BASED CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION (CBCAP)

The Federal formula funding for community based child abuse

prevention, from Part II of the Child Abuse Prevention and

Treatment Act, supports strategies to keep families strong from

the start so they don't ever need to touch the child welfare

system. The program funds counties to create local child abuse

prevention plans and awards five year grants to some of these

communities to implement parts of their action plans. The

program also supports: the Colorado Partnership for Thriving

Families collaboration, parent leadership and other OEC parent

voice efforts, expansion of Circle of Fathers, implementation of

Family Connects in Colorado, the biennial Strengthening Colorado

Families and Communities conference and professional

development, data system maintenance and enhancements, public

awareness efforts, and statewide efforts to change community

norms around social connections for families.

Ages served: Professionals and families with children under 18

Operations

Finance and

Contracts

The Division of Operations includes the OEC’s contract and finance

teams.

23 of 24



Directors

Office

The Director’s Office includes teams that support cross-office

work in the OEC: communications, strategy, IT, and policy, as well

as the Preschool Development Grant, the Early Childhood

Leadership Commission and the OEC Family Voice Council.

Federal funds

from

Preschool

Development

Grant

=  Convene workgroup to create transition plan with key counties and other key stakeholders

24 of 24



l

  Establish

Pain points
+ Gain Points

Provider Workshop 
solution ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps

I have a weekly conversation 
with myself, "Is this really worth 
it?"

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

A sense of a lack of 
humanity in the ECE 
system...examples, 

children aren't 
referred to as such

Grateful for choices in 
selecting a curriculum 

(e.g. STEM focused)

Providers

Unlicensed childcare centers 
have a hard time getting 
insurance because they 

aren't a part of CO Shines

Private centers have to pay 
property taxes unlike 

public schools

Disconnect in 
understanding by school 
districts of the purpose of 

pre- school

Lack of access to 
affordable commercial 

spaces

Public assistance funding 
covering speech therapy 

and related social services

Blending non- subsidized 
and subsidized children in 
the same classroom in HS 

schools

Public/private sector 
collaboration to solve problems 

that impact providers and 
businesses who need their 

people to get to work

STEM- focused curriculum

Create interoperable 
database systems that 

share while secure data

Frustrated that the 
whole ECE system 

seems to be a mess

Trapped and stressed 
by Colorado Shines 

requirements

Frightened that 
nothing is really going 

to change after the 
transition

Distrustful of a system 
labeled "universal"

Children should be in an 
authentic, organic environment. Our goal is to have a warm, 

loving, nurturing environment 
for getting ready for 
kindergarten.

Teaching children executive 
function which is a learning 

curve that can be more easily 
managed across levels

Grateful for Colorado 
Children's Campaign's 

help

Inject the voice of experts or 
known voices in the community 
to assist with policy, rules, new 
forms, etc.

Frustrated that 
"outdoor space" 

requirements aren't 
realistic

Passionate about the 
opportunity to shape 
children's early years 
and support families 

towards success

Unsure of where to 
begin...feels daunting

Challenged to find the 
right location that fits 

in the budget

Dismayed by the 
remodeling costs of 
location in order to 
get the space up to 

code

Nervous about 
missing a rule or 
regulations while 
creating center

Themes

Feeling unrepresented 
on the ECLC

Excited that center is 
ready for the children

Having a seat at the table helps 
implement change.

Desiring  a location 
that enables an 

environment that is 
safe and reflects the 

needs of the students

Every single time we enter a 
new landscape, feels like we're 
starting over

Lack of attention to 
localization creates a 
sense of "otherness"

Comprehending information requires 
determination, lots of time, ability to 

multitask on a computer (not to mention 
multitasking/juggling external influences), 
and general higher level of technical acuity

If I had known what this system 
was like, I would not be in this 
business."

Resources/Interactions

 Emotions (Large scale)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Encouraged by ability 
to collaborate across 

the industry with 
other major providers

Angry that ECE is the 
forgotten child of 

education system in 
America

Angry that the voice 
of the status quo is 
too strong and that 
they will dig their 
heels in to protect 

what they have

Frustrated by a 
system that is meant 
to focus on outcomes 

for children and 
families but doesn't 

even do so in a human 
way

Frustrated that 
"outdoor space" 

requirements aren't 
realistic

 Hopeful when seeking 
locations that 

reinforce ethos and 
enable pedagogy

Dismayed by the 
remodeling costs of 
location in order to 
get the space up to 

code

Excited that another 
center is ready for the 

children

Anticipating another 
volley of challenges as 

new markets are 
penetrated

One of the reasons there aren't 
more child care center opening 
is because it's so difficult to get 
through the inconsistent 
process.

Opening a center in a new 
county is literally like starting 
over from scratch.

Data is aggregated by race and 
enthnicity in order to focus on 
"best" data points

Small Provider Large Provider

Funding priority is given to 
district run programs.

Redundant processes impact 
resources which impacts 

ability to pay teachers better 
and provide more slots

Duplication of efforts is highly 
related to differing data 

privacy regulations between 
agencies and programs.

Stronger networking 
between providers and 

State employees / 
decision- makers

Clearer appeals process 
for CO Shines ratings

Sliding cost scale for 
families that don't qualify 

for CCCAP

Gov't partners want to take control 
and lead which doesn't work for 
community- based orgs who are 

tapped into community and driven 
by community priorities

Shift new State agency to 
shared services structure so 

it's easier for families and 
providers to use the system

Give providers a vision 
of the process to move 

families through the 
system

Match funding 
streams to the 

vision

Create regulations 
and guardrails that 

are practical

Support FFNs to 
make it a reality

Leverage private sector 
collaboration to help solve 

ECE problems together - It's 
an economic development 
and workforce issue too.

Identify a good 
example of ECE and 

democratize it through 
the new Department

Outdoor space 
requirements

Cost and delays 
related to fire 

department permits

Lack of available and 
cost effective 

commercial real estate

Cost of remodeling 
spaces to meet 

licensing requirements

Cost of property taxes which 
reduces ability to compete 

with public schools who don't 
have to pay taxes

Learn and test what works 
in each school and then 

release the information to 
inform others

Get parents the tools 
they need to advocate 
for their children at the 

school level

Disrupt and transform 
the norms in early 

generations to create a 
new cycle of opportuniy

Finder navigators in 
local communities 

(preferably in ECCs) to 
walk programs through 

the establish phase 
without cost to them

Workshop 1

smaller scale providers 
reaching out to larger 

scale providers for 
guidance and 

assistance

Workshop 1

Increase CCCAP 
support - support from 

city and county 
commissioners

lll

Workshop 1

Creating that one stop 
shop- licensing expert, 
grant writer, teacher 

pool, professional 
development guide, 

new hire guide...

Workshop 1

visual process mapping

Workshop 1

The time it takes for 
potential providers to 
get permits/approvals 

from the city limits 
those who can afford 

to open a center.

Workshop 1

Shared service 
providers could be 

beneficial in 
streamlining the 

process and reducing 
some of the 

Workshop 1

Access to business 
people to support new 
programs that may not 
have all that expertise.

Workshop 1

Real estate 
partnerships with 

affordable housing 
developers

Workshop 1

Take the burden off 
educators and support 
establishment so they 

can focus on the 
children and the why of 

their work

Workshop 1

Partnerships with 
institutions of higher 

Ed to train ECE 
teachers qualified to 

teach specific 
pedagogies

Workshop 1

Consistent training for 
licensing specialists whose 
advice/compliance is based 
on current regs.  Alignment 
of various standards.  Start 

up funding.

Workshop 1

Easier streamline. One 
general area to 

complete requirements

Regulations Workshop 1

house rules in one 
place

Regulations Workshop 1

Zoning guidance 
alignment

Capital funding

Regulations Workshop 1

Licensing coaching 
rather than 
inspections.

Regulations Workshop 1

Department regulations 
aren’t as much of a 

problem as local cost for 
land and buildings, the 

availability of buildings, and 
local land- use process 
those things can take 

years.

Regulations Workshop 1

Assemble regulations 
in one place with 

sufficient support to 
understand them.

Regulations Workshop 1

Standardize licensing 
specialists’ approach to 

requirements

Regulations Workshop 1

Help regulators allow 
for flexibility and 
individualization.  

Licensing agents on the 
ground- the initial 
communicator can 

Regulations Workshop 1

coaching

Regulations Workshop 1

CCR&R agencies could 
be the hub to develop 

local streamlined 
pathway to establishing 

a program and then 
providing ta and 

Regulations Workshop 1

Funding opportunities 
for capital campaign

Regulations Workshop 1

Create a road map for 
new providers to get 

from point a to point b

Regulations Workshop 1

Licensing and Council 
folks could get involved 
sooner to help support 

new programs.

Regulations Workshop 1

Child care supply and demand data sets

Business advisor
Teaching staff
Pro- bono law firm
Teaching staff
Real estate agent
Construction company
Lenders
Fire department
Parents
Potential employers sponsors

Experienced board members
Local CCR&R agency
Owner's representatives
Other current licensed programs
Licensing specialists
Architect/interior design firms
Early childhood councils
Accountants
Lawyers
Peers

Gratitude for all the 
support we are given 
by many allies when 

you are able to access 
the "right" 

connections

What time crunches or 
time constraints exist? I'm 
not sure?

Concern for the 
unknown future

Lack of trust of regulatory 
agencies impacts journey from 
the start.

Anxiety stemming 
from the 

unpredictability of the 
opening timeline and 
the factors out of our 

control

The ongoing complication and 
workload of applying for 
funding support via grants and 
OEC while struggling to handle 
staffing challenges and actually 
caring for children. Jumping 
through hoops constantly.

I think it’s Rhode Island 
that is providing $50K 
in start up funds for 
new ECE programs 

statewide. That would 
be a huge help here.

Workshop 1

Access to behavior 
support teams and 

resources for 
children that the 

school districts have

Workshop 1

In terms of public private 
partnerships, more 

opportunities to 
collaborate with affordable 
housing developers on the 

creation of new centers.

Workshop 1

Often early childhood programs 
do not get the information that 

they need. Possibly because they 
don’t have a strong counsel or 

they don’t have strong 
communication with that 

counsel. Colorado has capacity 
building grants right now for up 

to $50,000.

Workshop 1

 Emotions (FFN)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Target cc 
deserts and 
partner to 
address

Workshop 1

Partner providers 
with one- on- one 
coaches/mentor

ll

Workshop 1

Fund local community- based 
centers as well as providers so 

they can collectively work to 
provide better care - if we 

continue to encourage families 
to take kids out of their 

communities for care, this 
fosters segregation and 

"otherness"

Workshop 1

Let’s get some business 
savvy systems people in 

there  (state, county, 
wherever “there” is) to 

design the systems — all 
systems!  Who is designing 

these systems?

Workshop 1

Potential small- scale providers who 
are passionate about child care don't 

open new centers due to lack of 
workforce, not enough resources to 
cover overhead including liability 

insurance

Make it easier for 
retired truck drives 

to complete the 
federal application 
to become school 

bus drivers

Rural

In order to CCCAP, you basically 
have to live in a box.

Disappointed that 
they don't have the 

money for the 
overhead costs like 

enough space or 
resources to buy 

required materials.

Uncertain of what's 
required to get 

licensed

Desire to take care of 
kids so parents can 
work and educate 

their children

We are all working together to 
create something big.

There is something profoundly 
clear for us - we want the best 
for our kids.

We are not just waiting for 
someone to give it to us; we are 
making it happen on our own.

We have [our] model copied in 
other communities, and we 
want our legislators to know 
that.

The community is part of this - 
not separate. This could be like 
a magnet so members of the 
community could come.

We want to break the cycle of 
families not seeing the value of 
ECE. That's the way to educate 
parents.

Frustrated that the 
Federal government 

talks about child care 
and preschool, but 

they are only talking 
about infrastructure

Afraid of consequences to 
immigration status in the 
future if opening a center 
prior to citizenship - is it 

even possible?

Proud of the value 
we're bringing to our 

parents and the 
community

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few 
user 

reports

Large Provider
Multiple locations 
with large student 
bodies

Small Provider
Typically one location 
with capacity of 100 
students or less

Emotional Journey Dots

Provider Size

Resources

People/agencies/social 
groups used during 

journey

Websites/technology 
used during journey

6 mos. - 1 year
Average amount of time 
each month spent on 
opening a center



Pain points
+ Gain Points

Provider Workshop 
solution ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps   Licensing

Do regulations 
matter if nobody 
enforces them??

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Thwarted at every 
move because 

licensing 
requirements are a 

moving target

Providers

Redundant regulatory 
systems between between 

traditional licensing and 
Montessori validation project

Curriculum that isn't 
developmentally 

appropriate created to 
appease regulations

Lack of coordination across 
departments

Expert, front- line provider 
voices aren't integrated 
into the policy and rule- 

making.

Having connections at the 
State is critical for getting a 

center open.

Review processes that take 
so long they don't happen 
before the review period 

ends

Integrating Montessori 
validation project into the 
holistic licensing process

Make navigating the 
licensing process easier 

but retain rigor

Knowing what to expect as 
a provider instead of 

always being in reaction 
mode

Have one place with all 
specifications, 

requirements, etc.

Considering policy and 
regulation from a child's 

perspective

Licensing inspectors who 
are interested in seeing 
providers thrive, not just 

meet minimum standards.

There are a lot of unwritten 
rules that you don't know about 
until you get written up for it.

Unsure if licensing 
agent is there to help 

or harass provider

Background checks can 
take 6-9 months

`The regulations are impossible 
to operationalize.

A lot of the regulations seem to 
come out of the Denver Metro 
area. It's not fair to rural 
providers.

Proactively explain to 
providers how new/changing 
regulations will impact them 

specifically

Colorado Shines website 
isn't very helpful

Confident that, although 
it's a lot of work, most of 

what is asked of providers 
is a good thing overall (e.g. 

inequity classes)

Grateful to have a 
local ECE Council to 

reach out to for 
support

Ready for the next 
hurdle - licensing 

process

Concerned about how 
make center's 

pedagogy work with 
the licensing 

requirements for class 
size and makeup

Trepidation about 
what might be next 

after all the licensing 
work when the center 

isn't even open yet.

Themes

Colorado Shines tied in 
with licensing. Without 
license, difficult to get 

insurance.

Very confusing to get 
licensed

Licensing needs to check 
credentials of teachers, even 

if teachers are the same since 
the last licensing process.

Sometimes our licensing 
contact isn't even sure of the 
current rules.

I like to know what to expect, 
instead of just reacting to 
things.

Everytime licensing comes out, 
they need to see the credentials 
of every teacher, even if it's the 
same teachers since the last 
licensing process.

Every new place to expand to 
has different requirements, 

resources, contacts, 
information, different ways to 
go through licensing hurdles

Passive ignorance of 
rules and regulations 
breeds contempt for 
those that create 

them

Materials, policies, 
requirements, laws/bills, 

documentation, links are not 
always obvious and seem biased 
to English speakers/readers

Policy and process decisions 
aren't collaborative with 

front- line workers

It would make sense if your 
licensing instructor were 
actually interested in helping 
you to improve processes and 
overcome obstacles.

Resources/Interactions

 Emotions (Large scale)

We're NAEYC accredited. 
Why not set that as the 
gold standard that is 
broadly accepted?

?

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Frustrated by lack of 
overall trust between 

providers and 
regulators

Grateful for 
connections at the 

State level who helped 
accelerate timelines 

and overcome barriers

Ready to tackle 
licensing process for 

new center

Confused by how 
make pedagogy work 

with the licensing 
requirements for class 

sizes and makeup

Without leveraging the 
relationships I've cultivated at 
the State, I wouldn't be open 
right now. The system isn't 
intuitive and doesn't match the 
reality of the provider.

Helpful having 
relationships at the 
State level to be on 

the front end of 
decision making

Challenged by the 
amount of 

relationship capital is 
needed to navigate 

specific 
occurrences/needs 

Thrilled if got license 
on first try

We only got there and passed 
on the first try because we had 
so many resources and a 
helpful network.

Frustrated when I 
can't apply for 
subsidies until 

licensed but can't 
apply for license until 

have a location

Allow teacher leaders to serve 
as experts on licensing and 
public subsidies for new 
teachers joining.

Annoyed by so many 
rules and regulation 
changing on the fly 

"If you're a teacher leader and 
you're navigating this on your 
own, you have limited 
resources as this is not your 
day to day"

Processes are siloed 
and redundant because 

stakeholders don't 
trust others with their 

data

Small Provider

Head Start child: room 
ratios are difficult to 

implement

CPP classroom limits that 
don't align with valid 

curriculum

Siloed communication 
channels at the State

Make the licensing 
process/requirements 

consistent across counties

Identify if the difference 
between "breaking the 

law" v. a gap in how things 
are enforced.

Having a conversation with 
the Colorado Shines agent 

v. just reviewing 
paperwork

Large Provider

Colorado Shines

seriously streamline 
the background check 
process and make it 

clearly explained

Regulations Workshop 1

strengthen early childhood 
councils to be able to 

provide information either 
in person or through the 

website to people.. *FINISH

Regulations Workshop 1

clearer expectations, 
smoother transitions

Regulations Workshop 1

send out check lists 
periodically to self 

assess

Regulations Workshop 1

one on one mentoring 
with other providers

Workshop 1

improve hiring and 
training of licensing 

agents
ll

Workshop 1

streamlined support 
system for all providers

Workshop 1

one- stop shop, same as 
in establish category

ll

Workshop 1

spend time at a center 
and in classroom to 

really understand the 
barriers of the 

regulations

Regulations Workshop 1

Deep dive into the 
reasoning/intent behind 
each regulation vs the 

impact on children, 
educators and the program 

as a whole. Reduce 
redundancy and streamline 

from there.

Regulations Workshop 1

Align regs from all 
programs that could be 

included in the new 
system, including 

federal regs.

Regulations Workshop 1

Build a department 
that would assist 

organizations with 
licensing requirements.

Regulations Workshop 1

Collaborating with 
public health, fire, 

building inspectors in 
process

Regulations Workshop 1

Training on sections of 
rules and regs

Regulations Workshop 1

Making sure that 
Licensing folks had the 
same information as a 
Colorado Shines and 
PDIS people, they are 

so often just not on the 

Regulations Workshop 1

Providing 
demographics to help 
with community need

Regulations Workshop 1

Licensing should not be 
part of councils, they 
are strictly regulatory 

and councils need to be 
supportive.

ll

Regulations Workshop 1

Agree on one set of 
stds for each age group 

and then apply to 
funding streams

Regulations Workshop 1

Don’t make us have to 
double check the 

accuracy of what the 
licensing specialist says

Regulations Workshop 1

Various associations
Contacts at EPIC
Students
Teaching staff
Contacts at the State
Funding Partners
Elsa at DPP
CDHS - Office of Early Childhood
Clayton Early Learning

Early Childhood Councils
Licensing representative
Co. Shines
Colleagues
Other providers
Other agency contacts

Early Childhood Council

Time allotments and on 
going communication

Workshop 1

“Mock” licensing visits 
from new department 
to prepare providers 

for actual visits.

Workshop 1

ECE background 
required for licensing 

specialist

Workshop 1

Rewarding licensing 
specialists for strong 

partnerships with 
providers- creating a 

culture where they want to 
see providers do well!

ll

Workshop 1

Professional 
development for 

licensing specialists 
that emphasize 

collaboration and being 
willing/able to answer 

Workshop 1

Financial Support for the 
founder - creating a new 
small program is full time 
and it’s hard to keep a job 

and create a program.  
Entrepreneurial skills 

required as well.

Workshop 1

Lack of empathy towards 
current community needs and 
situations

Disempowered when 
realizing that you 

can’t serve the 
number of students 
you need to serve to 

be true to your 
pedagogy and make 

your budget work

If I did not pass 
license inspection 
what to do next??

There has been a great deal of 
uncertainty about what’s going 
to change next with Licensing, 
with Colorado shines. This just 
adds to that stress level for 
many directors and teachers.

The licensing journey is 
ongoing, relevant beyond 
getting started

Scholarships for 
continued 

education for 
more qualified 

staff.

Workshop 1

Statewide system 
streamlining/requirem
ent determination with 
local implementation 

mapping lead by 
Councils.

Workshop 1

School district 
involvement to 

validate but 
not dictate.

Workshop 1

One barrier is the 
perception that ECE 

teachers aren’t 
professionals and don’t 

have appropriate 
credentials to teach young 

children.

Workshop 1

l

 Emotions (FFN)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Perception that CO 
Shines curriculum 

requirements don’t 
meet the needs of all 
children at all levels

Fearful due to ratings being 
inconsistent because of one bad day 

of observation in the classroom - 
could lose over $200k annually 

overnight if your rating drops - no 
backup system

Perceptions that CO Shines is 
a chicken before the egg; in 
order to get better funding, 
you must rate higher, but in 

order to rate higher you need 
more money to spend on 

professional development Annoyed by redundancies in 
the regulatory systems. For 

example, auditing 
immunizations

What do I do? Colorado Shines tells 
me I need art on the walls, but then 
the fire department says the art 
must come down because it's a fire 
hazard. So, I put it up for one and 
then take it down the next week for 
the other.”

?

Desire to get licensed 
so parents will pay 

more than minimum 
(avg. $20/day)

Afraid due to lack of social 
security number

Frustrated by courses in 
licensing are only provided in 

English

Preference for paper 
application for license

Excited to learn about the 
Colorado Statewide Parent 

Coalition (PASO), which 
provides training without a 

license

Excited to learn that there 
are Spanish- language 

certification courses at the 
local community college

10 hours
Average amount of time 
each month spent on 
licensing tasks

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few 
user 

reports

Large Provider
Multiple locations 
with large student 
bodies

Small Provider
Typically one location 
with capacity of 100 
students or less

Emotional Journey Dots

Provider Size

Resources

People/agencies/social 
groups used during 

journey

Websites/technology 
used during journey



Pain points
+ Gain Points

Provider Workshop 
solution ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps   Recruiting teachers

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Providers

Teacher background 
checks are required in 

every state in which the 
teacher has lived

Teacher apply but decline 
positions due to level of 

responsibility

Inability to recruit and 
retain teachers due to low 
pay, low respect, high level 

of regulation

Limited growth 
opportunity for teachers

Schools with higher CCCAP 
slots have higher teacher 

turnover

Balancing qualification 
with need when 

determining slots

Competition with school 
districts for teachers

Consolidated background 
check process for teachers

Career path for teachers 
who do not have an 

undergraduate degree

Greater level of dignity 
given to providers and 

teachers

Asking teachers and staff 
what they recommend to 
improve job satisfaction

Offering teachers benefits 
through the county

Offering teachers free child 
care

ECE and university 
collaboration to provide 

teacher and parent 
education resources

Spending thousands of 
dollars per month and 

crazy amount of time on 
recruiting

Being forced to reduce 
hours because don't have 
enough teacher coverage

My goal is to collaborate with 
another ECE program in order to 
share teachers.

We are constantly recruiting 
qualified staff. We have other 
goals, but that is the primary 
thing that allows us to work 
towards other goals.

Ready to find the right 
staff!

Frustrated by inability 
to hire qualified 

teachers asking for a 
budget- friendly salary

Afraid of the cost to 
recruit talent with 

little return on 
investment

Angry about struggle 
to compete with what 

the school districts 
are able to pay

Concerned that the 
teachers that were so 

hard to hire won't 
stay

Frustrated by the 
amount of time and 
energy teachers are 

spending getting 
certified

Although PDIS 
requirements are a 

lot, grateful to know 
staff will provide the 
best experience for 

students

Open the doors!

Themes

Providers can't compete 
with the pay and pace of 

public schools.

Teachers feel disrespected 
and overworked . . . so they 

quit

A lack of available 
teachers is an acute, 

critical threat to ECE

Resources/Interactions

 Emotions (Large scale)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Happy to find 
additional staff

Concerned about 
finding qualified, 

affordable teachers 

Worried about 
keeping staff

Excited to teach, open 
the doors! Excited to have more 

teacher- leaders 
opening  new school 

locations within 
Montessori umbrella

Scared that the State 
will require 

undergraduate 
degrees for teachers

Anxious about high 
teacher turnover - 

especially senior staff

Daunted by needing to 
raise money just to 

attract new teachers

Confused about how 
to recruit and retain 
qualified staff  and 

enabling them to work 
towards other goals.

People don't give you money 
without a list of a bunch of 
things to do.

During Covid recovery, money 
isn't as lush as people are more 
busy.

This would be really limiting to 
the field. It would limit access 
to care and would disregard a 
lot of people currently in the 
workforce.

Requiring degrees for 
teachers disregards the 
existing workforce and 

limits entry of new 
teachers.

Small Provider

Some aspects of the CO 
Shines assessment 

incentivize teachers to get 
a low rating

Pre- K teachers are 
excluded from teacher's 

unions

Provide mental health 
support to teachers

Establish ECE as a "real" 
profession not just 

babysitting

Statewide awareness 
campaign to promote ECE 

teaching as a respected 
and valuable profession

FFNs not acknowledged 
due to complications with 
licensing undocumented 

providers

UPK rollout to address teacher 
housing, compensation, 

professional development, and 
PTO (availability of substitute 

teachers)

Large Provider

Other providers

Community leaders

Funders

Current teaching staff

Colorado Shines

LinkedIn

Indeed

PDIS

COPA

The definition of 'quality' should 
be what's in the best interest of 
the individual child.

We do our best to make sure 
our workforce is somewhat 
reflective of the families we 
serve.

My goal is to collaborate with 
another ECE program in order 
to share teachers.

Admin staff

We really need to 
innovate staffing 

patterns that work for 
teachers and meet the 
needs of children and 

families.

Workshop 1

I think it would be great to 
find a way to connect both 

home providers and 
center- based programs 

with each other because I 
think that’s where a lot of 

support can happen as 
well.

Workshop 1

Collecting Exit 
interviews from many 

programs to get info on 
why teachers are 

leaving the field in 
droves

Workshop 1

I think we’ll need to get 
really creative about 
how and where we 

recruit potential early 
childhood teachers.

Workshop 1

Dependable work 
schedules regardless of 

attendance.

Workshop 1

Concerned about 
programming because 
we don't have enough 

staff

The joy of finding 
classroom staff that 
are dedicated to the 

well being of the 
children regardless of 

pay.

Let down, no one 
wants to work. limited 

hiring pools

Teachers don’t feel appreciated 
or even seen, some teachers 
have been told that they should 
get a real job

We need to find a better way to 
compensate our staff.

we have programs in our area 
that are not fully enrolled 
because we don't have staff. 
we don't have staff because 
they can't afford housing

recruiting 
teachers 

through positive 
PR. marketing

Workshop 1

New state 
department should 
offer CDA training 

free of cost to 
individuals looking 
to enter ECE field.

Workshop 1

 Emotions (FFN)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Funding Earn and Learn 
models that allow 

professionals to become 
credentialed through tasks 
that take place during their 

work day.  Also 
competencies signed off on 

by coaches...

Workshop 1

We could work with local 
partners including high school 

students that may not be college 
bound, and would make very 

good early childhood teachers. 
This also might attract a more 
diverse population to work in 

early childhood programs.

Workshop 1

Professional 
development for all 
early childhood staff 
should be available 

with college credit, for 
very low or no cost.

Workshop 1

We are starting a pilot program 
with our local community college 

to offer ECE classes during the 
workday at the workplace, with 

release time paid by the 
employer for an hour and a half 

each week. The goal is to get 
everyone to early childhood 

teacher qualified.

Workshop 1

Higher education 
credits for ECE teachers

UW

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few 
user 

reports

Large Provider
Multiple locations 
with large student 
bodies

Small Provider
Typically one location 
with capacity of 100 
students or less

Emotional Journey Dots

Provider Size

Resources

People/agencies/social 
groups used during 

journey

Websites/technology 
used during journey



Include parents' 
expectations as a selection 

criteria.

Programs become 
segregated by access due 

to geography and 
transportation

Speak in simple language 
that families of all types 

can understand

Barriers for undocumented workers 
include location, cost, language, white- 

centric nature, complex 
applications/application process, lack of 
awareness of support, business hours of 
care centers, general quality issues FFN 

providers

Managing CPP slots is 
difficult because it must go 
through the school district

Allowing providers to focus 
on staff, family, and child 

outcomes v. funding 
structures

Universal, scalable 
blend/braid funding 

models

Ensuring we aren't double- 
dipping into funding 

streams

Access and equity issues with 
parents having to keep track of 
all the programs and providers 

need to braid a child care 
solution for their family

Difficulty 
balancing/calculation 

risk factors to 
determine funding

Bring funding streams 
together to figure out 

which ones actually work

Take a market- based solution to 
ensure funding sources more 
closely match the market (e.g. 

attendance tracking that aligns the 
hours a provider supports to when 

parents actually work

Define the funding model 
at the State level first, and 
then providers can figure 

out how to fund it.

Pain points
+ Gain Points

Provider Workshop 
solution ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps   Funding/enrollment

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Providers

Montessori isn't a category 
accounted for in CO Shines

It's easy to fake out CO 
Shines rating process now 

that it's virtual (fake 
photos/videos, etc.)

Getting families to be 
honest about risk factors 

that inform funding 
qualification

Figuring out CO Shines 
rating system

Three different ways to get 
rated by CO Shines

Remove CCCAP requirement 
from many grants that would 
serve parents that fall in the 

qualification gap

Streamline the risk factor 
assessment and criteria to 

make it easier to select 
admits

Make bilingual teachers a 
part of requirements for 

funding streams?

CCCAP is a mess

I don't think families are aware 
what Colorado Shines 
necessarily means.

Concerned that the 
rollout of UPK will 

mean all funding will 
now flow through 

school districts

Troubled by students 
being referred tp as 

"slots" or "ratios"

Afraid that rural areas 
don't have a fighting 

chance for equal 
funding opportunities

Motivated to create a 
diverse classroom 
where everyone is 

respected and 
appreciated.

We really strive to practice 
listening, respecting, and 
honoring this age group.

Create a space that is 
welcoming and aesthetically 
matches children.

Once I'm in the door with 
funders, I know I can count on 
them.

Leverage grant- writing 
department within local 
colleges as a contact to 
support ECE providers. They 
can bring up opportunities for 
us.

Families prioritize comfort and 
accessibility over ratings.

I want to make sure all families 
feel welcome. 

We try our best to make sure 
our workforce is somewhat 
reflective of the families we 
serve.

Enable flexible schedules 
for shift workers

Difficult to determine budget 
when funding is tied to 

attendance but providers 
can't anticipate how often 

children will come to school

It's difficult when funding goes 
through the schools because 
priority is given to district- run 
programs.

Reassured that UPK 
passed and hopeful 

that the State better 
understands the 

difference

Overwhelmed by 
navigating funding 

streams/processes . . . 
could use a full- time 

employee

Desire for diverse center 
encourages taking 

advantage of all the 
great opportunities 

available

Confused over how to 
create a model that 

covers the bills and is 
fair to families

Uncertain how to 
budge when 

funding/payment is 
tied to attendance but 

can't predict 
attendance

Considering getting 
out of this business 

due to the 
overwhelming stress

Overwhelmed by 
volume of family 

applications

Grateful for the 
amount of funding 

options for students

Lost as to how to 
blend and braid the 
funding streams to 

cover costs

Considering having to 
focus on getting 

students/families that 
can pay cash.

Disbelief that the 10 
hours per week that 

UPK covers won't 
make a difference

Themes

We hear a lot about Colorado 
getting a lot of funding, but we 
haven't seen a lick of it.

Montessori doesn't use 
CCCAP as a primary funding 
stream, but if they don't sign 

up for CCCAP, they lose 
eligibility for certain grants.

Smaller schools may omit 
supporting HS due to 

difficulty supporting ratios

Departmental 
representatives aren't clear 

on defined processes, 
procedures, rules, or 

regulations

Children are often 
referred to as slots or 

ratios

Blending and braiding 
needs a more universal, 

scalable solution

Providers are fully focused 
on creating classrooms 
that drive outcomes for 

families

Resources/Interactions

 Emotions (Large scale)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Once I'm in the door with 
funders, I know I can count on 
them.

Relieved that UPK 
passed which 

hopefully means ECE 
is going to be taken 

seriously

Anxious about 
creating a model that 

meets the needs of 
families Overwhelmed by 

volume of family 
applicants

Confident in 
demographics and 

work towards 
enabling self sufficient 

families so they can 
grow

Pleased that the 
breadth of funding 
streams supports 

diverse sets of 
families

Angry about the need 
for multiple full- time 

employees just to 
keep up with all the 

funding issues

During lockdown for COVID, 
funders were generous.

Higher Colorado Shines ratings 
give you a higher chance of 
funding.

Poverty as the primary 
indicator of eligibility is 
ridiculous.

If we kept one thing about the 
current ECE experience, it 
would be the
demographic and families we 
serve because we know its 
most important for
families to have self sufficiency 
so they can grow.

Sure, Colorado Shines gets you 
higher CCCAP rates, but it is 
tedious, time consuming, and 
tricky

It's difficult to make changes to 
group size limits and ratios - a 
lot of holding patterns.

If we changed one thing, I 
would want it to be the funding 
structure so it would allow me 
to better focus on the children 
and families.

Sense of 
accomplishment when 

able to provide 
families accessible 

and flexibility

Families that get accepted at 
the district might not take the 
spot because it doesn't match 
their schedule.

Every dollar I have to spend on 
admin takes away that dollar 
from teacher salaries and 
outcomes for families and 
children.

I have 4 FTEs in my accounting 
department just to manage 
funding issues.

Systems are not architected to 
be interoperable in a manner 

that enables secure sharing of 
mutually necessary data

Small Provider Large Provider

Other providers

Community leaders

Funders

Current teaching staff

Colorado Shines

Government sites

Grant sites

Teacher resource groupsGrant writers

Families

Students

The most frustrating part of 
this process is keeping a 
diverse classroom.

Local district

A goal for our center is If family 
has one sibling that's older, they 
can come to the same center to 
avoid making the family 
enroll/travel to multiple places

Accounting

special regulations for 
smaller providers that 

are under a certain 
child cap

Regulations Workshop 1

PPOR for pre school 
established by count 

date?

Regulations Workshop 1

increase CCCAP group 
size if it does not align 

with pedagogy

Regulations Workshop 1

remove or greatly 
expand the CPP group 

size limit

Regulations Workshop 1

Having a consistent 
funding stream to 

support the backbone 
of the program and not 

consistently worry 
about enrollment

Regulations Workshop 1

The first step could be that 
all of the funding folks 
agree on what quality 

ratios in group size look 
like so you’re not always 

caught in the middle of that 
one.

Regulations Workshop 1

Expand class size limits 
to be inclusive of 

pedagogy with multi 
age classrooms

Regulations Workshop 1

It does seem like the rest of 
the world has easily used 

apps for accepting 
payments. I’ll bet we could 
learn some thing from all 

of the restaurants and folks 
that tap in to their iPads.

Regulations Workshop 1

Child care funded as a 
public good.

Regulations Workshop 1

Stop having different 
rules for different 
funding streams

Regulations Workshop 1

We should be able to 
agree on what’s good 
for kids and have one 

set of rules

Regulations Workshop 1

Make application to 
become a CCAP site much 

simpler.  Be aware that 
Head Start is a viable 

funding partner even if it 
doesn’t go thru the state.  

Streamline various 
program regulations:

Regulations Workshop 1

I like the comment about 
multi age classrooms and I 

think that goes to being 
able to have a dialogue 

with licensing and 
regulatory folks.

Regulations Workshop 1

More funding available for low 
income families who do not 

qualify for CCAP

Workshop 1

It would be great if all the 
different funding streams could 

at least have one common 
application, and maybe there’s 

even somebody through the 
council or local coaching agency 

that can help families and 
programs fill out the paperwork

Workshop 1

Tuition amounts matching 
economy

Workshop 1

Confused, frustrated 
when losing flexibility 
in programming when 

accepting federal 
funds

Not understanding all of the 
resources available

We have programs in our area 
that are not fully enrolled 
because we don't have staff. 
we don't have staff because 
they can't afford housing

Councils and local agencies 
that work with councils 
could also have more 

support with staffing and 
funding to help navigate 

for families and for 
programs.

Workshop 1

school districts and 
counties should be 
involved, but they 
should not be the 

funders.

Workshop 1

School districts often think 
that the money is theirs. 

They may or may not 
answer to their local 

community. Even with CPP 
councils the administration 
may not take that seriously.

Workshop 1

We need to strengthen 
early childhood councils 

make sure they have 
funding and staff to 

implement this. They 
should be a critical part of 

this system.

Workshop 1

 Emotions (FFN)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Have mixed 
income levels 
in classrooms

Workshop 1

I second the 
allocation of 

supplemental funds 
to smaller providers 

with limited 
resources.

Workshop 1

Equal opportunities 
for all children and 
families regardless 

of location, risk 
factors and income 

levels.

Workshop 1

Having one central 
place for all funding 
streams, CPP, CCAP 

with same 
guidelines in place

Workshop 1

With UPK, the 
funding level to 

providers should be 
state driven, not 

thru school districts

Workshop 1

Minimize admin 
levels in funding 
so more goes to 
providers and 

children

Workshop 1

We could make funding 
payments available at the 
beginning of each month 
or quarter, netting out for 

the next quarter. This word 
alleviate a lot of cash flow 

issues.

Workshop 1

Embrace Head 
Start on a state 

and local level as 
a funding a 

program partner

Workshop 1

Have them come 
from a single 

statewide funding 
stream 

(blended/braided)
ll

Workshop 1

Agree with braided at the state 
level, then possibly administered 
through early childhood councils 

directly to childcare programs 
credit be. The funding should 
absolutely follow the child not 

the school district or the county 
lines.

Workshop 1

Simplify and 
standardize 

CCAP

Workshop 1

have real money 
instead of pennies 
and avoid needing 

to chase down 
funds

Workshop 1

Training for FFN 
providers so they 
can confidently 
ask to be paid.

FFN

Desire for a no- charge credit 
card system like Venmo

Preference that funding is for all 
forms of family support and 
provider costs, not just to pay 
teachers

Concerned that the 
system is biased 

against a single men 
applying for aid v. 

single women

Frustrated that every (CCCAP) 
tech has different standards / 

make different determinations 
or work faster to get the 

determination done.

I’ve heard the sentiment of 
“begging for scraps” from 
many of our Latinx- serving 
centers in terms of accessing 
funding and support

"It doesn't feel like it's as 
important to the funding 
sources as it is to us. It's more 
about the bureaucracy than the 
kids."

"They don't ask what's coming 
out of the gross income you're 
having to prove."

“Every county sets their own 
rules for CCCAP. They need to 
standardize policies across the 
State”

“It feels like a monopoly; if you 
don't know somebody in that 
funding source then it just 
drags - you have to game the 
system by relying on personal 
connections.”

"Extended family members 
living in the same house should 
not be considered part of the 
household income. Sometimes 
they are included and 
sometimes they aren't." Frustrated that private pay covers 

absences but CCAP doesn't. If that 
was the case, it might remove 
some of the unconscious bias 

during application and enrollment

Frustrated with the belief that FT 
enrollment = FT time pay even if 

child is picked up early

Excluded when funding 
models/determination 

don't match the needs of 
my center and what 

families need.

Unsure of what is a 
fair amount to charge 

even though feel a 
huge sense of liability

Afraid to ask for payment because 
parents might take their child 

elsewhere

Insecure when 
parents ask if they 

have the right 
paperwork and 

insurance

Parent refuse to pay me 
because they say I'm not a real 
business.

I pay more to take care of these 
kids than the parents pay me. 
What they pay might cover two 
diapers.

Where is my self- love 
when I can't get paid. I 
put my love, patience 
and quality into this.

?

[When asked if parents pay 
with any forms of financial 
support] "I don't even know 
what you're talking about.

?

I feel bad about asking for the 
money. What if they just can't 
afford it?

It's chaotic the way we live our 
lives.

"You get a job and start next 
week, but you have to wait 5 
weeks to get determination. 
Who is going to hire you?"

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few 
user 

reports

Large Provider
Multiple locations 
with large student 
bodies

Small Provider
Typically one location 
with capacity of 100 
students or less

Emotional Journey Dots

Provider Size

Resources

People/agencies/social 
groups used during 

journey

Websites/technology 
used during journey



CCCAP eligibility is based 
on attendance which 

doesn't fit the reality of 
working parents

Reduce the need to scan 
documentation for CO 

Shines

Easier, simpler, more user 
friendly form of PDIS

Pain points
+ Gain Points

Provider Workshop 
solution ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps   Day to day operations + Payment

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Providers

Lack of transportation 
options = lack of 

enrollment and attendance

Up- time issues of CO 
Shines website

Greater flexibility in 
attendance requirements 

to make it reflective of 
differences in worksforce

IT governing body for PDIS 
to ensure up- time 

minimums

I don't have time for another 
webinar about professional 
development.

Concern that 
transition will mean 
all ECE is expected to 
have the same hours

Proud to have been 
able to  keep my doors 

open and pay staff 
throughout COVID 

thanks to PPP funding

Frustrated and 
embarrassed when 

unable to 
communicate with  
Spanish- speaking 

parents

Angry that teachers 
are are treated like  
glorified babysitters 

instead of actual 
teachers Fear of having to 

reduce hours or even 
close due to lack of 

teachers

Concern the State 
start will begin 

requiring 
undergraduate 
degrees for my 

teachers

Afraid of how fried 
staff is causing them 

to leave

Frustration about lack 
of up- time for 

required technology 
that is already hard to 

use

Joyful when able to 
observe students 
thriving in their 

environment (e.g. 
taking first step)

Themes

There is no effective 
governance of systems 

which prevents a SLA for 
system up- time

Changes are 
communicated 

inconsistently and not in 
an empowering manner

Angry by perceptions 
that parents don't 
seem to be really 
invested in a 
partnership. Provider 
is viewed as the 
dumping ground for 
kids so they can get 
away from them

There's a movement of people 
trying to get people without 
direct degrees into teaching 
positions and presenting a 
career path for them.

How can we help people 
access to different 
certifications/degrees??

Resources/Interactions

 Emotions (Large scale)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Frustrated that 
everything is tied to 

attendance. Where is 
the trust?

Frustrated by PDIS

I'm a large center with an 
admin team and it takes them 
hours to prepare for Colorado 
Shines ratings. They even had 
to work through the weekend 
due to staffing crisises during 
the week.

Re: Co Shines - It's hard 
because any rating system is 
hard to make it equal. They only 
see a snapshot of what we're 
doing all year.

Teachers are 
exhausted

Overwhelmed by 
additional COVID 

policies and 
procedures

Disrespected and 
underappreciated

Overworked and 
underpaid

Easier than COPA

Enjoying using new 
tech like Child Plus

Can everyone just use one 
system and you just go in and 
get what you need?

If you know the number of 
people we're serving, why does 
it have to be tied to attendance? 
It could just be tied to 
enrollment instead.

Have to have data manager to 
do this and not everyone is 
going to afford that person 
either.

There is no single source 
of truth for a family or 
provider enabling a 360 
view of their experiences

Small Provider Large Provider

lack of recognition of providers 
in general and being "essential" 
but not compensated or 
recognized as such

Collaboration 
with FCC and 

Centers.

Workshop 1

Shift school districts to 
partners and providers 

rather than overseers.  This 
would support a mixed 

delivery system and allow 
for more family choice.

Workshop 1

Destigmitize 
Headstart

Workshop 1

Three way partnerships 
with institutions of higher 
Ed, existing providers and 
workforce development to 
train and prepare teachers 

in specific pedagogical 
areas.

Workshop 1

Public private 
partnerships 

could also create 
housing for ECE 

teachers

Workshop 1

create a 
public/private sector 
think tank through 
Colorado Succeeds 

to solve mutual 
problems faster

Workshop 1

communication across the 
department as well as with 

providers and families 
needs to be systematized. 
Right now we talk about a 

system but there really isn’t 
one.

Workshop 1

Up front investment in user 
friendly systems that both 

providers and families can easily 
use, then support maintenance 

of those systems.  Support 
excellent staff in EC councils that 
have the knowledge snd means 

to support providers in 
navigating the systems.

Workshop 1

Connect ECE to the 
P/K-12 program so 

it's one conversation 
(not having to 

convince)

Workshop 1

Noreen: Preschool in at least one of our 
partner districts is lowest on the totem 

pole.  Both district and Head Start 
classrooms are often forced to move 

classrooms because K-6 needs the space 
in the school.  We need to be full 

partners and recognized as an important 
step in educational success.

Workshop 1

Continuing 
education 
(not just a 
webinar)

Workshop 1

 Emotions (FFN)

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Address the process 
challenges so it’s not 

only those with 
inside networks

Workshop 1

establish a shared 
service function 

for providers (e.g. 
311)

Workshop 1

Collect data that 
helps us understand 

who can navigate 
the system and who 

starts but doesn’t 
get through

Workshop 1

Somehow remove the day- to- day 
pressure of trying to keep the 

doors open and focusing on only 
families that can pay cash

Workshop 1

Pattern other EC 
payments comparable 
to CPP payments for 

real revenue to utilize 
all year rather than 

reimburse.

Workshop 1

Digital payments 
rooted in 

enrollment  
numbers/demogr

aphics

Workshop 1

We could use a third- party 
administrative payment 

system that people could 
access from their phones 

or a computer. And I mean 
programs as well as 

families.

Workshop 1

Conceirge to help 
with bill - I have 

some to help me 
navigate

Workshop 1

CCCAP and 
CPP Also 

need to pay 
the real cost.

Workshop 1

Require active 
participation in 
the process by 
mothers and 

fathers

UW

Create a central 
resource for teaching 

materials within 
community centers 

that home providers 
could leverage.

UW

Expand FFN programs like 
in Roaring Fork so FFNs 

have the training they need 
to better manage the 

stresses of child care for 
both themselves and the 

children.

UW

Create opportunities 
for greater 

socialization for 
children cared for by 
FFNs. Get the kiddos 

out of the house.

FFN

Subsidize the 
cost of food and 

materials for 
FFN providers

FFN

Colorado Shines is a mess, but 
I have a lot of faith in it.

Fear when staff 
demands more 

money and benefits 
but the budget can't 

accommodate
Stressed out by 
Colorado Shines 

ratings and impact 
on teachers

Frustrated that if a 
family needs her for 

Saturdays, families have 
to email CCCAP to 

request the provider 
coverage - approval is on 

a daily basis

Concerned by 
trying to find time 
for overwhelming 
amount of admin 

work

"If the new PDIS system was 
rolled out by Apple, Apple users 
would have thrown out their 
phone the next day. It's garbage 
and belongs in the trash can."

“We have taken people who are 
passionate about child care 
and turned them into glorified 
administrative assistants.”

Disillusioned by parents 
not being able to pick 

their kids early in order 
to spend quality time 

together when 
circumstances allow

You are never too old to learn 
better ways to take care of 
children.

I had a parent who would drop 
off her kid at 5 a.m. and just 
expect me to take him. I feel 
uncomfortable setting 
boundaries.

Being an FFN provider isn't 
difficult because I love giving 
the best of myself.The hardest part about being 

a FFN provider is not knowing 
if I'm doing a good job.

?

Frightened about picking 
kids up from school 

when already taking care 
of small children. There 
aren't enough seats in 

the car.

[People] think [babies] don't 
need a lot of attention, but I 

know better than that. With a 
routine and care, they will be 
better adapted as teenagers."

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few 
user 

reports

Large Provider
Multiple locations 
with large student 
bodies

Small Provider
Typically one location 
with capacity of 100 
students or less

Emotional Journey Dots

Provider Size

Resources

People/agencies/social 
groups used during 

journey

Websites/technology 
used during journey

I have to rely on myself for 
everything from plunging toilets 
to paying taxes. The system 
isn't built for the small 
providers.

"The proof of quality is what my 
kids are able to do when they 
leave my program."



© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY 1

Provider Shareout Session 

Steffanie Clothier, Gary Community Ventures

Hailey Dunnington, Slalom

September 30, 2021

Developing Solutions with Parents and 
Providers through Human Centered Design 



ECE Design Project

2

Using Human Centered Design to redesign Colorado’s Early Childhood Education system

Project vision

To transform the fragmented Early Childhood Education (ECE) system, including childcare and preschool 

programming, into a unified system. To do so, we will put parents and providers at the core of the needs 

assessment and think boldly about future state design opportunities that can inform ongoing transition planning 

and early childhood department planning.  We seek to engage members of the community, drive equity across 

the ECE system, and ensure that both parents and providers feel valued and heard throughout the project. 

© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY



Informed transition planning

• Learnings from parents and providers will 

support the transition planning led by the 

Governor’s office, Early Childhood Leadership 

Commission and executive departments that 

serve families and children

• Inputs will inform transition plans for new 

departments and consolidated preschool 

program

Expected Project Outcomes

Engaged families and providers

• Gathering feedback and inputs from families 

and providers—who have often lacked a strong 

voice in the design of ECE programs—can drive 

engagement and program satisfaction

• Input from providers and families will ensure 

that program and process designs meet the 

needs of all types of children and providers and 

drive accessibility and equity

Streamlined process design 

recommendations

• Real feedback from families and providers will 

shape how programs, processes, and systems 

are redesigned and shaped including:

• The application process

• Eligibility / redetermination

• Payment systems

• Regulatory approaches

• Infrastructure

• Program equity and accessibility

© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY



4

Our approach



5

Leverage a human-centered

design approach, we will 

collaborate with stakeholders 

across Colorado to inform the 

transition planning process. 

O U R  A P P R O A C H

© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY



6

Research focus areas

01

Explore the difference in journeys across 
three parent types:

• No financial assistance required

• Supplemental assistance required (e.g., 
CCCAP, CPP, etc.)

• Assistance required but struggle to access 
funding (e.g., undocumented parents, 
parents just over income thresholds, can’t 
meet eligibility requirements) 

02

Understand how at-risk populations 
navigate the ECE landscape

• Identify the challenges in finding funding 
support resources, the  application 
process, the flow of information from 
providers, navigating language/cultural 
barriers, etc.

• Define what resources are offered to at-
risk families and when

• Define the amount of care parents need 
and what matters to them

03

Define the resource toll on providers to 
serve at-risk populations

• Understand the journey behind how 
providers of different sizes navigate the 
complexities of different governing bodies 
and funding sources

• Quantify the time and resource strain that 
providers feel

04

Explore redundancies that impact 
programming

• Uncover where and how duplicative 
regulations yields piecemeal 
programming (increasing provider strain)

• Define the needs associated with a 
consolidated or new payment system and 
understand opportunities to reduce 
duplicative regulations and processes

© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

O U R  A P P R O A C H



7

What we learned

https://sp.slalom.com/ourfirm/studio/SitePages/templates.aspx


©2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY 8

How we gathered information
O U R  A P P R O A C H

Provider Interviews Provider Workshops

• Conducted 13 preliminary interviews with parents across 
the state 

• Parents interviewed included those that rely on subsidized 
care, those who struggle to access financial assistance, and 
private pay families

• Hosted 5 workshops with parents across the state, with 
over 40 participants total 

• Selected participants from both rural and metro areas to 
understand how geography and care accessibility affects 
the family experience 



9

Provider themes
R E S E A R C H  F I N D I N G S

© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

01

Workforce scarcity

The inability to recruit and retain qualified teachers is 

the #1 threat to early childhood education 

04

Exclusive vs. inclusive

Access to information and support seems reserved 

for those who know how to navigate the system and 

have the "right" connections

02

Measurement mismatch

We are too focused on the wrong performance 

indicators of the right goal - driving positive, 

equitable outcomes for children and families

03

Funding process = shame

The request for, and determination of funding, is an 

inauthentic process that can create barriers to access 

and prevent true family choice

05

Data scarcity

A lack of trust between stakeholders, especially in 

reporting and the data management, is a major 

cause of the duplicate processes 



10

Provider workshops
W O R K S H O P  F I N D I N G S

Workshop #1

Details

August 28
14 participants

Key Learnings
• Desire for a streamlined place to see regulations and complete requirements

• There is a general lack of trust of regulatory agencies impacts the provider journey from the start

• Need for flexible licensing coaching in addition to inspections; standardize licensing specialists’ approach to requirements

• Want a roadmap for providers to get from point A to point B

• Licensing needs to be more of an ongoing partnership

Quotes

“The regulations are impossible to 
operationalize.”

“There are a lot of unwritten rules that 
you don't know about until you get 

written up for it.”

“Sometimes our licensing contact isn't 
even sure of the current rules.”

“I’ve heard the sentiment of “begging for scraps” 
from many of our Latinx-serving centers in terms of 

accessing funding and support.”



11

Provider workshops
W O R K S H O P  F I N D I N G S

Workshop #2

Details

Sept 16
17 participants

Key Learnings
• Belief that FT enrollment = FT time pay even if child is picked up early

• Preference that funding is for all forms of family support and provider costs, not just to pay teachers

• Perceptions that CO Shines is a chicken before the egg; in order to get better funding, you must rate higher, but in order to rate higher 
you need more money to spend on professional development

• Frustration that the financial support seems biased against single male parents

• Perception that CO Shines curriculum requirements don’t meet the needs of all children at all levels

Quotes

“We have taken people who are passionate about 
child care and turned them into glorified 

administrative assistants.”

“Colorado Shines tells me I need art on the walls, but then the fire department says the art must come 
down because it's a fire hazard. So, I put it up for one and then take it down the next week for the other.”

“Every county sets their own rules for CCCAP. They need to 
standardize policies across the State”

“It feels like a monopoly; if you don't know somebody in that funding source 
then it just drags - you have to game the system by relying on personal 

connections.”



12

Provider workshops
W O R K S H O P  F I N D I N G S

Workshop #3

Details

Roaring Fork FFN HCD Workshop
September 15
7 participants

Key Learnings
• Afraid of consequences to immigration status in the future if opening a center prior to citizenship - is it even possible?

• Certain that they don't have the money for the overhead costs like enough space or resources to buy required materials

• Excited to learn that there are Spanish-language certification courses at the local community college

• Desire to get licensed so parents will pay more than minimum (avg. $20/day)

• Insecure when parents ask if they have the right paperwork and insurance

• Frustrated that the Federal government talks about child care and preschool, but they are only talking about infrastructure

• Excited to learn about the Colorado Statewide Parent Coalition (PASO), which provides in-home training w/o a license

Quotes

"There is something 
profoundly clear for us - we 
want the best for our kids."

"Parent refuse to pay me 
because they say I'm not a real 

business."

"We have [our] model copied in other 
communities, and we want our 

legislators to know that."

"We want to break the cycle of 
families not seeing the value of ECE. 
That's the way to educate parents."

"Where is my self-love when I can't get 
paid? I put my love, patience and quality 

into this."

"I had a parent who would drop off her kid at 5 a.m. and just 
expect me to take him. I feel uncomfortable setting 

boundaries."

“Women will be empowered to 
leave their children in a safe 

place so they can work.”

“[People] think [babies] don't need a lot of attention, 
but I know better than that. With a routine and care, 

they will be better adapted as teenagers."

"I pay more to take care of these kids than 
the parents pay me. What they pay might 

cover two diapers."



Early childhood education in Colorado is a 
human experience that currently happens 
to its stakeholders instead of with them.



14

Provider Journey Map

https://miro.com/app/board/o9J_l0vO420=/


15

Designing the future state



16

Stage 1: Awareness (Pre-License)
F U T U R E  S T A T E  E X P E R I E N C E

How do we want 
providers to feel?

Micro-stages Need identified Research Evaluation Budgeting

Inspired Informed Capable Confident

What does this look 
like in practice?

“Last fall I was visiting my sister 
who runs a preschool. I was so 
inspired by the way she was 
able to care for early learners 
and prepare them for 
kindergarten. I knew this was 
my calling”.

“It was exciting to collaborate 
with others when determining 
my program's location and 
classroom layout. I really feel 
like the space will be conducive 
to me teaching and my children 
learning.”

How do we achieve 
this experience?

“It was easy to learn about 
different curriculums or teaching 
styles I could leverage through 
the informative website. I was 
even able to call someone to 
help me align my teaching 
method to the regulations.”

“The new Department’s 
website made it easy to learn 
about financial support, making 
me feel at ease and enabling 
me to focus on teaching, 
instead of only budgeting.”

• Mobile-first design for information about standing up a center 
• Simple, culturally-welcoming language
• Up-to-date provider search info (waitlist times, spots available, etc.)
• Clarity about resources, processes, and documents pertinent to 

undocumented families and staff interested in opening a center
• Natural language search / knowledge base—SEO strategy and 

content/program documentation reflects how parents and providers speak 
about ECE

• Built-in translation (outside of Google Translate / Yandex)

MUST HAVES

• Online chat or phone call with a human advocate

NICE TO HAVES



17

Stage 2: Establish
F U T U R E  S T A T E  E X P E R I E N C E

How do we want 
providers to feel?

Micro-stages Licensing Recruiting Credentialing

Supported Enabled Accomplished

What does this look 
like in practice?

“Licensing has always been difficult. The 
State's website made it easy to 
understand which regulations are most 
relevant to my classroom. I was also 
provided support through a navigator who 
helped support, educate, and motivate 
me throughout the process.”

“I’m ready to start serving children! The 
credentialing process was straightforward, 
and I had a navigator to guide me through 
along the way. We have several great 
teachers on staff with a variety of 
experience and education levels that are 
passionate about serving kids.”

How do we achieve 
this experience?

“Recruiting can be difficult at times. Luckily, 
the State's website and navigators helped 
me craft job postings and guided me where 
to post the job offer. The state's subsidy 
packages and offers made it easier to attract 
and interview qualified teachers.”

• Streamlined licensing and rating process and timeline
• Quality rating system that measure child outcomes
• Aligned regulatory systems across related agencies (e.g. fire dept)
• Licensing concierge service to hold your hand when getting set up
• Status notifications
• Omni-channel awareness campaign that promotes ECE teaching as a “real” profession and the road to credentials
• Teacher and staff support network that holistically provides services to encourage physical, mental, and financial health of the front-line 

workers

• Omni-channel awareness campaign that 
promotes ECE teaching as a “real” profession 
and the road to credentials

• Teacher and staff support network that 
holistically provides services to encourage 
physical, mental, and financial health of the 
front-line workers

MUST HAVES



18

Stage 3: Engage
F U T U R E  S T A T E  E X P E R I E N C E

How do we want 
providers to feel?

Micro-stages Application Funding Enrollment

Focused Empowered Excited

What does this look 
like in practice?

“I was thrilled to be able to consider 
students for admission based on their fit 
with my program vs. their level of funding 
determination. One of my goals is to have 
a diverse classroom and removing the 
burden of crunching numbers meant I 
could focus on the children.”

“It puts a smile on my face seeing excited 
parents and kids coming to school. I can't 
wait to start teaching all the different 
children in my class.”

How do we achieve 
this experience?

“I’m empowered to start enrolling students 
in my program knowing that parents have 
clear timelines on their eligibility 
determination and that I’ll receive adequate 
funding to cover the total cost of care.  I can 
maximize the number of students I can 
serve.”

• Proactive communication of regulatory changes
• Universal blend-n-braid model at State level
• Unconscious bias training
• Clarification of risk factor calculations that create inequitable advantages or disadvantages
• FAFSA-type structure (parent applies for financial aid and receives a tuition credit that can be applied at different providers/institutions) 

MUST HAVES



19

Stage 4: Activate
F U T U R E  S T A T E  E X P E R I E N C E

How do we want 
providers to feel?

Micro-stages Day to Day Payment

Aligned Supported

What does this look 
like in practice?

“The State's website not only has great communication tools to 
update parents throughout the year, it also provided a guide on 
how to effectively establish expectations and communication 
patterns with parents.”

How do we achieve 
this experience?

“Timely payments from the state make it easy for me to budget 
effectively for my program. Without payment tied to attendance, I 
have a predictable stream of funding coming in each week.”

• Universal blend + braid model at the State level
• Separate payment from attendance and attach to enrollment
• Mimic FAFSA-type structure
• Full-time enrollment = full-time payment
• Standardize payment schedule for different payment streams (e.g., CCCAP, 

DPP, CPP) so payments arrive on same schedule
• Send payments weekly to providers via ACH transfers

MUST HAVES

• Tailor payment system process to rural areas with only 1 
licensed provided (e.g., send allocated funding direct to 
provider)

• Concierge service for providers that provides dedicated 
support to navigate payment processes, questions, and 
troubleshooting

• 3rd party app to receive payment (e.g., Venmo)

NICE TO HAVES



20

Stage 5: Reassess / Reapply
F U T U R E  S T A T E  E X P E R I E N C E

How do we want 
providers to feel?

Micro-stages Reminder Redetermination

Clear

What does this look 
like in practice?

“Thankfully, tax season comes but once a year and so does redetermination. I work with my families' case workers to ensure there's an 
accurate depiction of their situation.”

How do we achieve 
this experience?

• Streamline the process for reapplying for the following school year
• Consider communicating opportunity to align CPP and CCCAP eligibility determination to tax season timeline when parents have income 

and employment documentation readily available and prepared
• SMS / email notifications 2 months prior to key redetermination dates and tasks to get parents adequate time to prepare
• Provide parents with easy-to-follow documents and explanations that illustrate implications of additional income and job changes on 

eligibility

MUST HAVES



© SLALOM. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL. 21

Appendix



AA

BB

A A

B B

1 3 5

2 4 6

Access to information is reserved 
for those who know how to go 
find it on their own

Comprehending information requires 
determination, lots of time, and a 
general higher level of technical acuity

Access + Equity

Lack of attention to localization 
creates a sense of "otherness"

Passive ignorance of rules and 
regulations breeds contempt for 
those that create them

Trust

Families aren't empowered to 
make decisions that feel right for 
them

Parents fear the consequences of 
seeking assistance (e.g. DHS taking 
their kids away, INS 
investigations)

Dignity

Info + Tech Process People

Technology systems can be unreliable 
(e.g., attendance tracking and CO 
shines)  and have minimal governance 
to ensure they’re up and running

Departmental representatives aren't 
clear on defined processes, procedures, 
rules, or regulations

The human experience of 
acquiring care is incongruent with 
the system

Systems are not architected to be 
interoperable in a manner that enables 
secure sharing of mutually necessary 
data

Policy and process decisions aren't 
collaborative with front-line 
workers

Children are often referred to 
as slots or ratios

Early childhood education 

in Colorado is a human 

experience that currently 

happens to stakeholders 

not with them.

Root cause analysis
W H A T  W E ’ V E  L E A R N E D  S O  F A R



Families

Support Required Support Required, Difficult Access No Support Required Spanish Speaking 

Lack of awareness of all 
programs

Finding the right school 
that met his kids needs 

and offered a slot

Hard to find work because 
look unstable to employers 
who see shifting schedules

No explanation of 
timeframe

Lack of contact with case 
worker

Streamlined 
communication between 

CCCAP and schools
Digital- first experiences

Supportive / guided 
application process 

that makes it less scary

Access to person who 
helps you 1:1 to navigate 
the system...an advocate

Evangelizing funding 
options via Facebook mom 

groups

Foster care case workers 
who don't understand the 

system

Sales tax to support early 
childhood education 

funding

Enabling parents to 
leverage NextDoor to find 

in- home care

Solutions for special needs 
kids

Needing to leave career to 
provide care on her own

Lack of awareness of 
options

Long waitlists

Providers that don't 
respond to inquiries 

because they don't have 
spaces

Lack of cultural diversity in 
many centers

More easily accessible care
No one wants to care for 

kids after 4 pm. Need care 
in the evening (n=2)

Limited available options 
for child care

Informing this persona 
group about available care 

options
Flexible hours

Staff that can perform CPR Staff needs to be bilingual

More affordable options Trust in the staff

Lack of after school 
programs

Lack of summer programs

Importance of safety

Waitlists

Punished by fact that we 
didn't have time to plan out 

funding and care options

Why hasn't anyone one 
brought this [funding 
sources] to our attention??

Unsupported - I had to 
find out about CCCAP 
through a co- worker.

Why am I working this job 
that I don't love and have a 
person not fully dedicated 
to care for my kids?

?

Unsure of how to 
continue - no one 

wants to take care of 
kids in evening/night

It seemed like the more I 
tried to flex my schedule 
the harder it was to adapt 
with child care.

Confusion while I 
begin my search for 
childcare as I need it 
for my 10-11 mo. old. Lost, not sure where to 

begin or where to look. 

Limited due to the lack of options 
and accessibility of child 

care/education programs.

Appreciative of the 
information and 

resources that already 
exist.

Relieved after finding 
care through an 

unlicensed provider

Curious when 
reaching out through 

NextDoor to see if 
there's any care 

options in the 
community

Hopeful to find care that 
feels comfortable, not so 

strict, and uses play- 
based learning.

Unaware of early 
childhood education 

options

Comfortable going to 
"Mom Facebook 

Groups" as a place to 
learn about resources 

available to me

Overall frustration

Misunderstood and 
misrepresented

I didn't think I was going 
to have such a difficult 
time finding child care.

It's so frustrating that I 
have all the resources and 
connections, but I still 
can't find a child care 
spot.

I feel frustrated with the 
fact that we're 
disadvantaged bc we 
didn't have 9 months to 
prepare for this situation 
(child care)

Didn't know programs would 
take kid at 3 years - probably 
would have enrolled him last 
year

I learned about CCCAP through 
the hospital that I gave birth at.

I'm not the best with potty 
training so I like it when child 
care can assist me with this 
part.

When you have a kid with 
specific needs, you only have 
one option and that's public 
schools. That's not fair, and 
they tell you what hours you 
get.

Unsupported as the system 
works against foster parents 
and people with unexpected 

pregnancies

Frustrated  with the difficulty 
in finding programs that take 

IEP kids

All alone, abandoned

Frustration due to the 
difficulty of finding 

options for child care.

My care giver is only one mile 
away, which is great.

Sense of 
invasiveness

CCCAP process so 
difficult and invasive 
that it's not worth it

Support 
required

No support 
required

Support required, 
difficult access

Colorado Shines ratings are not a 
definitive determining factor in 

decision making — personal 
referrals and observations are 

what matter

Materials and information seem 
biased to English speakers/readers

Understanding information 
requires determination, lots of 

time, ability to use a computer and 
multi- task while using it 

Pain points
+ Gain Points

Solutions & ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Themes

More programs that blend kids 
with IEPs and other learning 
challenges into 'typical' classes.

To be totally honest, I 
don't even know if the 
case workers even 
understood everything

Half day 
programs need 

to be longer 
than 2.5hrs

Denver/Larimer

I wish there was a way 
to tell parents that they 

don’t need to worry 
about the school 

ratings as preschool is 
not rated.

Denver/Larimer

An app that 
shows openings 

in a center or 
home

Denver/Larimer

Websites. Honest 
websites with parent 

reviews. 

Denver/Larimer

mobile applications, 
central storage for 
information, like 

documents to upload, 
child care center 

websites

Denver/Larimer

Single application that 
encompasses all 
school/ childcare 

options and 
determines 

qualification to any 

Denver/Larimer

Similar open 
enrollment process like 
DPS- select your top 5 

schools - one local site- 
and shows where you 

are on the waitlist

Denver/Larimer

Resource app for 
parents

Denver/Larimer

A one for all website or 
source that list schools 

currently enrolling 
and/or accepting 

assistance. 

Denver/Larimer

Childcare websites are 
kept updated, online 

application for facilities, 
centers that actually 
answer the phone,

Denver/Larimer

A place to see actual 
enrollment vacancies 

Denver/Larimer

More flexibility and 
communication- keep an 

open communication with 
parents on any new 

updates with the daycare 
and school programs

Denver/Larimer

I have noticed that when 
there are times that when  
you do get someone on the 

phone, they refer to their 
website, but the 

information that you are 
looking for is nowhere on 
their website. (from Lisa)

Denver/Larimer

Better communication. 

Denver/Larimer

more centers that are 
not only accepting 

special needs children, 
but also have the 

training, resources and 
funding to provide to 

Denver/Larimer

Centers with evening or 
weekend hours. Better 

communication with 
the childcare assistance 

program and the 
center. 

Denver/Larimer

Some schools provide 
lunch others dont- for 
the price it would be 

nice if that was 
included everywhere 

Denver/Larimer

Even if the facility is not 
qualistar rated, making 

sure to hire certified 
teachers who care about 

the education of the 
younger children , not just 

watching the all day, 
Interaction

Denver/Larimer

Care centers that hire 
people like during covid 

with expanded hours...not 
everyone works a normal 

schedule, some people 
work nights so there is no 
care available during the 
night, or open at 6 and 

Denver/Larimer

More 
programs/centers that 

are 
equipped/trained/willin

g to accept kids with 
special needs.  More 

Denver/Larimer

Centers with more variety 
of hours /after school care 
for parents who don’t work 

9-5 m- F. Service
Industry - retail parents 

need more flexibility 

Denver/Larimer

having more atypical 
hours available for 

care, easier application 
process for enrollment 
and assistance, more 

reasonable prices

Denver/Larimer

The state provides a 
OIT program. Office of 
information technology 

so they could apply 
that to facilities as a 

requirement.

Denver/Larimer

The resources offered were very limited 
and had a lot of stipulations to meet to 

get the resources and if you did not 
meet those exact stipulations you could 

not receive the resources which was very 
frustrating. 

COS

Parent who take up slot for 
people who really need it 
just because they want it

COS

We have verified vaccine injury in our 
family. Therefore we don't vaccinate 

anymore. We had daycares refuse our 
children because of this. It was very 

frustratin 

COS

That there aren't a lot of 
high quality programs 

that accept CCCAP.
COS

Finding a 
daycare that 
has spots for 

all 4 kids
COS

limited spots for 
CCAP families

COS

Finding a daycare close to 
the school or that could 
transport from school. 

COS

At times felt the process was more important 
than each individual family. Meaning that each 

family needs are different, their struggles, 
stressors and sometime working the “process” 
only can be kind of brash compared to simply 

learning what they actually need. 

COS

Age guidelines changes for a lot of 
child care providers and they 

fluctuate. I would like somewhere 
where both my kids can go. Theres 

long waitlists.
COS

Finding infant 
(under 2) 

spots

COS

Availability and programs 
needs to be posted 

anywhere anyone can see a 
lot of times people don't 

know what they can access 
or what they have access to 

if they apply

COS

One person to go to 
that you can relay your 
information to instead 

of having to contact 
multiple people 
multiple times

COS

online 
chat 

COS

Same time frame issue 
for most assistance. 
Taking time off work, 
and losing money, to 
get help is a bit of an 

oxymoron. 

COS

Just simply having a name and a 
face to connect with. It simply 
changes everything just about. 

Having that family advocate 
check in and provide different 
resources and alternatives to 

various problems or simply just 
checking in. 

COS

People who are 
happy to help and 

don't feel like 
daunting when 

you talk to them

COS

I have to say the family 
Advactate is really great to 

have. Even if someone 
knows of a resource to 

share it with others that 
need it. 

COS

Follow up calls - checking in 
so often with families if 

they need any other 
referrals, information on 

new programs, funding etc.

COS

Different zip codes 
definitely get different 
advantages. I'd love if 

all the schools received 
the same resources

COS

That families 
schools use Dojo 
and others have 

never heard 
about it

COS

Having a list that goes 
out to parents stating 
all the programs and 
resources for each 

child age group would 
be super helpful

COS

don't get me started with it 
because the district can be 

opposite from district to 
district. So what about a 

socialist school system just 
like the library or 

firefighting pay system.

COS

People with high needs 
kids often want to transfer 

to a better school 
environment. It's 

frustrating when you can't 
get good help because of 

your district. 

COS

Just ever people are human. We need to 
talk for us to communicate and not only 

assume that each parent knows 
everything. As a young parent, there’s so 
much to learn and understanding school 
is a mountain to climb at times with all of 

the expectations, time constraints, etc. 

COS

Accomadate needs. 
Speech therapy, 

autism, etc. 
Someone that has 
experience with all 

children.

COS

Representation is so 
important if you only have 
one type of people working 

somewhere when you 
don't fit into that group you 

won't want to bring your 
child there or attend it 

yourself

COS

perhaps giving facilities incentives to 
take a diverse range of clients not 

just self pay , not just c cap, or 
having some type of scholarship, 

grant programs that get the income 
part taken care of.

White kids go to white 
school. Black kids go to 
black schools. Nothing 
will ever change if we 
keep this up.

Isn't this a bit of an 
oxymoron?

Angry about having to take time 
off work, use vacation time, and 
losing money in order to get help

It may be the thousandth time 
today you've answered this 
question, it but it's the first time 
I've asked it.

Only ONE licensed   child care in 
the county (the school district 
preschool). ZERO licensed 0-3   

childcare available.

Rural

Access for the hours 
that fit into work 

schedule.
Rural

Accessibility, quality 
care, within driving 

limits
Rural

Incentivize / subsidize 
potential new providers 

across the spectrum 
(FFNs, child care 

centers, family home)

Rural

Drop in- 
respite 

care
Rural

Employers 
provide on- 

site child care

Rural

Encourage early 
childhood education 
students / Create a 

career path for 
potential new teachers 

an actual career

Rural

Communicate 
financial support 

options across 
diverse media 

channels

Rural

Collaborate with 
public sector to 

identify child care 
as an economic 

driver

Rural

Employer 
stipend or 

discount for 
child   care

Rural

Local tax 
breaks for 
child care 
centers

Rural

Greater 
access to 

transportaion

Rural

ECE 
scholarships

Rural

After 
school 

programs
Rural

Employers 
that "adopt a 
classroom"

Rural

Full day 
programs 

with longer 
hours

Rural

Community awareness campaign 
re: financial support in places 
where those communities go 

(e.g. doc office, hospital, grocery 
store carts, laundry mats, gas 

stations, buses, back of receipts, 
social media groups, birthing 

centers)

Rural

Empower community 
members to go door- to- 

door to inform families that 
are timid to go out because 

they don't know the 
language and therefore 

aren't comfortable driving 
or taking the bus

Rural

Disabuse the white, 
English- speaking 
stakeholders that 

"everybody knows"

Rural

Desire to have info at food 
banks, WIC, HR, or doctor 
offices/clinics

Afraid to go outside of 
their community or 
"tribe" because they 

don't know the language.

Unsure of how to get 
child into preschool 

programs so cost isn't an 
issue.

Frustrated that white 
families get to leap- frog 

the waitlist

A year ago the secretary 
at a daycare told me that 
there's no space and that 
the waitlist was 6 months. 
Then, a white lady I clean 
house for went to the 
same location and she 
got into the program after 
waiting only two weeks.

Non- English 
Speaking

We found child care 
through our speech 
therapist.

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few user 
reports

Emotional Journey Dots

Journey Lines

Support 
required

No support 
required

Support required, 
difficult access

Non- English 
speaking

  Awareness + Research



Families

  Application + Eligibility + Funding

Support Required Support Required, Difficult Access No Support Required Spanish Speaking 

Loss of job when daycare 
center where parent works 

requires CCCAP, but the 
process takes too long

Amount of paperwork

Talking to schools before 
being CCCAP approved

Long enrollment process 
without much notice 

before start date after 
approved

Long wait time to see if 
approved for CCCAP

CCCAP application process 
confusing

People in the system 
assume you're the 

stereotype and are just 
working the system

CCCAP process is faceless 
and seems to happen 

behind the scenes

6 mos + waitlist for CCCAP

Gap between what CCCAP 
will pay family members for 

care and what the family 
member needs to earn

Voucher- type funding 
enabling parents to send 

wherever they choose

No solution for parents 
just over qualification line 

for salary

Families that qualify for 
foster care stipend are 

disqualified from CCCAP

Providers not updating 
funding options or 

openings on Larimer Child 
Care Connect

Delays in eligibility for DPP

Income level high enough 
to qualify for least amount 
of assistance that leaves a 

huge gap compared to cost

Can't go on waitlist for 
coverage when a foster 
child drops into your lap

Having to leverage multiple 
solutions in order to get 
the right care coverage

Toddler rooms moving to 
full day or even full week 

requirements

Have to use care centers 
with low CO Shines ratings 

because that's all that is 
available

True parent choice
Having someone available 
to answer questions and 
assist with the process

Wasn't aware of financial 
assistance being available

(n=3)

Lack of affordable care 
options

Couldn't find care that cost 
1/2 of income

I don't know how to apply 
to programs for financial 
assistance.

Helpless after filling 
out 12 page support 
program application 

only to not submit due 
to not having a 

daycare of choice not 
listed.

Unsupported when my 
case manager takes 10 

days to reply to me.

Helps me pay my bills and not 
fall behind.

Confused as foster care 
parents. No paperwork to 

review, no clear information 
detailing what we're eligible 

for.

I knew it would be a portion, 
wasn't exactly sure how much, 
but I was happy with that 
portion

Unconvinced about my daycare as 
their website seemed outdated, and 
used paperwork that was obviously 

copied- over many times.

Uneasy about the lack 
of security to get into 

the premises.

Informed when support 
programs explains things well: 

percentage of support based on 
my income.

Fearful of giving 
private info out

Feeling like you're 
fighting to stay alive 

day- by- day while 
awaiting CCCAP 

decision

Tension with absent 
father forced to 

participate in the process

Afraid to bring the court 
system into the process - 

court- ordered child support 
required by certain support 
programs. Child protective 

services might take your child

Confused when applying 
for support programs. I 

Googled how to apply and 
emailed program for 

additional help.

I had to go to human services 
to get help with filling out the 
CCCAP application.

Impatient when waiting on 
support programs - waiting for 

months on them for time- 
sensitive help.

Anxious, forgotten 
about while waiting 

support program 
decision.

In the beginning, we just took 
whatever was given to us for 
free.

Unstable when I'm 
relying on others and 

so many different 
moving pieces.

Everything felt up in the air and 
very day - by - day. Not very 
reassuring.

Lost - I stopped 
applying to daycares 
as it felt like it was a 
waste of everyone's 

time not knowing my 
support program 

application status.

No status updates, couldn't talk 
to anyone, had to just wait and 
see if it was my time

Shame between 
applying for food 

stamps, medicaid, 
public subsidies for 

child care

Relief being approved 
for and getting CCCAP.

When you're on the other side, 
there's not this great sense of 
relief either

Felt like I had to do a lot of 
following up myself instead of 
them reaching out and letting 
me know

No one told us that 
aid was available.

We thought we did not 
qualify for anything.

Confused when looking 
into programs that offer 

financial assistance. Tension in my relationship 
when researching and 

discussing financial 
assistance for our child.

It has been a super tough 
time trying to find 
anything that won’t cause 
us to spend half of our 
income.

I don't know what I don't know - 
access to information, and when I 
get to it, it's difficult to utilize

Parents do not have luxury of 
waiting (waitlists, applying for 
subsidies) Waiting on the system 

prevents utilization of the system

Hesitancy in sharing information 
due to fear of others using that 

information against them

Pain points
+ Gain Points

Solutions & ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Themes

Uncertainty about 
how my information is 

being used and who 
has access to it.

Anonymous 
applications that 

remove names so they 
can't racially profile. 

Denver/Larimer

Not basing it on 
income, expand 

income limits

Denver/Larimer

flexibility with income, 
possibly cushion 

amounts, 

Denver/Larimer

Online, one 
application. 

Denver/Larimer

All programs are 
included in one single 

application that is 
required for all families

Denver/Larimer

Have state provide 1on1 
paraprofessionals for any 

child that qualifies that can 
go to any center the parent 

chooses instead of only 
being allowed to go to a 

public school option 

Denver/Larimer

That it’s so easy to not 
qualify for assistance- 
down to the penny- no 
flexibility with income. 

Denver/Larimer

No one to answer 
questions

Denver/Larimer

On my community/ 
neighborhood getting 

assistance is not talked 
about publicly.  So I felt 

embarrassed to ask if there 
were any programs we 

should look into.  

Denver/Larimer

Length of time, 
communication, redoing 

application,

Denver/Larimer

Application status

Denver/Larimer

Child support and income- 
not being able to get help 

from the other parent

Denver/Larimer

All the paperwork. Not 
knowing the income limit. 

The length it took for 
childcare assistance. 

Denver/Larimer

Child support 

Denver/Larimer

Making just enough money to 
not qualify/ shorter application 
process/quicker turn around on 
decision making/ less red tape/ 

more availability from the people 
who have the assistance/ more 

streamlined process/better 
service/value the humanity 

sitting in front of you

Denver/Larimer

the income limitations, feeling 
like I was being forced to either 

put my child's father on child 
support (even though he lives 

with and supports our child) or 
not receiving assistance, finding 
and keeping a spot that not only 
accepted CCAP but having spots 

in the right age range

Denver/Larimer

Long waits to get response 
from worker or no direct 
number to talk to them… 
long phone waits and no 

real info
Ccap should streamline 

with food stamps Medicaid 
tanf etc

Denver/Larimer

Case worker who can see 
what you have done on 
application  and maybe 

share a correction instead 
of denying and having to 

reapply 

Denver/Larimer

Long waits to get response 
from worker or no direct 
number to talk to them

Denver/Larimer

qualifying in first place. not 
having to put other parent 

on child support. that 
doesn't support the child or 

the parent.

Denver/Larimer

Better customer service 

Denver/Larimer

Increase eligibility -  
because the cost of care is 

still rising. 

Denver/Larimer

All of the above!

Denver/Larimer

perhaps giving facilities 
incentives to take a diverse 
range of clients not just self 

pay , not just c cap, or 
having some type of 

scholarship, grant 
programs that get the 

income part taken care of.

Denver/Larimer

There have to be other 
programs besides ccap.

Denver/Larimer

public eligibility criteria 
published, either online or 

paper form; one 
application for all 

assistance programs

Denver/Larimer

One application and one 
caseworker instead of 

multiple caseworkers and 
having to start all over. 

Denver/Larimer

Eligibility calculator? 

Denver/Larimer

And the ability to look at 
cases on an individual 

basis. making 50k with two 
people working is different 

than making 50K with a 
deceased mom and 4 kids 

and should be treated 
differently. 

Denver/Larimer

If the goals was getting 
young children education- 
it wouldn’t be so hard for 
families to find care- ads, 
radio, bill boards, centers 

doing outreach 

Denver/Larimer

One appliation!  Everyone should fill out 
the same application for preschool/ 

childcare programs.  And that application 
should also include qualification 

determination for financial assistance 
programs.  This will remove the stigma 
around applying for assistance because 

same for everyone

Denver/Larimer

I have never used Facebook 
as a means to get childcare 
, it's always been us driving 
around or word of mouth

Denver/Larimer

Information about Eligibility 
criteria may be great. 

Denver/Larimer

Worst was waiting on approval 
/denial. But figuring out the 

applications, figuring out if it was 
worth my time

lll
COS

center and state didn't communicate - so 
the center didn't hold my spot and state 
couldn't tell me when I would know if I 

would be approved or denied
ll

COS

Child support being included as 
income. Child support varies and is 
not always paid as ordered. And it 
causing the income to be over limit 

for assistance. 
COS

Not knowing if there 
is financial assistance

ll
COS

Getting the correct information for 
each assistance. Knowing which one 
fits actually fits your needs/ family 

needs
lll

COS

When applying in person not 
having to divulge all your 

information in front of a lot of 
people it really makes you feel 
small and uncomfortable when 

you have to repeat your situation 
over and over again in front of a 
crowd when you have are not in 

an office or cubicle

COS

Less 
invasive 

questions
COS

Could families fill out one 
application then be 

contacted with 
individualized information 
on what programs would 

be options for them?

COS

SHARE the information. No need 
to hog it all. In the application 

process it would be great to post 
the source of the actual 

information in regards to child 
care, preschool and financial 

support. All the information is 
simply he say/she say. 

COS

Somewhere where I can 
check the status of my 

application how far I am 
what I need what's missing 

all those things are very 
important and if I just don't 
know until I'm denied that 

doesn't help

COS

Have all employees 
on the same page 

and up to date on all 
programs and 

services available 

COS

Better worded 
questions. Some 
questions seem 

purposefully 
hard. 

COS

You can't please 
everyone however I 
like the way CPCD 
handle everything 
before and during 

covid.

COS

I think children learning is an 
exciting thing. But applying for 

childcare feels more like a 
burden. Enrolling children for 
school should be an exciting 

thing for families. It sets the tone 
of learning. Better customer 

service, more shared knowledge. 
Just positive vibes

COS

Having the families fill out 
the application and 

knowing right away if they 
qualified and if you don’t 

qualified have other 
centers available for them. 

COS

Having discussions like these for 
each individual grade, class,  
pod, etc. to see what are the 

trends. Then having those town 
halls or digital brainstorm to get 
more ideas to how they can help 

make each area easily 
understandable. 

COS

better 
communication 

and a decent time 
frame for call 

backs

COS

Communication also between 
the people who give you the 
benefits and the people who 

receive them if I don't know that 
I need to recertify the next 7 

days and you send me a letter 
and I only have four days left 

that's very hard to accommodate 
into someone's schedule

COS

One 
application- 
one system

COS

Discretion in 
providing assistance 
sometimes families 

like they said are 
embarrassed to say 
hey I need help here

COS

Unjudgmental people who really just 
want to help you and don't have a 

comment about being a young parent or 
not having transportation or having to 

apply for assistance when you're looked
down upon it makes you kind of shrivel 

and it makes you feel small 

COS

Having to re- do application 
because one thing was 

missing or your case 
worker changed

better communication and 
a decent time frame for 

call backs

the income limitations, feeling like I was 
being forced to either put my child's 

father on child support (even though he 
lives with and supports our child) or not 
receiving assistance, finding and keeping 
a spot that not only accepted CCAP but 

having spots in the right age range

Making $50k/year with two 
people working is different than 
making $50K/year as a single 
parent. These situations should 
be treated differently.

Judged by people who are supposed to help 
you like commenting about being a young 

parent or not having transportation.
It makes you kind of shrivel and feel small.

When applying in person not having to 
divulge all your information in front of 
a lot of people. It really makes you 
feel small and uncomfortable when 
you have to repeat your situation over 
and over again in front of a crowd.

How [my daughter] was born isn't 
important [when determining]if we 
deserve daycare. How long I was 
in labor too. Really?

Some questions seem 
purposefully hard.

When you do get someone on 
the phone, they refer to their 
website, but the information 
that you are looking for is 
nowhere on their website.

If Dominos can tell me 
where my pizza is at, 
someone should be able 
to tell us what's going on 
with our applications.

Less invasive questions

flexibility with income, 
possibly cushion amounts,

qualifying in first place. not 
having to put other parent on 

child support. that doesn't 
support the child or the 

parent.

You qualify for CCCAP 
or you don't- no 

sliding scale available
Rural

Prices in 
general

Rural

Social stigmas about 
receiving support - 

wish could go to 
another location to 

apply so nobody 
knew

Rural

The qualifying 
amount isn't 

accomodating
Rural

The application 
jargon doesn't make 

sense to me
Rural

DHS center (where you 
have to go to apply), 

felt unwelcoming
Rural

Online is 
confusing

Rural

Customer service 
isn't the best

lll
Rural

If a family is receiving other 
benefits, tie them all 

together and deliver in one 
statement or dashboard so 
families can see their entire 

financial support 
opportunities

Rural

Allow funding 
to follow the 

child

Rural

For counties with only 
one licensed provider, 

send all the CCCAP 
money there directly so 

parents can skip the 
application process

Rural

Empower other agencies to 
provide a 1- stop shop 
experience so they are 

knowledgeable and can get 
parents signed up at the 

same time

Rural

Resource options shouldn't be 
more advantageous to one group 
over the other - "there's now 

wrong door when navigating help"

Uncertainty as to how 
immigration status impacts 

ability to get support

Prefer paper applications so they 
take their time, reflect, edit, proof 

read before submitting.

Feel like providers know 
that help is available, but 
they don't offer it as an 
option to parents that 
need it most because 

there's no incentive to 
do so.

Disenfranchised by lack of 
transportation options, 

price, service hours, cultural 
disparities, and amount of 

attention their children will 
get leads them to choose 

FFN providers

Desire to socialize availability 
of financial support now that 

she knows it exists

"Child care is a luxury."

Obviously the centers 
know about the money 
resources, but they don't 
make us aware.

When you go into a center 
to ask for info in Spanish, 
they don't look at you the 
same way they do 
English- speaking families.

This is a language barrier. 
If the words you use don't 
exist in their language, 
they can't access it.

I think as parents, we limit 
our children's opportunity 
 because of financial 
limitations.

We are stuck in a bad 
economic situation 
because mom and dad 
can't work because they 
can't pay for care.

The price is too high; it's 
better to not work and just 
stay home.

We're not asking [providers] to 
do [the application]. Give us the 
tools and direction, and we'll get 
it done.

Don't know where to go 
for help with CCCAP or 

other funding

Fear of being asked their 
status and how that 
might impact their 

ability to become citizens 
in the future.

Needing colloquially relevant 
awareness materials where 
they live; include a point of 
contact

I was surrounded by people 
telling me not to apply for 
CCCAP because Child 
Protective Services might take 
my kid away.

Having someone available to 
answer questions would be 
nice.

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few user 
reports

Emotional Journey Dots

Journey Lines

Support 
required

No support 
required

Support required, 
difficult access

Non- English 
speaking



Families

  Enrollment + Day to Day

Support Required Support Required, Difficult Access No Support Required Spanish Speaking 

Vacations not accounted 
for in attendance rules

Lack of help with potty 
training

Manual claims not 
accepted by providers

Lack of positive 
reinforcement for parents 

who are doing the right thing 
/ utilizing the system 

appropriately

Mobile app attendance 
check in/out

Inability to give child early 
education because there's 
no viable solution to pay 

for it

Lack of flexibility in 
schedule

Lack of options for kids 
with special needs

The difference between a 2 
yo and 3 yo room is about 
$500 a month because of 

potty training

Child development delays 
due to lack of special 
services like speech 

therapy

Limited interaction for kids 
who are at home

More flexible hours to help 
parents navigate the cost 

gap

Lack of rigors in security at 
many centers

Lack of providers with 
cameras in the center

Difficult readjustment for 
kids when their school 

closes due to lack of 
teachers

Providers that paint a 
picture of care that isn't 

accurate

Teachers that don't care / 
aren't motivated

Misalignment between 
between what she needs 
and what's available for 

child care

Outdated systems used by 
providers slow the parent 

down

Age- based milestones for 
curriculum

Play- based philosophy
Not enough providers that 

offer early/late hours
Not enough providers that 
deal with Spanish language

Stressful when care 
provider turns away my 

baby after 3 days and will 
not care for them because 

they cry too much

Disappointed in care 
hours and treatment

Frustrated when no 
care options met my 
needs. Care switched 

to grandparent.Very stressful when I'm 
competing for spots with 
parents that do not work 

and they utilize the services.

Confusing at the start. 
Unaware of the information 

caretaker/staff needs.

Preschool in Colorado 
is glorified daycare 

not educationEarly childhood education 
in Colorado is just there 
so parents can get away 

from their kids

Defeated, the enrollment 
process is still difficult, 

lots of paperwork.

Why is the enrollment process 
asking so many questions 
about my family such as 
"where is dad?"

Helpful to parents when I 
can provide assistance 

around funding and 
enrollment as I've gone 

through the process myself

There should be a way to just 
check in over the phone some 
how. Quickly and easily to avoid 
doing so at the care location.

Frustrated and impatient 
waiting in line with kids 

crying just to check them in 
at the attendance tracker

Let down by support 
program's attendance 

policy. 

I think it's kind of weird. You 
would think that it (CCCAP 
attendance) would be the 
opposite.

Impressed as some 
teachers really put their 

blood and sweat into their 
work/teaching.

Why does the type of care 
you/your child gets depend 
on what teacher they get??

Confused as there is 
no benchmark on the 
quality or type of care 

that you get.

You come, you play, you 
eat, you go home.

Disappointed when observing 
the teacher's assistant doing 
more than the actual teacher 

in the classroom

Disappointed when Co 
Shines ratings don't 

match perceptions in 
reality

I don't really understand 
them, they aren't really 
accurate. They don't make 
any sense.

Let- down when my 
daughter finds 

cockroaches in a level 
4 provider.

I picked this provider and 
noticed it's a level 4 and it 
doesn't feel like it.

Fortunate for what I have, 
but large inconsistency  

day- to- day dealing with so 
many different people.

I came home crying everyday 
when I volunteered in my 
daughter's classroom. How is 
this fair to parents?

It would have been very 
difficult if grandma had 
not been able to care for 
them.

If my current solution falls 
through, I'll have to quit 
my job.

The people who need the most 
assistance don't have a 9-5 job

Blended classrooms (special needs 
+ typical classroom) available 

only at public schools. Limits both 
groups of children from learning 

from each other's perspectives

Pain points
+ Gain Points

Solutions & ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Themes

Eliminate the 
attendance 

requirement or any 
requirement that 
causes barriers

Denver/Larimer

Centers in all 
neighborhoods have access 

to clean daycares, 
educated teachers, clear 
curriculum for parents to 

participate in learning 
versus babysitting 

Denver/Larimer

Provide assistance and 
guidance after working 

hours 

Denver/Larimer

hiring a staff on site to 
navigate the system.  at the 

current school...hope 
center ...the have a person 

dedicated to helping 
families throguht the 

paperwork

Denver/Larimer

expanding access to 
education for teachers 

so that centers can 
expand their number 

of spots available

Denver/Larimer

Every child to be 
treated the same way. 

Better quality of 
education. Better 
training for staff. 

Denver/Larimer

Pay providers better so 
they can provide better 

care/ train them to a higher 
standard on service to 

people (customer service) 
and

 demand a better product 
across the board

Denver/Larimer

Reduced fees : 
application fees, late 
pick - up fees - annual 

enrollment fees 

Denver/Larimer

 Get rid of the late 
policies...or charging 

per minute If your 
later. 

Denver/Larimer

After school care 
that picks up from 

the elementary 
school.

COS

The transportation 
language barrier 

COS

Having a process to 
identify  guy the various 
types of families. Many 

now are blended, mixed, 
divided, military, etc and it 

would be nice to have 
those resources for each 

type outlined.

COS

Less personal 
questions. How she 

was born isn't 
important to if we 

deserve daycare. How 
long I was in labor too. 

COS

I wish it didnt take 
long to process a 

change of provider 
when i need care 

immediately.

COS

Being able to 
do everything 
online versus 

in office.
COS

open enrollment and one 
site to select schools 
instead of searching 

individually, with different 
application fees and 

multiple waitlists
 

COS

Accessibility is a big problem if 
we are only able to apply in one 

or two places and it's on the 
other side of the city from the 
families with no transportation 
you can't apply or enroll your 

child if you have no way to there

COS

However the state 
can help educate 

parent to be 
better parents 

COS

Increase financial 
support for 

programs who serve 
CCCAP children and 

families.  

COS

Faster turn around 
on applications. Six 
weeks is a very long 
time when you are 
working or waiting 

to start a job

COS

The sharing of information 
between parent/teacher, 
school/parent. So much 
information is out there 

but only a selection is 
talked about 

COS

Parent too often 
forget that they 
are there child 

fist teacher

COS

Also the fact that a lot of people 
don't know there are certain 

programs out there cpcd which 
both of my older children 

attended a lot of people don't 
even know it exist when I come 
across a lot of people they don't 

even know it's there for them

COS

We had to do some stuff online 
and then go in person after. We 
had to go to the district, then go 
to one school but then couldn't 
go to another school. We had 
such a hard time finding out 
when one of our kids started 

school. (time). 

COS

The person helping 
in rolling the 

students be a little 
bit more helpful and 
not rude. Having the 

communication 

COS

Could there be an 
app for the phone 
that allows families 
to apply for early 

childhood 
programs?

COS

People not being rude 
when you are trying to get 

answers. If may be the 
thousandth time today 

you've answered it but it's 
the first time I've asked it. 

COS

Letting me know 
they received my 

documents. 
Giving me a status 

relieves stress.

COS

Time frames. If 
the food bank is 
open 9 to 5 and 

you work 9 to 5 its 
hard to get food

COS

Transportation to and from 
these resources if that was an 
option or available a lot more 

people would apply for them and 
go to them for food banks or for 
you know dental clinics anything 
like that transportation is a must

COS

I love Class Dojo and 
the ability to link 
directly with the 

teacher and get live 
updates on what’s 
going on each day. 

COS

I didn't qualify for programs but I 
always found it helpful to talk to 

other parents in my circle. 
Having a resource person like 

they are talking about would be 
great but also I could talk to 
them outside of the typically 

bank hours

COS

I think children learning is an 
exciting thing. Enrolling 
children for school should be 
an exciting thing for families. It 
sets the tone of learning.

Accessibility is a big problem if we 
are only able to apply in one or two 
places and it's on the other side of 
the city from the families with no 
transportation. You can't apply or 
enroll your child if you have no way 
to get there.

"I love Class Dojo and the 
ability to link directly with the 
teacher and get live updates on 
what’s going on each day."

Different zip codes 
definitely get different 
advantages. I'd love if all 
the schools received the 
same resources

Improve and amplify 
services like the COG bus, 
MedRide, or reimbursing 

family and friends for 
mileage so they can serve 

as mini- Ubers

Rural

Provide a drop- off feature (and 
fund the option) for parents who 

have appointments or need a 
break. Kids could come in for a 

class or other productive 
activities - ones that will advance 

them in life.

UW

Empowered to leave 
my children in a safe 

place and work.

Desire education and 
training to be able to 
reinforce educational 

activities at home

Our kids need the 
socialization in that a center 
could provide too. But, there's 
a lot of inequality.

They had my son for most 
of the day and they just 
put him in front of a TV.

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few user 
reports

Emotional Journey Dots

Journey Lines

Support 
required

No support 
required

Support required, 
difficult access

Non- English 
speaking



Families

  Redetermination + Reassessment

Support Required Support Required, Difficult Access

Systems that encourage 
self- sufficiency

Funding gap re: max 
income caused by leaving 
and returning to CCCAP

Representation is so important. If 
you only have one type of people 
working somewhere, when you 
don't fit into that group, you won't 
want to bring your child there or 
attend it yourself. Sad that my kids are 

complaining, so I'm 
looking for other 

options.

Fine resubmitting 
things into CCCAP. 

Easy to fill the same 
things out.

Lack of education around value of 
early childhood education leads to 

stigma of being seen as daycare 
only

Lack of accountability in the 
classroom around teacher's 

performance makes it harder on 
parents and children. Parents will 

switch up care if they are not 
comfortable.

Pain points
+ Gain Points

Solutions & ideas

 Emotions (Small Scale)

 Journey Stage Steps

Calm, assured

Fear, anxiety

Uncertain

Themes

especially when my 
income hasn't changed 

but now not 
qualifying/losing care

Denver/Larimer

Once a year, maybe 
during tax season since 
you are already looking 

at the families 
finances. 

Denver/Larimer

Yearly maybe!

Denver/Larimer

Annually 

Denver/Larimer

It would be nice if 
Centers new about 

eligibility so they could 
promote it while you 
look into their school

Denver/Larimer

Once a year

Denver/Larimer

Once a year.

Denver/Larimer

Higher income limits 
with reasonable 

income based copays

Denver/Larimer

No more than 
annually. 

Denver/Larimer

I like the idea of calculator 
anyone can use to see what 

they may qualify for
Before wasting everyone’s 

time.
Sliding scales to get off 

assistance when income 
requirements are no longer 

Denver/Larimer

That they are you didn't 
complete their 

requirements the first 
time so it becomes a 
reason to deny you.

Denver/Larimer

income limits changed and 
now not qualifying, losing 
care altogether, having to 
choose between getting 

care for my child or 
keeping my job 

Denver/Larimer

Not qualifying. Going 
through the 

paperwork. Having a 
new caseworker who 

doesn’t know your 
case 

Denver/Larimer

Maybe even have an on- 
site family outreach coach 
at centers to help families 

navigate eligibility and 
applications

Denver/Larimer

Have the system 
remember your info 

from year to year so all 
you need to do is edit 

what changed

Denver/Larimer

Give me one person to 
deal with through out 

the whole process 
every
time

Denver/Larimer

That I won’t qualify and 
I still have to figure out 

childcare and cost 
regardless. 

Denver/Larimer

sliding scales are great

Denver/Larimer

Tools to see maps of 
local centers if qualified 
and direct links so they 

can put the centers 
provider number in etc

Denver/Larimer

Feeling shame 

Denver/Larimer

Have the system 
remember your info so 

all you need to do is 
edit what changed

Denver/Larimer

Frustrated by the 
mount of time to  

process a change of 
provider.

Frustrated when the 
system doesn't 

remember your info 
from year to year so 
all you need to do is 
edit what changed

Angry that I won’t 
qualify anymore, and I 
still have to figure out 

childcare and cost 
regardless.

The income limits changed and 
now I do not qualify. I'm losing 
care altogether. So, I have to 
choose between getting care for 
my child or keeping my job.

Power opportunities 
for parents to build 
lasting relationships 
with child care sites, 

CCAP coordinators, etc.

Rural

Parents don't have to 
reapply every year 

unless there's a change

Rural

Proactively send 
families reminder 
push notification 
or emails about 

key dates

Rural

Publish a clear and 
concise follow- up 

timeframe including 
who to contact with 

questions

Rural

Strength- based 
training about the 
process so families 

feel empowered and 
less afraid

Rural

Consolidate due dates 
across programs so 
families only have to 

keep track of one - like 
getting your taxes done

Rural

Community 
education 
at ACE's

Rural

Not qualifying. Going 
through the paperwork. 

Having a new caseworker 
who doesn’t know your 

case

Legend

Multiple 
user 

reports

Some 
user 

reports

Few user 
reports

Emotional Journey Dots

Journey Lines

Support 
required

No support 
required

Support required, 
difficult access

Non- English 
speaking









•

•

•

•





6

https://sp.slalom.com/ourfirm/studio/SitePages/templates.aspx




•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•



12



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•



  Thank you for joining!  We will begin shortly.  

● Please remember to mute your computer or phone when not speaking ● 

● We will be recording the meeting ●

● All materials can be found at: www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/eclc-meeting-information ●

September 23, 2021
1:00 pm – 4:00 pm

Google Hangouts



Meeting Objectives
• Approve the August 26, 2021 Meeting Minutes 

• Learn about Developing Solutions with Parents and 

Providers through Human Centered Design

• Discuss Department of Early Childhood Transition Plan 

and Universal Preschool Recommendations

• Hear comments from the early childhood community



Welcome and Approve Minutes
Tom Massey



Commissioner Introductions
Tom Massey



Developing Solutions with Parents and Providers through 
Human Centered Design

Hailey Dunnington, Senior Consultant – Slalom
Steffanie Clothier, Director of School Readiness - Gary Community Ventures
Nicole Riehl, President and CEO – Executives Partnering to Invest in Children



Public Comment
Pamela Harris



• Each speaker may take up to three (3) minutes to make his or 
her comments. This time constraint may be modified by the 
ECLC Co-Chairs.

• Any opinions, advice, statements, services, offers, or other 
information or content expressed or made available by 
stakeholders or members of the public during public comment 
does not constitute or imply its endorsement, 
recommendation, or favoring by the ECLC. 

Public Comment



Break



Department of Early Childhood Transition Plan 
and Universal Preschool Recommendations

Co-Chairs



Review Legislation, Timeline & Process



New Department of Early Childhood
HB21-1304 calls for the new unified Department of Early Childhood in 
collaboration with other departments, providers, and the community to:

● Provide high-quality, voluntary, affordable early childhood opportunities for all 
children in Colorado

● Coordinate the availability of early childhood programs and services in Colorado to 
meet the needs of all families

● Establish state and community partnerships that provide for a mixed delivery of 
child care and early childhood programs

● Prioritize family and community input

● Maximize the efficient use of resources to ensure that parents, children, and early 
childhood program and service providers are prioritized with a low administrative 
burden

● Prioritize the equitable delivery of resources and supports for early childhood

● Unify programs to support a streamlined parent and provider experience 



In November 2020, Colorado voters overwhelmingly passed a proposition to 
increase the state tax on nicotine and direct the funding to a voluntary 
universal preschool program. Under the program, beginning in 2023, all 
Colorado families, regardless of income, will have the opportunity to access 
10 hours of early care and education per week, per child, in the year prior to 
the child entering kindergarten. 

Legislation Calls for the New Universal Preschool Program to:
(a) Align existing funding for the Colorado Preschool Program…. and 

anticipated preschool funding from the preschool programs cash 
fund and incorporate the existing preschool program into the new 
preschool program to operate as a single state-level preschool and 
align with other relevant early childhood programs operated by the 
existing departments to achieve a streamlined preschool experience 
for children, families, and early childhood care and learning 
providers

Universal Preschool by 2023

https://leg.colorado.gov/sites/default/files/2020a_1427_signed.pdf


June 2021
HB21 - 
1304 
passed

July-Dec. 2021
TAG: Multiple meetings, 
with more frequent 
subgroup meetings
TWG: Weekly meetings
ECLC: Multiple 
meetings

By Nov. 1, 2021
Gov’s office submits the transition 
plan, developed by TWG with the 
advice of TAG, as part of its 2023 
budget request to the legislature. 
Gov’s office also submits the plan 
to ECLC for approval.

Jan. 1-Jan. 15, 2022
By Jan. 1, TWG submits 
new preschool program 
recommendations to 
ECLC for approval by 
Jan. 15, then to the 
legislature. Jan 2: Gov’s 
office submits any 
budget amendments.

2022 & 2023 Leg. 
Sessions
Legislature 
considers laws 
necessary based on 
submitted plans.

By Dec. 1,  2021
TWG presents approved 
transition plan to the Early 
Childhood and School 
Readiness Legislative 
Commission.

July 1, 2022
New 
Department of 
Early 
Childhood is 
launched 

By July 2023
Launch new 
universal 
voluntary 
preschool 
program.

Nov. 1-Nov. 15,  2021
By Nov. 15, TWG submits 
the approved plan to 
other legislative 
committees.

Transition Planning Timeline



Transformative 
Governance, 

Operations, and 
Funding

Innovative 
Data, 

Technology, 
Evaluation, and 
Accountability

Universal 
Preschool 

Implementation

Transition 
Advisory 

Group

Transition 
Working 

Group
Special 

Education 
Service Delivery

ECLC

Governor Legislature

Transition Advisory Subgroups offer insights to guide the creation of a 
transition plan to the new unified department of early childhood. Each group 
will offer recommendations from their perspectives or in their areas of 
expertise. This information will inform the Transition Advisory Group, 
Transition Working Group, and ECLC.

Transition Planning Process



Interactive User-Focused Listening Sessions
•Program Providers, Parents/Families, and Members of the Early Childhood 

Workforce

Monthly Town Halls
•Provide early childhood stakeholders with updates about the transition planning 

process and opportunities to get involved

Monthly Newsletter
•Sign up to receive these regular updates!

Stakeholder Feedback Form
•Share your recommendations, input, questions or suggestions through this 

Feedback Form

Statewide Listening Tour - Oct 11-15
•Members of our team will travel across the state this fall to share progress on the 

plan and collect feedback

Stakeholder Engagement

https://earlychildhoodcolorado.us19.list-manage.com/subscribe?id=aa29e61ec7&u=03c1149aadcd1cf70f5af9023
http://www.earlychildhoodcolorado.org/transition-plan-feedback-form


A reminder about the Feedback Form responses:

● The responses are all shared publicly on the Early Childhood 
Leadership Commission (ECLC) website removing all 
identifying information

● These responses are valuable input for this stakeholder 
engagement process

Feedback Form Responses

https://docs.google.com/spreadsheets/d/1XLtlGBEkxD8YIK_k5MlAyeM9DJ8hF_wia41eWnhc7Xk/edit#gid=344417820


HB21-1304 calls on the ECLC to approve the transition plan by November 15, 2021 
after receiving the plan from the Office of the Governor.

HB21-1304 calls for the the transition plan to include:
● The governance and structure of the new department;
● Mission and vision statements, as well as guiding values and principles for the 

coordination and administration of early childhood programs;
● The fiscal structure for the new department and the services provided and 

programs administered;
● Aligning and combining funding sources for early childhood services and 

programs;
● The timeline for completing key transition activities for the new department
● Technology required to support the new department
● Early Childhood data systems strategies to inform planning and  support 

data-driven decision-making

HB21-1304 also calls on the ECLC to approve recommendations for the new voluntary 
universal preschool program by January 15, 2022

ECLC Duties

https://leg.colorado.gov/bills/hb21-1304
https://leg.colorado.gov/bills/hb21-1304
https://leg.colorado.gov/bills/hb21-1304


ECLC Guiding Principles

Colorado is committed to the following guiding principles in the development of 
the transition plan and universal, voluntary preschool recommendations:



Review Recent Meetings



Subgroup Meetings Update
Data, Technology, Evaluation & Accountability

Week 5: Supports for Enrollment across EC 
System 

● Discussed the existing systems that support 
enrollment of child care, preschool and other 
early childhood services 

● Leverage technology to support both family 
and provider enrollment experiences, 
thinking critically about usability and 
accessibility from the beginning

● Communication  and collaboration across 
state and local partners will be very 
important 

Week 6: Current & ideal state agency data 
systems

● Presentations from Colorado Dept of 
Education, Colorado Dept of Public Health & 
Environment, and Colorado Dept of Human 
Services on current data systems

● First identify the outcomes we want to 
achieve and then build a system that 
measures that

● Challenges:  lack of consistent identifier 
across programs and services; funding (initial 
and ongoing); retaining institutional 
knowledge from state staff

Special Education Service Delivery

Week 5: Local Service Delivery
● Local communities build systems of 

community based organizations (CBOs) and 
local education agencies (LEAs) to deliver 
services to children and families 

● Based on learning to date - shared 
considerations for where programs should be 
locate: 

○ Part B (preschool special education): 
remain at Colorado Dept of Education 

○ Part C (early intervention): move to new 
Dept of Early Childhood, aligned with 
other early childhood programs

○ Continued coordination is needed to 
align and enhance access and delivery of 
services 

Week 6: Roles and Responsibilities of CDE and DEC
● Assuming the programs are located as above: 

○ Accountability and interagency 
agreements between DEC and CDE

○ Avoid siloing; work to address gaps and 
align services between and across 
programs

○ Need to develop a shared 
understanding of “mixed delivery” 



Subgroup Meetings Update
Governance, Operations & Funding

Week 5: Ideal Enrollment Processes for Families 
and Providers

● Centralized way for families to easily 
understand what services are available to 
them

● Opportunities to leverage technology to ease 
burdens on families accessing and sharing 
information

● Streamlined system for providers related to 
paperwork, reporting, funding, eligibility, 
and ability to easily connect families to other 
services

Week 6: Coordination across Departments and 
Strategies to incorporate Family Voices

● Ensure inter- and intra-agency coordination 
to prevent silos and enhance communication 
and  alignment across programs

● Ensure department leadership values and 
institutes ongoing opportunities for 
stakeholder engagement 

● Establish ongoing mechanisms that reach 
families where they are / use technology to 
allow for continuous feedback opportunities 

Universal Preschool Implementation

Week 5: Ideal Mixed Delivery System
● Develop comprehensive policies, standards, 

and accountability measures
● Ensure family choice
● Utilize technology to support universal 

enrollment and streamlined systems for 
providers

Week 6: Strategies to ensure adequate staffing 
and facilities to support UPK

● Compensation, access to affordable 
professional development, and overall 
well-being of providers as a priority 

● Utilize cost of care models for 
reimbursements, that allow for facility and 
maintenance costs 

● Consider incentives for businesses, churches, 
property owners, higher education, etc to 
provide space for care



2 Workforce Listening Sessions

Subgroups will reconvene the week of Sept 27. Click here for information on previous subgroups. 

Key Themes

● Be responsive to the needs of communities, ensuring there are supports for 
everyone no matter what language they speak

● Ensure there are family supports like the fatherhood program to educate 
the whole family, not just the child

● Provide more professional development, trainings, and ensure coaching is 
widely accessible

● Ensure clear communications with EC professionals whenever there are 
licensing changes - continue to shift the culture of licensing from a  
punitive role to a supportive role

● Address compensation: focus on ensuring the early childhood workforce is 
properly compensated for the skills and support they provide children and 
families

● Continue to allow choices of curriculum so that programs maintain their 
individuality

● Streamline regulations: Providers want to have one state contact, and clear 
alignment of regulations and requirements across agencies

https://docs.google.com/presentation/u/0/d/1QGWtYiyYzH4QlaBl6mDxV48BNYQvX87qGsWUYAkq91E/edit


Review Program Movement Recommendations



Considerations for Program Movement
HB21-1304 created DEC to ensure Colorado can improve outcomes for all children, 
fully implement the new preschool program, and effectively support all Colorado 
families to access  voluntary, high quality child care and education.

To execute this legislative charge, the following criteria were taken into account, 
when considering which programs should move to DEC:
● The alignment of the program’s purpose to the mission, vision, values, and 

guiding principles of DEC;
● The importance of aligning the current early childhood system with the new 

voluntary, statewide preschool program;
● The efficiencies and reduction of duplicative oversight implied by unifying 

programs;
● Federal limitations to the movement of the programs (e.g., CACFP, WIC, & 

IDEA, Part B); and
● The previous planning, engagement, and alignment work done in the 

creation of OEC.



Current Early Childhood Structure

CDPHE

CACFP*
Maternal and Child Health (Block 
Grant) *⤉
WIC

CDE

P-3 Office

Colorado Preschool 
Program 
(& additional 
school-system 
administered 
preschool funding 
sources, e.g. ECARE) 
Preschool Special 
Education ⤉
Early Childhood 
Assessment and 
Results Matter
EC Workforce 
Development Team

CDHS

OEC

Division of Early 
Learning Access 
and Quality

- Child Care Attendance Tracking System
- Colorado Child Care Assistance Program (CCCAP)*
- Colorado Shines Quality Rating and Improvement System 

(QRIS)
- Early Childhood Councils & CCR&Rs
- Early Childhood Workforce & Professional Development 

(PDIS)

Division of 
Community and 
Family Support

- Child Abuse Prevention Trust Fund
- Colorado Community Response
- Community-Based Child Abuse Prevention Program
- Early Childhood Mental Health
- Early Intervention
- Family Resource Centers
- Fatherhood Program*
- Head Start
- Home Visiting Programs (e.g.,NFP, SafeCare, PAT, Healthy 

Steps, Child First, HIPPY)
- Incredible Years
- Promoting Safe and Stable Families 

Division of Early 
Learning, 
Licensing and 
Administration

- Background Investigation Unit
- Child Care Licensing*

Operations

- Communications
- Early Childhood Leadership Commission
- Federal Opportunities (e.g., Preschool Development Grant)
- Finance and Contracts 
- Strategy / Policy

OES TANF*⤉
OCYF Child Welfare*

*these programs provide services to children beyond 5 years old 
see next slide for more information



Office of Early Childhood - Program Review
Mary Alice Cohen



ECLC Presentation
09/23/21

Colorado Office of Early Childhood (OEC)

27



OEC Mission 
We support families and communities so every child in 
Colorado thrives.

OEC Vision
To ensure all children in Colorado are valued, healthy, 
and thriving, we lead bold and innovative programming, 
remove barriers, and implement systems change.

OEC’s “Why”

28

Dept EC Mission 
All Colorado children, families and early childhood 
professionals are valued, healthy and thriving.

Dept EC Vision 
The Colorado Department of Early Childhood champions a 
comprehensive, community-informed, effective, high 
quality and equitable early childhood system that supports 
the care, education and well-being of all Colorado’s young 
children, their families and early childhood professionals in 
all settings



Children and Families in Colorado
● There are 402,668 children ages 5 and under in Colorado
● 62% live in households where all parents work
● 13% live in families below the official poverty line

29

Total Number of Children Ages 5 and Under: 402,668

Children by Age Number of 
Children

Percent

Under age 1 63,136 15.7%

Age 1 67,973 16.9%

Age 2 67,026 16.6%

Age 3 68,488 17.0%

Age 4 67,930 16.9%

Age 5 68,115 16.9%



Ensure all families have equitable 
and easy access to high quality 

early childhood services so that all 
children start school ready to 

succeed.

Strategy 1
Access

Provide communities and families 
with the support they need so 

children have a strong 
environment in which to thrive. 

Strategy 3
Family Strengthening

Educate the public and 
policymakers about the evolving 

needs of young children and 
families to ensure effective 

advocacy and systems change.

Strategy 4
Educate

Align our work with our mission, 
vision and values to ensure we 
implement bold, effective and 

innovative early childhood 
programming.

Strategy 6
Culture

Support the early childhood 
workforce, so that they have the 

tools to nurture and teach children 
in their care. 

Strategy 2
Workforce

Align available public and private 
funding streams to simplify 

administration and amplify the 
impact of early childhood services.

Strategy 5
Alignment

The OEC’s “How”
The 6 Strategies to ensure all children are valued, healthy, and thriving:

30



Office of Early Childhood Funding Overview
OEC’s total appropriated budget for FY 2021-22 is $669,122,884, which includes funds 
appropriated by the Long Bill and bills from the 2021 legislative session:

Additionally, the Office receives approximately $19.3M annually in non-appropriated 
discretionary federal funding.  

      

31

Source Total Funding GF CF RF FF

FY 2021-22 Long 
Bill

$280,899,807 $87,060,045 $53,352,394 $7,968,022 $132,519,346

Ongoing 
Legislative Bills

$13,058,565 $8,697,353 $0 $0 $4,361,212

Stimulus 
Legislative Bills

$375,164,512 $0 $500,000 $0 $374,664,512



OEC Programs
(please open this link to view OEC Program document)

● Division of Early Learning Licensing and Administration (DELLA)

● Division of Early Learning Access and Quality (DELAQ)

● Division of Community and Family Support

https://docs.google.com/document/d/1VGId_e4xAPNe6AyndR_67EMG2Ct32Og_Y4DFAiTfOOc/edit?usp=sharing


WIC and CACFP
Overview of Programs / Considerations for 

Movement



Special Supplemental Nutrition Program for 
Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)

WIC provides free supplemental food, 
education, and support

● Healthy food tailored to nutrition 
needs

● Breastfeeding support
● Nutrition education
● Referrals to care and services beyond 

WIC

● The WIC program is required to be administered by the state health department or its equivalent 
pursuant to federal law. 

● Defined in federal statute as Child Nutrition Act (1966) : ‘‘State agency’’ means the health 
department or comparable agency of each State.

● There is no authority in the Child Nutrition Act that allows USDA or FNS to approve a waiver.



Child & Adult Care Food Program (CACFP) 
CACFP provides reimbursement for healthy meals and snacks served to Colorado’s children and 
adults. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) funds the CACFP and the Colorado 
Department of Public Health and Environment administers the program.

Meals served
(October 2020-May 2021)

Incomplete year

● Afterschool programs: 6,154,640
● Child care centers: 5,069,459
● Family child care homes: 1,844,388
● Head Start: 851,180
● Adult day care: 413,699
● Before & after care: 40,958
● Homeless shelters: 38,579

Total: 24,422,853

Movement of CACFP
Challenges:

● Detangling of CACFP shared positions 
with WIC, loss of cost savings & 
efficiency

● Ongoing audits; USDA management 
evaluations early on 

● Increased risk of compliance issues
 
Needs:

● The new department needs to be 
prepared for high volume and complex 
legal matters, accounting, payment, and 
contracting 

● Continued attention on non-EC 
components of CACFP



RECOMMENDATION REGARDING PART B AND PART C SERVICE DELIVERY

Draft recommendations from TWG based on feedback from special education subgroup: 

Overall: 
• Continue to work toward a system where special education services are delivered for children birth 

through age 5 in a mixed delivery system that meaningfully includes community-based settings, at the 
location of family choice, consistent with Least Restrictive Environment (LRE), that is child centered and 
responsive to family needs.

Part B 619:
• Authority remains under the purview of Colorado Department of Education, to be reviewed in no more 

than 3 years

Part C:
• As part of the Office of Early Childhood, Part C Early Intervention moves to the Department of Early 

Childhood

Ongoing Coordination, Alignment and Professional Development
• Enhanced, coordinated, and aligned state support for programs in a mixed delivery system
• Develop MOUs or inter-agency agreements to ensure ongoing coordination at the state system and 

local levels (for Part B, 619 and between Part C & Part B)
• Encourage agreements with community-based organizations to provide special education services 
• Set a timeline to review / evaluate service delivery, partnerships, and outcomes for kids and families 
• Re-evaluate where programs are located, within no more than 3 years of operation of the new 

department
• Provide professional development for workforce - across the early childhood system 
• Collectively work to address divisive culture between and across the B-5 early care and education 

system, including special education 
• Continue to center on families and children’s experiences  



TAG Feedback on Program Movement

Overall there was large agreement with TWG’s recommendation of initial 
programs to move. Based on the 49  responses, here was the average for the 
survey** by program:

CDE
CPP: 8.8
Early Childhood Workforce 
Development Team: 8.7
Preschool Special Education (i.e. IDEA 
Part B 619): 7.9**

Additional comments:
● 4 individuals called out CACFP as an additional program to consider 
● 3 individuals elevated concerns about alignment in the child welfare system
● While the majority of members agreed with moving OEC as a whole, 3 individuals 

requested to analyze  movement on a program level rather than in categories

Office of Early Childhood
Early Learning Licensing and 
Administration: 9.2
Early Learning Access and Quality : 8.9
Community and Family Supports: 8.9
Early Intervention (i.e. IDEA Part C): 8.4
Early Childhood Operations 9.2

**A rating of 10 is fully agreement with the recommendation offered. In the case of Preschool Special 
Education, the recommendation was for the program to stay at CDE.



TAG Feedback on Program Movement

The draft recommendation for initial program movement:
● Colorado Preschool Program (CPP)
● EC Workforce Development Team
● All programs/systems currently housed at OEC, including 

IDEA Part C

By July 2025, Colorado will also consider the following programs at a 
minimum :
● WIC
● CACFP
● Preschool Special Education (IDEA 619 Part B)



Blending/Braiding Funding and 
Technology 



Charge 
HB21-1304 requires the transition plan to address: 

● Aligning and combining funding sources for early childhood (taking 
previous local efforts for streamlining into account)

● Technology required to achieve goals to support parents/caregivers to 
identify local, appropriate, and available early childhood program and 
service options and support unification 

● Early childhood data systems strategies to inform planning, leverage 
resource, allocations, maximize children’s access to programs, & support 
data-driven decision-making

Given Colorado’s local control context, recommendations to improve these 
areas should consider the appropriate roles for state and local governments 
and their interactions with families.



This graphic is not exhaustive but highlights how the fragmented local governance system can cause 
challenges for the very people it is supposed to serve.

EC System for Families
Background Resource

A family is looking 
for a fully-funded, 

full time slot and 
other support 

services.

Applies at their local school 
for a half-day CPP slot, and 
awaits placement based on 
availability of limited slots.

Applies through the local 
county office for CCAP for 
additional funded hours 
of care, but receives fewer 
hours than they need

Applies to local child care 
providers for a part-time 
slot and after school care 
that works with CCAP hours

Applies to several home 
visiting sites for additional 
family supports

Applies to Head Start for a 
full-time slot, and is 
placed on a waiting list

Find help to complete 
applications if English is 
not their first language

Navigate multiple websites, 
portals and communications 
structures to get information

Researches quality, 
affordability, and 
convenience of each 
individual program

Throughout the stakeholder engagement process, families expressed having to navigate the 
following functions within the early childhood system. An example family may have the below 
experience: 



This graphic is not exhaustive but highlights how the fragmented local governance system can cause 
challenges for the very people it is supposed to serve.

EC System for Providers
Background Resource

A provider is looking 
for funding to 

expand access and 
build capacity.

Must adhere to CCAP 
regulations if they 
have funded slots

Must adhere to the CPP 
standards, regulations and 
reporting requirements

Contact OEC to make sure 
their new hires receive 
approved background 
checks in a timely fashion 

Contact CDPHE to determine 
their eligibility and apply for 
CACFP to receive funding for 
meals served for all children in 
their care

Must work with regional or 
national Head Start office if 
they are the grantee for their 
community

Must work with local school 
district/BOCES to ensure 
special education service 
delivery is in compliance 
with IDEA

Work with their local ECC to 
provide professional 
development for their staff

Must understand fiscal policies 
attached to all funding streams 
so they can help families 
blend/braid funding

Must ensure staff have 
teaching credentials and 
certifications

Through the stakeholder engagement process, providers expressed having to navigate the following 
functions within the early childhood system:



● 64 County CCAP Administrators
● 34 ECCs: Early Childhood Councils
● 178 DACs: District Advisory Councils 
● 35 FRCs: Family Resource Centers
● 1 statewide CCR&R: Child Care Resource & Referral hotline
● 17 CCR&R: Child Care Resource & Referrals (regionally based)
● 4 Home Visiting State Intermediaries
● 21 BOCEs: Boards of Cooperative Educational Services
● 69 AUs: Administrative Units*
● 178 School Boards
● 20 CCBs: Community Centered Boards
● 7 CACFP Sponsor Sites
● 110 WIC Clinics
● 2 Tribal Communities: Ute Mountain Ute Tribe and Southern Ute Indian Tribe
● 204 Head Start centers
● 119 Early Head Start centers

A major theme emerging out of ongoing conversations has been the need for a 
more coherent experience for families, providers, workforce, and children as they 
navigate these programs and services.

Colorado has multiple initiatives to support children, families, and providers. 
These initiatives are funded and authorized by different state agencies, and 
are locally led by different agencies and organizations, including: 

Background Resource Current State: Local Governance Structures



State and Local Relationship

In order to implement its mission and vision of creating a unified system, the 
new department will need deep and effective partnerships with localities to 
support the unique needs of each community in Colorado. 

Stakeholders have expressed that there is a need to 
strengthen the early childhood experience, not just at 

the state level but in coordination with their local 
communities as well. 



Feedback: Blending & Braiding

There was large agreement from TAG members that the challenges and solutions presented 
were the right ones. Below are some highlights from the comments members made:

● It is important to center communities and not the bureaucratic systems that they 
interact with to access resources. Wherever possible, the new agency should work with 
and empower local decision making structures that are working well. 

● “ I recommend some mapping of readiness, structures, and systems right away to see 
where there ready communities and where additional structures are needed.” 

● Consider how ALL families and providers will be impacted by changes.

● It will be important to keep in mind that new  structures can pose a burden on certain 
groups who already feel distrust in government for example undocumented families.

● Consider how to create a system that is prepared and flexible  to scale to new 
investments, including potential federal investments. 

● Members yearned for first answers on how this all could work especially how blending 
and braiding can work with real funding scenarios. There seems to be confusion on 
whether this can legally be done at the state level or not. 



Sept 22 TAG Takeaways on Blending & Braiding

● Conversations centered around empowering localities that have innovative 
solutions to the challenges of blending and braiding
○ In some areas of Colorado, local organizations (family resource centers, 

ECCs, local preschool programs) are already working together to 
decrease the financial burden on families

○ Many localities feel they have to create their own solutions and are not 
supported at the state level to do this work

● Families should be centered in all proposed solutions. They are the end users 
and should be seen as partners in doing what is best for all children.

● Regulations and policies should be reviewed to make  it easier for local 
entities to meet the needs of families.

● Members also raised the need to figure out how to support families who do 
not want to participate in a formal preschool program

● Workforce challenges arose to the forefront, as the expansion of the early 
childhood system is reliant on an increase in EC professionals.  



 Updated Challenges and Solutions 
Challenge 1
Regulations  are not 
aligned.

DEC should revise and streamline existing regulations (e.g. eligibility, program 
standards, reporting requirements) across funding sources to ensure that families 
and providers have more flexibility with funds and less administrative burden, in 
alignment with federal laws.

Challenge 2
Separate programs have 
separate funding and 
technology structures.

DEC should utilize one simple application for universal preschool and related 
slot-based programs that is easy to use for families and providers, and 
technologically accessible. Over time, additional programs should be added to the 
unified application as it is beneficial for families and children.

Challenge 3
Different funding sources 
flow to different local 
structures with no one 
responsible for  ensuring 
cohesion.

DEC should itself blend and braid state dollars before allocations are released for 
state-controlled funds.

DEC must build local capacity to blend and braid local and federal-to-local funds 
with state funds across slot-based programs, including ensuring systems are ready 
for additional federal dollars should they become available.

Challenge 4
Each community is 
different with  differing 
current levels of 
coordination and 
implementation.

DEC should structure itself, its money and its programs to empower local 
communities to lead and innovate based on their context. Immediately, DEC should 
commence a review of community readiness/structures/systems to determine 
necessary community support for successful launch of UPK, EC unification, and 
innovation.

DEC should elevate and scale  local exemplars to build statewide solutions, and 
should provide feedback and support for all communities. Where possible, DEC 
should promote and support community leadership within the state system.

Challenge 5
There is a lack of visibility 
into systems statewide. 

DEC should prioritize, coordinate, and require the collection of data on access, need, 
demand, and capacity by demographics and locality across all program types and in 
a way that does not burden providers.

What else is missing or can be added to this chart?



Next Steps
 A draft report of this plan will be released in early October  for review 
and feedback from TAG, subgroups, ECLC, providers, families, and 
stakeholders. Stakeholders will be engaged in the following ways:
● Statewide listening tour: To promote engagement and feedback, 

there will be a statewide listening tour in early October (see next 
slide for dates). 

● October 20 TAG Meeting: TAG members will also have the 
opportunity to provide feedback at the October 20th TAG 
meeting. 

● October 28 ECLC Meeting: ECLC will have a final chance to review 
and provide feedback on the draft plan. 

● Feedback Form: Stakeholders can offer written feedback through 
a public form.

Per the legislation, all of the feedback and recommendations from 
the TAG and its subgroups are considered by TWG to inform the 
transition plan due to the ECLC on November 1.

Report with recommendations for new preschool program is due to the ECLC on January 1.



Statewide Listening Tour
Members of the Transition Working Group will travel the state and hold 
Listening Sessions to share the draft plan and ask for feedback: 

Information coming soon!  Please help promote these opportunities in your community!



Co-Chairs’ Next Steps, Final Thoughts and Adjourn
Susan Steele



Upcoming Meeting Dates

October 28, 2021
9:30 am – 12:30 pm

November 10, 2021*
9:30 am – 12:30 pm

December 16, 2021
9:30 am – 12:30 pm

January 11, 2022*
9:30 am – 12:30 pm

*Newly Added ECLC Meetings



Next Meeting:

October 28, 2021 
9:30 am - 12:30 pm

Thank you!



© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY 1

Pre se nta t ion to  the  Ea rly Child hood  Le a d e rship  Com m ission

Ste ffa nie  Clo thie r, Ga ry Com m unity Ve nture s
Ha ile y Dunning ton, Sla lom
Nicole  Rie hl, EPIC

Se p te m b e r 23, 20 21

De ve lop ing  Solut ions with Pa re nts 
a nd  Provid e rs throug h Hum a n 
Ce nte re d  De sig n 



ECE De sig n Pro je ct

2

Using  Hum a n Ce nte re d  De sig n to  re d e sig n Colora d o’s Ea rly Child hood  
Ed uca t ion syste m

Project vision

To tra nsform  the  fra g m e nte d  Ea rly Child hood  Ed uca tion (ECE) syste m , includ ing  child ca re  a nd  
p re school p rog ra m m ing , into  a  unifie d  syste m . To d o  so , we  will p ut  p a re nts a nd  p rovid e rs a t  the  
core  of the  ne e d s a sse ssm e nt a nd  think b old ly a b out  future  sta te  d e sig n op p ortunit ie s tha t  ca n 
inform  ong oing  tra nsit ion p la nning  a nd  e a rly child hood  d e p a rtm e nt p la nning .  We  se e k to  e ng a g e  
m e m b e rs of the  com m unity, d rive  e q uity a cross the  ECE syste m , a nd  e nsure  tha t  b o th p a re nts a nd  
p rovid e rs fe e l va lue d  a nd  he a rd  throug hout the  p ro je ct . 

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY



3

Alig ning  to  ECLC g uid ing  
p rincip le s to  d e live r re a l- world  
so lut ions fo r . . .
• Child, fa mily, a nd community centered

• Equity driven

• Innova tion

• Strea mlined efficiency

• Holistic services a pproa ch

• Da ta -driven outcomes

ALIGNMENT

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY



Informed transition planning

• Learnings from parents and providers 
will support the transition planning led 
by the Governor’s office, Early 
Childhood Leadership Commission and 
executive departments that serve 
families and children

• Inputs will inform transition plans for 
new departments and consolidated 
preschool program

Exp e ct e d  Pro je ct  Out co m e s

Engaged families and providers

• Ga the ring  fe e d b a ck a nd  inp uts from  
fa m ilie s a nd  p rovid e rs—who ha ve  ofte n 
la cke d  a  strong  voice  in the  d e sig n of 
ECE p rog ra m s—ca n d rive  e ng a g e m e nt 
a nd  p rog ra m  sa t isfa ct ion

• Inp ut  from  p rovid e rs a nd  fa m ilie s will 
e nsure  tha t  p rog ra m  a nd  p roce ss 
d e sig ns m e e t  the  ne e d s of a ll typ e s of 
child re n a nd  p rovid e rs a nd  d rive  
a cce ssib ility a nd  e q uity

Streamlined process design 
recommendations

• Re a l fe e d b a ck from  fa m ilie s a nd  
p rovid e rs will sha p e  how p rog ra m s, 
p roce sse s, a nd  syste m s a re  re d e sig ne d  
a nd  sha p e d  includ ing :

• The  a p p lica t ion p roce ss

• Elig ib ility /  re d e te rm ina t ion

• Pa ym e nt syste m s

• Re g ula tory a p p roa che s

• Infra structure

• Prog ra m  e q uity a nd  a cce ssib ility

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY



5

Our approach



6

Le ve ra g e  a  hum a n- ce nte re d
d e sig n a p p roa ch, we  will 
co lla b ora t e  with st a ke hold e rs 
a cross Colora d o  to  inform  the  
t ra nsit ion p la nning  p roce ss. 

OUR APPROACH

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY



7

Re se a rch focus a re a s
01
Explore the difference in journeys 
across three parent types:

• No fina ncia l a ssista nce  re q uire d

• Sup p le m e nta l a ssista nce  re q uire d  
(e .g ., CCCAP, CPP, e tc.)

• Assista nce  re q uire d  b ut  st rug g le  to  
a cce ss fund ing  (e .g ., und ocum e nte d  
p a re nts, p a re nts just  ove r incom e  
thre shold s, ca n’t  m e e t  e lig ib ility 
re q uire m e nts) 

02
Understand how at - risk 
populations navigate the ECE 
landscape

• Id e nt ify the  cha lle ng e s in find ing  
fund ing  sup p ort  re source s, the   
a p p lica t ion p roce ss, the  flow of 
inform a tion from  p rovid e rs, 
na vig a t ing  la ng ua g e / cultura l 
b a rrie rs, e tc.

• De fine  wha t  re source s a re  o ffe re d  to  
a t-risk fa m ilie s a nd  whe n

• De fine  the  a m ount  o f ca re  p a re nts 
ne e d  a nd  wha t  m a tte rs to  the m

03
Define the resource toll on 
providers to serve at - risk 
populations
• Und e rsta nd  the  journe y b e hind  how 

p rovid e rs o f d iffe re nt  size s na vig a te  
the  com p le xit ie s o f d iffe re nt  
g ove rning  b od ie s a nd  fund ing  
source s

• Qua ntify the  t im e  a nd  re source  
st ra in tha t  p rovid e rs fe e l

04
Explore redundancies that impact 
programming
• Uncove r whe re  a nd  how d up lica t ive  

re g ula t ions yie ld s p ie ce m e a l 
p rog ra m m ing  (incre a sing  p rovid e r 
st ra in)

• De fine  the  ne e d s a ssocia te d  with a  
conso lid a te d  or ne w p a ym e nt  
syste m  a nd  und e rsta nd  
op p ortunit ie s to  re d uce  d up lica t ive  
re g ula t ions a nd  p roce sse s

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

OUR APPROACH



8

By the  num be rs

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

OUR APPROACH

Gather additional insights from the 
broader transition planning Ideate human -centered solutions 

with stakeholders across Colorado 
for regions Denver/Larimer County, 
Las Animas/Huerfano County, 
Mountain, and El Paso County

Identify and assess current state 
through background 
documentation, legislation review, 
and initial discussions

Gain understanding of stakeholder 
perspectives, priorities and future 
vision, as well as current challenges, 
initiatives and performance 

29
Parent, provider, and industry 
expert interviews (Design Team), 
including families for whom 
Spanish is their home language

400+
Pages of research and legislation 
documentation reviewed

8+
Hours of listening in on ECLC 
subgroup sessions

7
Design thinking workshops —each 
with 12+attendees from across 
Colorado



9

Workshop  cove ra ge

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

OUR APPROACH

1

2

3

4

1. Denver / Larimer County
2. El Paso County
3. Western Slope / FFN Network in Roaring Fork
4. Las Animas / Huerfano County
5. Statewide Non - English Speaking Communities



10

What we learned

https://sp.slalom.com/ourfirm/studio/SitePages/templates.aspx


11

Design te a m  them es
RESEARCH FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

01

Deliver a Modern ECExthat Mirrors Real Life

Le ve ra g e  te chnolog y a nd  d a ta  to  d e live r 
p e rsona lize d , conte xtua l e xp e rie nce s tha t  re m ove  
b a rrie rs a nd  incre a se  a cce ss.

04

Address Teacher Recruiting and Retention

Ad d re ss com p e nsa t ion a nd  g e og ra p hic-re la te d  
issue s (e .g . housing , p rof d e v, t im e  off), im p a ct ing  
p rovid e r’s a b ility to  re ta in top  ta le nt .

02

Collaborate with Private Sector

The  p riva te  se ctor ha s skin in this g a m e . Le ve ra g e  
the ir a b ility to  b e  nim b le  a nd  innova t ive .

03

Democratize a Flexible Funding Model

Esta b lish the  vision, a lig n fund ing  st re a m s to  the  
vision, e nforce  g ua rd ra ils, a nd  a llow fle xib ility 
b a se d  on the  re a lit ie s o f the  loca l m a rke t .

05

Define Quality

Thoug htfully a d d re ss the  d e finit ion of q ua lity in 
ca re , consid e ring  im p a cts o f e d uca t ion, 
la ng ua g e , a nd  cit ize nship  re q uire m e nts.

06

De- segregate Data

Insig hts re g a rd ing  re a ch, a wa re ne ss, a nd  
e ng a g e m e nt  a re  se g re g a te d  b a se d  on p o licy 
p rio rit ie s inste a d  of m a rke t  re a lit ie s.



12

Provide r them es
RESEARCH FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

01

Workforce scarcity

The  ina b ility to  re cruit  a nd  re ta in q ua lifie d  
te a che rs is the  # 1 thre a t  to  e a rly child hood  
e d uca t ion 

04

Exclusive vs. inclusive

Acce ss to  inform a tion a nd  sup p ort  se e m s 
re se rve d  for those  who know how to  na vig a te  the  
syste m  a nd  ha ve  the  "rig ht" conne ct ions

02

Measurement mismatch

We  a re  too  focuse d  on the  wrong  p e rform a nce  
ind ica tors o f the  rig ht  g oa l - d riving  p osit ive , 
e q uita b le  outcom e s for child re n a nd  fa m ilie s

03

Funding process = shame

The  re q ue st  fo r, a nd  d e te rm ina t ion of fund ing , is 
a n ina uthe nt ic p roce ss tha t  ca n cre a te  b a rrie rs to  
a cce ss a nd  p re ve nt  t rue  fa m ily choice

05

Data scarcity

A la ck of t rust  b e twe e n sta ke hold e rs, e sp e cia lly in 
re p ort ing  a nd  the  d a ta  m a na g e m e nt , is a  m a jor 
ca use  of the  d up lica te  p roce sse s 



13

Provide r workshop s
WORKSHOP FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

Workshop #1 Workshop #2

De t a ils

Aug ust  28

Ke y Le a rning s
• De sire  fo r a  stre a m line d  p la ce  to  se e  re g ula t ions a nd  com p le te  

re q uire m e nts
• The re  is a  g e ne ra l la ck of t rust  o f re g ula to ry a g e ncie s im p a cts the  

p rovid e r journe y from  the  sta rt
• Ne e d  for fle xib le  lice nsing  coa ching  in a d d it ion to  insp e ctions; 

sta nd a rd ize  lice nsing  sp e cia lists’ a p p roa ch to  re q uire m e nts
• Wa nt a  roa d m a p  for p rovid e rs to  g e t  from  p oint  A to  p o int  B

• Lice nsing  ne e d s to  b e  m ore  o f a n ong oing  p a rtne rship

De t a ils

Se p t  16

Ke y Le a rning s
• Be lie f tha t  FT e nro llm e nt = FT t im e  p a y e ve n if child  is p icke d  up  e a rly
• Pre fe re nce  tha t  fund ing  is fo r a ll fo rm s of fa m ily sup p ort  a nd  p rovid e r 

costs, no t  just  to  p a y te a che rs
• Pe rce p tions tha t  CO Shine s is a  chicke n b e fore  the  e g g ; in o rd e r to  g e t  

b e t te r fund ing , you m ust  ra te  hig he r, b ut  in o rd e r to  ra te  hig he r you 
ne e d  m ore  m one y to  sp e nd  on p rofe ssiona l d e ve lop m e nt

• Frustra t ion tha t  the  fina ncia l sup p ort  se e m s b ia se d  a g a inst  sing le  
m a le  p a re nts

• Pe rce p tion tha t  CO Shine s curriculum  re q uire m e nts d on’t  m e e t  the  
ne e d s o f a ll child re n a t  a ll le ve ls

Quo t e s Quo t e s

“ The  re g ula t ions a re  im p ossib le  
to  op e ra t iona lize .”

“ The re  a re  a  lo t  of unwrit te n rule s 
tha t  you d on' t  know a b out  unt il you 
g e t  writ te n up  for it .”

“ Som e tim e s our lice nsing  conta ct  
isn' t  e ve n sure  of the  curre nt  rule s.”

“ We  ha ve  ta ke n p e op le  who a re  
p a ssiona te  a b out  child  ca re  a nd  
turne d  the m  into  g lorifie d  
a d m inistra t ive  a ssista nts.”

“ Colora d o Shine s te lls m e  I ne e d  a rt  
on the  wa lls, b ut  the n the  fire  
d e p a rtm e nt  sa ys the  a rt  m ust  com e  
d own b e ca use  it ' s a  fire  ha za rd . So , I 
p ut  it  up  for one  a nd  the n ta ke  it  
d own the  ne xt  we e k for the  o the r.”

“ Eve ry county se ts the ir own rule s for CCCAP. The y 
ne e d  to  sta nd a rd ize  p olicie s a cross the  Sta te ”

“ It  fe e ls like  a  m onop oly; if you d on' t  know som e b od y in tha t  
fund ing  source  the n it  just  d ra g s - you ha ve  to  g a m e  the  
syste m  b y re lying  on p e rsona l conne ct ions.”

“ I’ve  he a rd  the  se nt im e nt  of “ b e g g ing  for 
scra p s”  from  m a ny of our La t inx-se rving  ce nte rs 
in te rm s of a cce ssing  fund ing  a nd  sup p ort .”

"If the new PDIS system was rolled out by Apple, 
Apple users would have thrown out their phone the 
next day. It's garbage and belongs in the trash can."



14

Provide r workshop s (cont’d)
WORKSHOP FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

Statewide Non - English Speaking Providers

De t a ils

Roa ring Fork FFN HCD Workshop
Se p te m b e r 15

HCD Workshop
Se p te m b e r 15

Unite d  Wa y for Fa m ilie s
ECE Pa re nt  Ad visor Group
Se p te m b e r 10

Ke y Le a rning s
• Afra id  o f conse q ue nce s to  im m ig ra t ion sta tus in the  future  if op e ning  a  ce nte r p rio r to  cit ize nship  - is it  e ve n p ossib le ?

• Ce rta in tha t  the y d on' t  ha ve  the  m one y for the  ove rhe a d  costs like  e noug h sp a ce  or re source s to  b uy re q uire d  m a te ria ls

• Excite d  to  le a rn tha t  the re  a re  Sp a nish-la ng ua g e  ce rt ifica t ion course s a t  the  loca l com m unity co lle g e

• De sire  to  g e t  lice nse d  so  p a re nts will p a y m ore  tha n m inim um  (a vg . $20 / d a y)

• Inse cure  whe n p a re nts a sk if the y ha ve  the  rig ht  p a p e rwork a nd  insura nce

• Frustra te d  tha t  the  Fe d e ra l g ove rnm e nt ta lks a b out  child  ca re  a nd  p re school, b ut  the y a re  only ta lking  a b out  infra structure

• Excite d  to  le a rn a b out  the  Colora d o  Sta te wid e  Pa re nt  Coa lit ion (PASO), which p rovid e s in-hom e  tra ining  without  a  lice nse

Quo t e s
"The re  is som e thing  
p rofound ly cle a r for us - we  
wa nt  the  b e st  for our kid s."

"Pa re nt  re fuse  to  p a y m e  
b e ca use  the y sa y I'm  not  
a  re a l b usine ss."

"We  ha ve  [our] m od e l cop ie d  in o the r 
com m unit ie s, a nd  we  wa nt  our 
le g isla tors to  know tha t ."

"We  wa nt  to  b re a k the  cycle  of 
fa m ilie s not  se e ing  the  va lue  of ECE. 
Tha t ' s the  wa y to  e d uca te  p a re nts."

"Whe re  is m y se lf- love  whe n I 
ca n' t  g e t  p a id . I p ut  m y love , 
p a t ie nce  a nd  q ua lity into  this."

"I ha d  a  p a re nt  who would  d rop  off he r kid  
a t  5 a .m . a nd  just  e xp e ct  m e  to  ta ke  him . I 
fe e l uncom forta b le  se t t ing  b ound a rie s."

“ Wom e n will b e  e m p owe re d  
to  le a ve  the ir child re n in a  sa fe  
p la ce  so  the y ca n work.”

“ [Pe op le ] think [b a b ie s] d on' t  ne e d  a  lo t  of a t te nt ion, 
b ut  I know b e t te r tha n tha t . With a  rout ine  a nd  ca re , 
the y will b e  b e t te r a d a p te d  a s te e na g e rs."

"I p a y m ore  to  ta ke  ca re  of the se  
kid s tha n the  p a re nts p a y m e . Wha t  
the y p a y m ig ht  cove r two d ia p e rs."



15

Provid e r Journe y Ma p

https://miro.com/app/board/o9J_l0vO420=/


16

Pa rent  them es
RESEARCH FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

01

Payment paralysis

Pa ym e nt  is t ie d  to  a t te nd a nce . howe ve r, p rog ra m  
hours d on' t  m a tch the  re a lity o f m a ny fa m ilie s'  
work sche d ule s o r t ra nsp orta t ion cha lle ng e s. As a  
re sult , p a re nts o fte n ca n' t  m e e t  a t te nd a nce  
e xp e cta t ions which m e a ns p a ym e nt  is withhe ld .

04

Exclusive vs. inclusive

Awa re ne ss of, a nd  a cce ss to , inform a tion a nd  
sup p ort  se e m s to  b e  re se rve d  for white , Eng lish-
sp e a king  fa m ilie s who know how to  na vig a te  the  
syste m  a nd  m old  the m se lve s to  fit  its re q uire m e nts.

02

Detrimental determination process

The  a p p lica t ion a nd  e nro llm e nt  e xp e rie nce  is 
t im e -consum ing , confusing , a nd  re d und a nt  
which p re ve nts fa m ilie s from  p la nning , 
b ud g e t ing , a nd  se curing  e m p loym e nt  whe n 
sche d ule s se e m  unce rta in.

03

Funding process = shame

De te rm ina t ion a nd  re d e te rm ina t ion of fund ing  is a n 
inva sive  e xp e rie nce  tha t  ca n ca use  a  se nse  of sha m e , 
conflict  within the  hom e , a nd  is o fte n e noug h of a  
b a rrie r in a nd  of itse lf to  p re ve nt  fa m ilie s fo r se e king  
the  sup p ort  fo r which the y q ua lify.

05

Access + inequity

Word -of-m outh within som e  com m unit ie s ca use s 
p a re nts to  fe a r p e rce ive d  conse q ue nce s of 
se e king  fina ncia l a ssista nce  (e .g . loss o f custod y, 
im m ig ra t ion issue s, e tc.).

06

Scarcity of family choice

Qua lity ra t ing s ofte n d on' t  fa ctor into  fa m ilie s'  
lim ite d  choice s a b out  whe re  to  p la ce  the ir child re n. 
Tt ' s m ore  so  a b out  whe re  is the re  a n op e ning , is it  
sa fe , d oe s it  a cce p t  the  rig ht  typ e  of fina ncia l 
a ssista nce , a nd / or is it  close  e noug h to  the  hom e  
or on the  wa y to  work



17

Pa re nt  workshop s
WORKSHOP FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

Denver / Larimer County El Paso County

De t a ils

Se p te m b e r 7

Ke y Le a rning s
• De sire  fo r m ore  fle xib ility a nd  com m unity with p a re nts so  the y a re  up  to  

d a te  a b out  ne w p rog ra m s
• Ne e d  for m ore  child  ca re  ce nte rs a nd  p re schools tha t  a re  e q uip p e d  to  

work with sp e cia l ne e d s kid s
• Ne e d  for m ore  p rog ra m s a nd  ce nte rs tha t  o ffe r child  ca re  d uring  non-

tra d it iona l b usine ss hours
• Be lie f tha t  child  ca re  is just  d a yca re  without  q ua lity d e live ry of a g e -

a p p rop ria te  curriculum
• Pe rce p tion tha t  p rog ra m s ha ve  no  ince ntive  to  no t  focus on fa m ilie s tha t  

ca n p a y ca sh

De t a ils

Se p te m b e r 9

Ke y Le a rning s
• Pa ssiona te  a d op tion of Cla ssDoJo a s a  wa y to  co lla b ora te  with te a che rs
• Frustra t ion a b out  ina b ility to  find  a  sing le  p rog ra m  tha t  ca n ta ke  a ll the  

fa m ily’s e a rly le a rne rs
• De sire  fo r fa ste r turna round  on CCCAP a p p lica t ions
• Ne e d  for b e t te r custom e r se rvice  a nd  se nsit ivity tra ining  fo r sub sid y 

worke rs
• De sire  fo r t ra nsp orta t ion ne e d s to  b e  consid e re d  a s p a rt  o f sup p ort
• Pe rce p tion tha t  som e  CCCAP a p p lica t ion q ue st ions se e m  p urp ose fully 

ha rd

Quo t e s Quo t e s

"I wa s surround e d  b y p e op le  
te lling  m e  not  to  a p p ly for CCCAP 
b e ca use  Child  Pro te ct ive  Se rvice s 
m ig ht  ta ke  m y kid  a wa y."

"White  kid s g o  to  white  
school. Bla ck kid s g o  to  b la ck 
schools. Nothing  will e ve r 
cha ng e  if we  ke e p  this up ."

"Ma king  $50 k/ ye a r with two p e op le  
working  is d iffe re nt  tha n m a king  
$50 K/ ye a r a s a  sing le  p a re nt . The se  
situa t ions should  b e  t re a te d  d iffe re nt ly.

"How [m y d a ug hte r] wa s b orn isn' t  
im p orta nt  [whe n d e te rm ining ]if we  
d e se rve  d a yca re . How long  I wa s in 
la b or too . Re a lly?"

"Acce ssib ility is a  b ig  p rob le m  if we  
a re  only a b le  to  a p p ly in one  or 
two p la ce s a nd  it ' s on the  o the r 
sid e  of the  city from  the  fa m ilie s 
with no  t ra nsp orta t ion. You ca n' t  
a p p ly or e nro ll your child  if you 
ha ve  no  wa y to  g e t  the re ."

"Diffe re nt  zip  
cod e s d e finite ly 
g e t  d iffe re nt  
a d va nta g e s. I' d  
love  if a ll the  
schools re ce ive d  
the  sa m e  
re source s"

"If m y curre nt  so lut ion fa lls 
throug h, I' ll ha ve  to  q uit  m y job ."

"Re p re se nta t ion is so  im p orta nt . If you 
only ha ve  one  typ e  of p e op le  working  
som e whe re , whe n you d on' t  fit  into  tha t  
g roup , you won' t  wa nt  to  b ring  your 
child  the re  or a t te nd  it  yourse lf."

“ Pe op le  in the  syste m  a ssum e  
you' re  the  ste re otyp e  a nd  a re  just  
working  the  syste m .”



18

Pa re nt  workshop s (cont’d)
WORKSHOP FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

Las Anima / Huerfano County

De t a ils

Se p te m b e r 13

Ke y Le a rning s
• Frustra te d  tha t  the re  is only one  lice nse d  child  ca re  in the  county (the  school d istrict  p re school) a nd  no  lice nse d  0 -3 child ca re  a va ila b le
• Hop e  tha t  loca l b usine sse s will b e g in to  se e  child  ca re  a s a n e conom ic d rive r a nd  e ithe r p rovid e  child  ca re  a t  work, sub sid ize  child  ca re , o r a t  

le a st  sub sid ize  the  cost  to  p a re nts
• De sire  to  se e  m ore  p rovid e rs cult iva te d  throug h outre a ch to  p o te ntia l te a che rs in hig h school o r loca l co lle g e s

• Wishing  tha t  the re  we re  loca t ions o the r tha n the  DHS office  to  a p p ly in o rd e r to  a vo id  loca l g ossip

• Ang ry tha t  the  Sta te  d oe sn’t  se e m  to  re a lize  the  p lig ht  o f rura l worke rs a nd  the ir b a rrie rs to  ECE d ue  to  d ista nce  a nd  tra nsp orta t ion re a lit ie s

Quo t e s

"Whe n a p p lying  in p e rson, it ’s e m b a rra ssing  whe n you ha ve  to  d ivulg e  a ll your inform a tion 
in front  of a  lo t  of p e op le . It  re a lly m a ke s you fe e l sm a ll a nd  uncom forta b le  whe n you ha ve  
to  re p e a t  your situa t ion ove r a nd  ove r a g a in in front  of a  crowd ."

“ The re ’s no  q ua lity ca re  within d riving  d ista nce .”

“ One  of the  g a ls hit  the  na il on the  he a d  with p rovid ing  
on-site  child ca re  with a t  job site s. Possib ly, the  cost  of re nt  
sp a ce  b e ing  p a id  for b y a  g ra nt!? “

“ The re  is a  st ig m a  in this com m unity a b out  re ce iving  sup p ort . Most  fo lks 
d on’t  a p p ly b e ca use  the y won’t  g o  into  the  DHS ce nte r b e ca use  the n 
e ve ryb od y will know your b usine ss.”

“ Em p loye rs ne e d  the ir 
worke rs to  g e t  to  work a s 
m uch a s worke rs ne e d  to  
find  ca re  so  the y ca n g e t  
to  work a nd  g e t  p a id .”



19

Pa re nt  workshop s (cont’d .)
WORKSHOP FINDINGS

© 20 21 Sla lom , LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

Statewide Non - English Speaking Families

De t a ils

HCD Workshop
Se p te m b e r 15
7 p a rt icip a nts

Unite d  Wa y for Fa m ilie s
ECE Pa re nt  Ad visor Group
Se p te m b e r 10

Ke y Le a rning
• Frustra te d  tha t  white  fa m ilie s g e t  to  le a p -frog  the  wa it list  o f som e  child  ca re  p rovid e rs; som e  p rovid e rs d on’t  g ive  re source  to non-Eng lish 

sp e a king  fa m ilie s b e ca use  the y a re n’t  ince ntivize d  to  a ssist  the ir fa m ilie s
• Ea g e r to  ha ve  co lloq uia lly a cce ssib le  inform a tion a b out  re source  a t  food  b a nks, WIC, HR, o r d octor o ffice s/ clinics
• Dise nfra nchise d  b y la ck of t ra nsp orta t ion op tions, p rice , se rvice  hours, cultura l d isp a rit ie s, a nd  a m ount o f a t te nt ion the ir child re n will g e t  le a d s 

the m  to  choose  FFN p rovid e rs
• Ang ry tha t  nob od y te lls the ir com m unity a b out  fina ncia l re source s a va ila b le

• Pre fe r p a p e r a p p lica t ions in o rd e r to  ha ve  t im e  to  re fle ct , e d it , a nd  p roofre a d  b e fore  sub m itt ing

Quo t e s

"A ye a r a g o  the  se cre ta ry a t  a  d a yca re  to ld  
m e  tha t  the re ' s no  sp a ce  a nd  tha t  the  
wa it list  wa s 6 m onths. The n, a  white  la d y I 
cle a n house  for we nt  to  the  sa m e  loca t ion 
a nd  she  g ot  into  the  p rog ra m  a fte r wa it ing  
only two we e ks."

"We ' re  not  a sking  [p rovid e rs] to  [the  
a p p lica t ion]. Give  us the  tools a nd  
d ire ct ion, a nd  we ' ll g e t  it  d one ."

"We  a re  stuck in a  b a d  e conom ic 
situa t ion b e ca use  m om  a nd  d a d  ca n' t  
work b e ca use  the y ca n' t  p a y for ca re ."

"Child  ca re  is a  luxury."

"Ob viously, the  ce nte rs know a b out  the  
m one y re source s, b ut  the y d on' t  m a ke  
us a wa re ."

"Whe n you g o  into  a  ce nte r to  a sk for info  in 
Sp a nish, the y d on' t  look a t  you the  sa m e  
wa y the y d o  Eng lish-sp e a king  fa m ilie s.

"This is a  la ng ua g e  b a rrie r. If the  word s you 
use  d on' t  e xist  in the ir la ng ua g e , the y ca n' t  
a cce ss it ."



20

Pa re nt  Journe y Ma p

https://miro.com/app/board/o9J_l0vO420=/


AA

BB

A A

B B

1 3 5

2 4 6

Access to information is 
reserved for those who know 
how to go find it on their own

Comprehending information 
requires determination, lots of 
time, and a general higher level of 
technical acuity

Access + Equity

Lack of attention to 
localization creates a sense of 
"otherness"

Passive ignorance of rules and 
regulations breeds contempt 
for those that create them

Trust

Families aren't empowered 
to make decisions that feel 
right for them

Parents fear the 
consequences of seeking 
assistance (e.g. DHS taking 
their kids away, INS 
investigations)

Dignity

Info + Tech Process People

Technology systems can be 
unreliable (e.g., attendance 
tracking and CO shines)  and 
have minimal governance to 
ensure they’re up and running

Departmental representatives 
aren't clear on defined processes, 
procedures, rules, or regulations

The human experience of 
acquiring care is incongruent 
with the system

Systems are not architected to be 
interoperable in a manner that 
enables secure sharing of 
mutually necessary data

Policy and process decisions 
aren't collaborative with 
front - line workers

Children are often referred 
to as slots or ratios

Early childhood 
education in Colorado 
is a human experience 

that currently 
happens to 

stakeholders 
not with them.

Root  ca use  a na lysis
WHAT WE’VE LEARNED SO FAR



Ea rly child ho o d  e d uca t io n in  
Co lo ra d o  is  a  hum a n e xp e rie nce  
t ha t  curre nt ly ha p p e ns t o  it s  
s t a ke ho ld e rs inst e a d  o f w it h  t he m .



23

Affin it y m a p p ing
HCD w o rksho p  

so lu t io ns + id e a s



Fo cusing  o n o ut co m e s t o  so lve  ro o t  ca use

© 2021 Slalom, LLC CONFIDENTIAL & PROPRIETARY

SOLUTIONS

Streamlined 
Application 
Process

Eligibility / 
Redetermination 
Process

Redesigned 
Payment System

Streamlined 
Regulatory 
Approach

Needed 
Infrastructure

Equity and 
Accessibility

O
U

TC
O

M
ES

Accessible, one - stop - shop portal X X X X X X

Dignified, application and 
determination experience X X X X

Empowering path to payment X X X X

Scalable hub - n- spoke governance X X X X

Interoperable delivery X X X

FUTURE STATE



25

Q + A



26

Thank you!


	Final ECLC Agenda 9.23.2021
	Draft ECLC Minutes 8.26.2021
	OEC Programs 2021
	ECE Current State Provider Journey Map_Sept2021
	ECE_Provider Shareout_PPT
	ECE Current State Parent Journey Map_Sept2021
	ECE_Parent Shareout_PPT
	Final ECLC PPT 9.23.21
	092321_GCV_ECE_ECLC_vF final 2
	Slide Number 1
	ECE Design Project
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Our approach
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	What we learned
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Q + A
	Thank you!




